QSERYe, Helendale Community Services District

§ % 99‘, 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, CA 92342
=7 .

S 4 s REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Thursday, December 15, 2022 at 6:30 PM

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY

Pursuant to the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 which amended certain provisions of the Brown Act regarding teleconference
meetings during periods of statewide emergencies, and as a precaution to our Board of Directors, District staff, and general public as
a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, Helendale Community Services District will hold this meeting of its Board of Directors
both in-person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, California, and via teleconference. This meeting
is open to the public in person or via virtual interface and can be accessed by clicking on the link below: www.zoom.com Meeting ID
463 173 8547 Passcode: HCSD. (Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link above)

Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Public Participation

Anyone wishing to address any matter pertaining to District business listed on the agenda or not, may do so at this time. However, the
Board of Directors may not take action on items that are not on the agenda. The public comment period may be limited to three (3)
minutes per person. Any member wishing to make comments may do so by filling out the speaker’s card in person or using the “raise
the hand” or “chat” feature. If viewing remotely a speaker’s card may be filled out at the following link:
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/THKGNLLS or use the features referenced above. The District requests that all speaker cards be

submitted at any time prior to the close of public participation.

3. Consent ltems

a. Approval of Minutes: December 1, 2022 Regular Board Meeting and December 8, 2022 Special Board
Meeting

b. Bills Paid Report

c. Financials for November

d. Resolution 2022-01P: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District
Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom, Declaring That Local
Emergency Conditions Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of
Directors and Its Standing Committees for the Period December 15, 2022, to January 15, 2023, Pursuant
to Brown Act Provisions

e. Resolution 2022-01Q: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District
Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsome, Declaring That Local
Emergency Conditions Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of
Directors and lts Standing Committees for the Period January 15 to February 15, 2023

4. Reports
a. Directors’ Reports
b. General Manager’s Report

Regular Business:
5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports

6. Discussion Only Regarding Review of Video Tour of Tertiary Plant in Show Low, AZ

7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2022-19: A Resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Recertifying the 2010 Sanitary Sewer



Agenda: December 15, 2022

Management Plan (SSMP) As Required By The State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-
0003-Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) For Sanitary Sewer Systems

8. Discussion Only Regarding Final Payment for Water Rights Acquisition from December 20

9. Discussion Only Regarding Minimum Wage Increase on January 1, 2023

Other Business
10. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)

11. Adjournment

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or accommodation,
including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in the above agendized public meeting should be
directed to the District's General Manager’s office at (760) 951-0006 at least 24 hours prior to said meeting. The regular
session of the Board meeting will be recorded. Recordings of the Board meetings are kept for the Clerk of the Board's
convenience. These recordings are not the official minutes of the Board meetings.



“? Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3
Consent Items

CONSENT ITEMS

a. Approval of Minutes: December 1, 2022 Regular Board Meeting and December 8, 2022
Special Board Meeting

b. Bills Paid Report

c. Resolution2022-01P: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor
Newsom, Declaring That Local Emergency Conditions Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote
Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors and Its Standing Committees for the
Period December 15, 2022, to January 15, 2023, Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions

d. Resolution2022-01Q: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor
Newsom, Declaring That Local Emergency Conditions Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote
Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors and Its Standing Committees for the
Period January 15, 2023, to February 2, 2023, Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions




Sy

- g

HEEEE Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #3a
Minutes from Board meeting 12/01/2022 and Special Meeting on 12/8/2022




sERVIo

A ZEmCs . . o
:;’_} o % Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District
E: %ﬁk .4 REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
8 & Jfr q December 1, 2022, at 6:30 PM
26540 Vista Road, Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY
Pursuant to the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 which amended certain provisions of the Brown
Act regarding teleconference meetings during periods of statewide emergencies, and as a
precaution to our Board of Directors, District staff, and general public as a result of the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, Helendale Community Services District will hold this meeting of its Board of
Directors both in-person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale,
California, and via teleconference. This meeting is open to the public in person or via virtual
interface and can be accessed by clicking on the link below:

www.zoom.com Meeting ID 463 173 8547 Passcode: HCSD
(Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link above)

Board Members Roll Call:
Present: President Tim Smith; Vice President Henry Spiller; Secretary, Ron Clark, Director Craig
Schneider; Sandy Haas; Director

Absent: Sandy Haas, Director

Staff Members Present:

Kimberly Cox, General Manager; Craig Carlson, Water Operations Manager; Cheryl Vermette, Parks,
Recreation & Programs Supervisor; Alex Aviles, Wastewater Operations Manager; Jean Thomas,
Customer Service Supervisor; Andrea Chavis, Senior Customer Service Rep; Trini Martin, Program
Assistant; Sharon Kreinop, Senior Account Specialist

Consultants:
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel
Jonathan Abadesco, Fedak and Brown

Members of the Public:
There were thirteen members of the public attending in person and one member of the public
attending via Zoom.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by President Smith, after which the Pledge of Allegiance
was recited.

1. Approval of Agenda
Action: A motion was made by Director Schneider to approve the agenda as presented. The
motion was seconded by Director Clark.
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 — No; 1 — Absent. President
Smith-Yes; Vice President Spiller-Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Schneider -Yes; Director Haas
-Absent.

DECEMBER 1, 2022 | Minutes



2. Public Participation
None

3. Consent Items

a. Approval of Minutes: November 17, 2022 Regular Board Meeting

b. Bills Paid Report

¢. Financials for September and October

d. Resolution 2022-01N: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District
Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom, Declaring That
Local Emergency Conditions Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings
of the Board of Directors and Its Standing Committees for the Period December 1, 2022, to
December 15, 2022, Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions
Motion: Vice President Spiller made a motion to approve the consent items as presented.
Director Schneider seconded the motion.
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 — No; 1 - Absent. President
Smith-Yes; Vice President Spiller-Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Schneider -Yes; Director
Haas - Absent.

4. Reports

a. Directors’ Report
None

b. General Managers Report
General Manager Cox reported on the Community Food Waste Recycling. The last pickup was
860 pounds! She showed photographs of the Well 13 progress. For the Cash flow report, she
reported the deposits for the month of October were 487,736 and the disbursements were
$252,731. The District’s total cash balance is $6,298,284. The water fund has $2,505,258; the
sewer fund has a balance of $2,960,809; the park fund has a balance of $379,560 and the park
fund has a balance of $120,559. There is a balance of $2,017,355.32 in CLASS; $1,279,918.86 in
CBB Checking; $1,032,020.42 in LAIF; $2,000,000 in CBB Trust and $95,031.02 in DCB.

Regular Business

5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports
Action: Vice President Spiller made a motion to approve the Directors’ Expense Reports.
Director Schneider seconded the motion,
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 — No; 1 - Absent. President
Smith-Yes; Vice President Spiller-Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Schneider -Yes; Director Haas
-Yes

DECEMBER 1, 2022 | Minutes



6. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Acceptance of the 2022 Fiscal Year Audit
Discussion: Jonathan Abadesco, from Fedak and Brown presented the FY 2022 audit. He
reported the District received an unmodified “clean” opinion. He discussed the Districts assets,
liabilities, and net position. He also reviewed the District’s revenues and expenses. He discussed
GASB 87 and current operating leases. The District’s net position increased by $2,473,931 as a
result of continuing operations. Total revenues increased by $560,577 due primarily to an
increase in capital grants and contributions as well as other revenues. Total expenses increased
by $81,936 due primarily to an increase in parks and recreation expenses.
Action: Director Schneider made a motion to accept the audit for FY 2022. Director Clark
seconded the motion.
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 4 - Yes; 0 — No; 1 - Absent. President
Smith-Yes; Vice President Spiller-Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Schneider -Yes; Director Haas
-Yes

Other Business
7. Requested items for next or future agendas {Directors and Staff only)
None

8. Presentation to President Smith and Director Schneider
Discussion: Staff made a presentation to President Smith for his 9 years of service and Director
Schneider for his 16 years followed by a short reception.

The Board went into closes session at 8:00 pm.
9. Closed Session

Conference with Real Property Negotiators
(Government Code Section 54956.8)

Property: Water Rights

District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox

Negotiating Parties: Robert Boyter

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
Significant Litigation
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)

One Potential Case

President Smith adjourned closed session at 8:32 pm and re-opened the Open Session.

DECEMBER 1, 2022 | Minutes



10. Report of Closed Session ltems
Legal Counsel Kennedy reported that the Board met in Closed Session and there was no reportable
action resulting from closed session items.

11. Adjournment

President Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:33 pm

Submitted by: Approved by:

Tim Smith, President Sandy Haas, Secretary
The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of

Directors. A digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon
request at the Helendale CSD office.

DECEMBER 1, 2022 | Minutes



3_.5&'#' 6\% Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District
: ® i}q : g SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

8 A g December 8, 2022, at 2:00 PM

26540 Vista Road, Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY
Pursuant to the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 which amended certain provisions of the Brown
Act regarding teleconference meetings during periods of statewide emergencies, and as a
precaution to our Board of Directors, District staff, and general public as a result of the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, Helendale Community Services District will hold this meeting of its Board of
Directors both in-person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale,
California, and via teleconference. This meeting is open to the public in person or via virtual
interface and can be accessed by clicking on the link below:

www.zoom.com Meeting ID 463 173 8547 Passcode: HCSD
(Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link above)

Board Members Roll Call:
Present: President Henry Spiller; Vice President Ron Clark; Secretary, Sandy Haas, Director
Annette Roper; Director George Cardenas

Staff Members Present:

Kimberly Cox, General Manager; Craig Carlson, Water Operations Manager; Alex Aviles, Wastewater
Operations Manager; Cheryl Vermette, Parks, Recreation & Programs Supervisor; Jean Thomas,
Customer Service Supervisor; Sharon Kreinop, Senior Account Specialist; Andrea Chavis, Senior
Customer Service Representative; Senior Customer Service Representative; Bill Kuhlmann,
Wastewater Operator lll; Alex Creason Wastewater Operator I; Josh McClure, Maintenance Worker;
Jonathan Escobar, Water Operator lIl; Richard LaTour, Water Operator |.

Consultants:
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel (Zoom)

Members of the Public:
There were twelve members of the public attending in person.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by Vice President Spiller, after which the Pledge of
Allegiance was recited.

1. Approval of Agenda
Action: A motion was made by Director Clark to approve the agenda as presented. The motion
was seconded by Director Haas.
Vote: The motion carried by the following roll call vote: 5 - Yes; 0 — No. Vice President Spiller -
Yes; Director Haas - Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Roper -Yes; Director Cardenas - Yes.

DECEMBER 8, 2022 | Minutes



2. Public Participation
None

Oath of Office

3. Administration of the Oath of Office for Newly Elected Candidates
General Manager Cox administered the Oath of office to Ron Clark, Annette Roper, and George
Cardenas.

4. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Annual Election of Officers
Action: Director Haas made a motion to appoint Vice President Spiller to the position of
President, Director Clark to the position of Vice President and herself to the position of
Secretary. Director Cardenas seconded the motion. Director Haas then made a motion to close
the nomination, Director Roper seconded the motion.
Vote: The motion carried by the following roli call vote: 5 - Yes; 0 — No. Vice President Spiller -
Yes; Director Haas - Yes; Director Clark -Yes; Director Roper -Yes; Director Cardenas - Yes.

President Spiller called for a brief break at 2:08 pm
President Spiller called the meeting back to order at 2:22 pm

Board Workshop
5. Biennial Ethics Training as Required by AB 1234
Discussion: The Board, Legal Counsel and required staff attended the CSDA AB 1234 on demand
webinar.
Other Business
6. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)
None
7. Adjournment

President Smith adjourned the meeting at 4:46 pm

Submitted by: Approved by:

Henry Spiller, President Sandy Haas, Secretary
The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of

Directors. A digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon
request at the Helendale CSD office.

DECEMBER 8, 2022 | Minutes



Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Sharon Kreinop, Senior Account Specialist

SUBIECT: Agenda item #3 b
Consent Items: Updated Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Updated Report Only. Receive and File

STAFF REPORT:

Staff issued 35 checks and 38 EFT’s totaling $390,084.42

Total Cash Available: 12/12/22 11/28/22
Cash $ 6,404,321.87 $6,298,284.45
Checks/EFT’s Issued S 390,084.42 S 94,303.08

Investment Report
The Investment Report shows the status of the invested District funds. The interest rate is 0.15%

for LAIF and 2.6078% for CA Class for October 2022. Interest earned thru QOctober 2022 on CA Class
account is $2,620.82



Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

Helendale CSD Transaction Detail
Issued Date Range: 11/29/2022 - 12/12/2022
Cieared Date Range:

Issued

Date Number Description Amount Type Module
Bank Account: 251229590 - CBB Checking

11/29/2022 Reverse Refund Check JEANNIE M. JOHNSON 280.04 Check Reversal Utility Billing
11/29/2022 Reverse Refund Check YONG YAN DONG 332.14 Check Reversal  Utility Billing
11/29/2022 Reverse Refund Check JOSHUA THOMAS 36.00 Check Reversal Utility Billing
11/29/2022 Reverse Refund Check TROY CASIAS 232.14 Check Reversal  Utllity Billing
11/29/2022 Reverse Refund Check JAVIER CHAIREZ 162.69 Check Reversal  Utility Billing
11/29/2022 OTIS BAUGH -211.25 Check Utllity Billing
11/29/2022 ALEXANDER J. SMITH -261.23 Check Utllity Billing
11/29/2022 LAWYERS TITLE COMPANY -404.50 Check Utility Billing
12/01/2022 AC! Payments, Inc -56.90 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 AVCOM Services Inc. -120.50 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Burrtec Waste Graup, Inc -13,566.09 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc. -180.02 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Hartford Life -274.77 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 James Harvey -455.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Mobile Occupational Services, Inc. -180.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 O'Reilly Auto Parts -618.38 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Parkhouse Tire, Inc. -1,974.82 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Rebecca Gonzalez -330.00 Cherk Actounts Pavable
12/01/2022 Tyler Technologles, Inc. -159.54 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Ultimate Internet Access, Inc -804.02 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 USA of So. Calffornia -76.50 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Inland Water Works Supply Co. -276.69 Check Accounts Payable
12/01/2022 Sonic Systems, Inc -1,516.70 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Inlzand Water Works Supply Co. -1,026.91 Check Accounts Payable
12/08/2022 California State Disburserment Unit -230.76 Check Accounts Payable
12/09/2022 State of California - Franchise Tax Board -50.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Amazon Capitol Services -33.38 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Beck Oil Inc -2,736.50 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Burrtec Waste Group, In¢ -19,927.02 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Burrtec Waste Industries Inc -133.79 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Business Card -4,146.61 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 California Park & Recreation Soclety -555.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Cheryl Vermette -850.50 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 County of San Bernardino -160.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Frontier Communications ~49.84 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Frontier Communications -159.84 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Lowe's In¢. -1,377.25 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Online information Services, Inc -31.20 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Parkhouse Tirg, Inc. -202.57 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Silver Lakes Hardware -150.85 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Uline -2,893.66 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Cashier, DPR -120.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 Helendale Community Services District -251.81 Check Accounts Payable
12/07/2022 South West Pump & Drilling, Inc -245,000.00 Check Accounts Payable
12/09/2022 MAHMUD ULKARIM -77.42 Check Utility Billing

11/29/2022 SCE ACH Welt 6,7,8,9 & 2 Acct 700620711734 -252.65 EFT General Ledger



Bank Transaction Report

Issued

Date Number Description Amount Type Module
12/05/2022 CalPERS Classic Pmt PPE 11/6/22 -7,5922.64 EFT Generatl Ledger
12/05/2022 CzIPERS PEPRA Pmt PPE 11/6/22 -1,871.05 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 SW Gas ACH 4-Plex Acct # 910000817466 -145.02 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 SW Gas Community Center 310000010177 -180.29 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 SW Gas ACH WWTP 910000010195 -30.03 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 SW Gas Water Shop Acct # 910001037540 -11.00 EFT General Ledger
12/08/2022 To record CalPERS Health Premium -18,889.46 EFT General Ledger
12/06/2022 SCE ACH Community Center 700218740906 -1,394.00 EFT General Ledger
12/05/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 9479 44,82 EFT General Ledger
12/02/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 9479 -41.99 EFT General Ledger
12/01/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 9479 -47.39 EFT General Ledger
11/29/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 9479 -27.46 EFT General Ledger
12/05/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -117.68 EFT General Ledger
12/02/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -62.61 EFT General Ledger
12/01/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -35.97 EFT General Ledger
11/30/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -18.83 EFT General Ledger
11/30/2022 To record Paymentach CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -95.95 EFT General Ledger
11/29/2022 To record Paymentech CC Fees Account Eding 6621 -68.738 EFT General Ledger
12/07/2022 SCE ACH WWTP & Wells 3,4 & 1 Acct 700547354472 -19,981.11 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 ACH Water Shop SCE Acct 700453074415 -195.43 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 SCE ACH 4-Plex Acct 700392338368 -325.83 EFT General Ledger
12/09/2022 CalPERS 457 Pmt PPE 12/4/22 -4,378.26 EFT General Ledger
12/06/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -55.95 EFT General Ledger
12/07/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -80.22 EFT General Ledger
12/07/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -20.60 EFT General Ledger
12/06/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -42,59 EFT General Ledger
12/08/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -158.07 EFT General Ledger
12/07/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -47.08 EFT General Ledger
12/07/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -129.98 EFT General Ledger
12/08/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -23.15 EFT General Ledger
12/08/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -100.67 EFT General Ledger
12/09/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -17.36 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -127.17 EFT General Ledger
12/12/2022 Paymentech CC Fees -16.80 EFT General Ledger
12/05/2022 Paymentech CC Fee AMEX -5.00 EFT General Ledger
12/02/2022 To record Global Merchant Fees Acct 4366 - -504.57 EFT General Ledger
12/02/2022 To record Global Merchant Fees Acct 4367 - -1,923.04 EFT General Ledger

Bank Account 251229590 Total: (83) -390,084.42
Report Total: (B3) -390,084.42



Alewung
- :a8uey aeqg panss|

¥ PRO0GE- €8
15°S6¥65- SE
TO'EH0T 5
Z6'TE9'TEE- or
Junowy uno)
¥ ¥80°06E- €8
2P0 06E- 3]
wnouwy wno)
T ye0'065- £8

" 780°06E- £8
junowy wney

!|23o) poday

143

jESIOAIY WD
Ryl

adAL vorpesues)

sjejoL poday

jmoL poday

000ITI-66 66
JuUNGIZY Ysey

Joday uondesuel yueg



Cash Flow Report

£8V°ZSS

[ ]
(s
G
9cL L8¥ ©
™~
o
a
7]

vIT Vo
£SP°88T -
= G
8Z1'81Z &
=
<

185°908

|
W 922°0£9 L
= \ 3
786°69%
£
$ ve8'LLL : _ S
‘5 T LLE §
9Z1°680°L
A Z1°6
Iﬂ 'gsz = —_'-.Il
P 18T Y
e 8Tr 05} 5
W G89°88¢
wJud
lm L
(=] Iﬁ(sir'c:‘ssa)
% ST T6V é
Q L16°8TF =
> |
':5 l26‘99V = N
[ TEP L9V 5
g ZSEVES
8100 |
™~
TTOPT 2
90£ ‘OFF s
| (€SO°LE)
AN
YOV Z6¥ z
LGS =
. lzse'vee)
org8 608

DEC

88p Shrv

-21

= Disbursements Net

s Deposit



PALITA

LZEvO¥'9

bZ0z 00T 6107 80T
9 009Y —
92£°556y
619VLE"S
L77°0£09

L10Z 910z

198 VLT Y

GOz ¥L0Z £10Z (A% 1A

saouejeg yse) g0

L0z

_ _ _ 0888707 _
606°98€°‘. . .
1/6'989°7 (=1 d

86‘VII'E

96Z°€18°¢

010z

6£0°626°C

600¢

2002
648°10L°T
768°SH9°E

8007

678°9L6'Y

000°000°1

000°000°T

000°000°€

000'000°F

000‘000°S

0000009

000°000°Z



74174 6Zoz 6102 8107 L10T o_bN 6102 FlLoZ £10Z [A%17A L0z a_.cN

b oo
 00£'950')
25
90L°06}
- AT
8'E 0£0°£8T sHals
0
965 8t
£55'8¢

G6S CEY

74
60L°€0F

000°000°S

682" mhm

6L LOLSGE MS OHEd - I9MIS & JIJeM
000°000°9

pun4 Aq sasuejeg yse)

000°000°Z
E



TE'SSE'LLO'TS SSYTID

IS g0 =
SSY1D
go0m
Buppayd gga = OCLEZ 'ZCT LS .
JVe suiydayd agd e~ 00°000'000°Z

e el = = 154l 98)

¥ 070'ZEO' LS dIvT|

AY4OLISOd3a A9 SANN4



ang |e304

Te/ET/TT ang

T9'9%T'Y TTOL 85'Z0S T6'VSY'E | 627896 =000
BTEE 00°5Z 8T8 uosIfjod 'Y - pIed Yo Aep,g / yonT 10d BuimEsieyl|  00B9SS-0T
66°£2 66'6 00°81 (Aed 0Iny) uopduasqng Ajyluo [euSiQ ssaud Alled|  00S9SS-0T
Aed-oiny) uonduasgns AlYIUoN UNS OUlpJEUIag UBS
00'6S 00'Sg 00°p2 SSE|) Palsad / Jeuiwas ewley  00Stes-0T
TL9L €579 8Tzt Yo lamaled awely ojoyd [eNdiq / syoeus pleogl  OTSZZS-OT
98'6ET 0Ly 91°8Y 89tV sJo1RQ/ B M M BINISPUE| SOSZZS-O0T
L1761 5L 96'€S YO'ZE 0e'86 ezzyd / sinuog / ssuveg Aeg dn-ueapd)|  SSSESS-90
e Py Jasuadsiq juna| £-00-00DESS-SO
86'29%'T { 09°Z9 09'¢9 09'79 AT E8'ECT'T [06°68 s3eq pny / saunqald / suwuojiun/ Aeq [euld sydeus 1aados|  €00055-50
T9'6Y6 STPEE LETYT  {60'0LY 24i] Jamo / sJoJeAcuDY Hn) 10§ 1eys Old (Z)]  D00StS-50
00°029 00089 SPJED 1D DANUBIU) 33 94015 YUY ] 008955-€0
87502 8Z'S0T sjage] 21015 YUyl - 0oudy!  O0DESS-EO
oSy 0s'vb Aegd 01Ny (1210 /M 1S 05/05 BULIINI9Y) [ERURA OINY XIJIUAD) 000S¥S-20
09°Z51 09'ZS1 FIOM [BI111D31T Joj JajewiiyodoN| 009YSS-TO
05t 0S vy Aed oy - (pmm/m 1[ds 05/0S Bulunday) lenuely oy xynuapl|  0005¥5-T0
¥T'8Y F A% yea] Jaye Jeis 191ep) Jof Your]|  000TYS-T0
2101 sadieyn sadiey)y sadiey) sadiey) uondiiasaqg # 1wy

ZT0T ‘9T JOQUISAON - £T J2G0320 PJED Jejsen




B

& N

S Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #3c¢
Resolution2022-01P: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale
Community Services District Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of
Emergency by Governor Newsom, Declaring That Local Emergency Conditions
Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of
Directors and Its Standing Committees for the Period December 15, 2022, to
January 15, 2023, Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions




RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 01P

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A
STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM, DECLARING THAT LOCAL

EMERGENCY CONDITIONS PERSIST, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS
STANDING COMMITTEES FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 15, 2022, TO
JANUARY 15, 2023, PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS

WHEREAS, the Helendale Community Services District (the “District”) is committed to
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of its Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) and its standing
committees are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government
Code Sections 54950-54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch
those bodies conduct their business; and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, in Government Code Section 54953(¢), makes provision for
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), subject to the
existence of certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, a required condition for application of Government Code Section 54953(e) is
that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor pursuant to Government Code Section 8625,
proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and
property within the State caused by conditions as described in Government Code Section 8558,
and

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a state of emergency
to exist in California as a result of the threat of COVID-19, and such proclamation has not yet been
lifted; and

WHEREAS, it is further required under Government Code Section 54953(e) that state or
local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or that the
legislative body meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of
attendees; and

WHEREAS, the Board previously adopted Resolution No. 2022-010 on November 3,
2022, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the Board and its standing committees to
conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with Government Code Section

54953(b)(3); and

1|Page



WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions set forth in Government
Code Section 54953(e), the Board must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency
that exists within the District, and the Board has done so; and

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist within the District, specifically COVID-19 and
its Delta variant, remain highly contagious and, therefore, a threat to the health, safety, and well-
being of the District’s employees, directors, vendors, contractors, customers, visitors, and
residents; and

WHEREAS, directions from the San Bernardino County Department of Public Health and
regulations from the State of California impose various social distancing restrictions and provide
guidance on best practices with respect to actions to reduce the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Board does hereby find that a state of emergency continues to exist within
the District’s service area as a result of the continuing presence of COVID-19, which has caused,
and will continue to cause, conditions of imminent risk to attendees of Board meetings, and has
resulted in local, State, and federal social distancing orders and related guidance, and which has
caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District
that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the
District, and the Board desires to re-affirm that a local emergency exists and re-ratify the
proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board does hereby
find that the Board and all standing committees thereof shall continue to conduct their meetings
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code Section 54953, as
authorized by subdivision (e) of Government Code Section 54953, and that such legislative bodies
shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings
as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (¢} of Government Code Section 54953; and

WHEREAS, the District will continue to provide proper notice to the public regarding all
Board and standing committee meetings in accordance with Government Code Section
54953(e)(2) and shall continue to provide notice to the public of how they may access any such
meeting via call-in number and/or internet link.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated
into this Resolution by this reference.

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board hereby considers the
conditions of the state of emergency within the District and proclaims that a local emergency
persists throughout the District as a result of the continiing presence of COVID-19, which
continues to cause conditions of imminent risk to attendees of the District’s Board and standing
committee meetings, and which have resulted in local, State, and federal social distancing orders

2|Page



and guidance, and that continuing to conduct the District’s Board and standing committee meetings
virtually will minimize the possible spread COVID-19 and any variant thereof.

Section 3. Re-Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The
Board hereby re-ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of
Emergency regarding COVID-19, dated March 4, 2020.

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The District’s General Manager, or his or
her delegee, and the Board and standing committees of the District are hereby authorized and
directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution,
including but not limited to continuing to conduct open and public meetings in accordance with
Government Code Section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately
upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) the expiration of thirty (30) days
from the date this Resolution was adopted, as set forth below, or (ii) such time as the Board adopts
a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code Section 54953(e}(3) to extend the
time during which the Board and standing committees of the District may continue to
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code
Section 54953.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District this 15TH day of December, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Henry Spiller, President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Sandy Haas, Secretary, Board of Directors

3|Page



Ty

L B

WEEIEE Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBIECT Agenda Item #3d:
Resolution2022-010Q;: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale
Community Services District Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of
Emergency by Governor Newsom, Declaring That Local Emergency Conditions
Persist, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of
Directors and Its Standing Committees for the Period January 15, 2023, to
February 2, 2023, Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions




RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 010

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A
STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM, DECLARING THAT LOCAL

EMERGENCY CONDITIONS PERSIST, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS
STANDING COMMITTEES FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 15, 2022, TO
FEBRUARY 2, 2023, PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS

WHEREAS, the Helendale Community Services District (the “District”) is committed to
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of its Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) and its standing
committees are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government
Code Sections 54950-54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch
those bodies conduct their business; and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, in Government Code Section 54953(¢), makes provision for
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), subject to the
existence of certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, a required condition for application of Government Code Section 54953(¢) is
that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor pursuant to Government Code Section 8625,
proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and
property within the State caused by conditions as described in Government Code Section 8558;
and

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a state of emergency
to exist in California as a result of the threat of COVID-19, and such proclamation has not yet been
lifted; and

WHEREAS, it is further required under Government Code Section 54953(¢) that state or
local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or that the
legislative body meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of
attendees; and

WHEREAS, the Board previously adopted Resolution No. 2022-01P on December 15,
2022, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the Board and its standing committees to

conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with Government Code Section
54953(b)(3); and

1|Page



WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions set forth in Government
Code Section 54953(e), the Board must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency
that exists within the District, and the Board has done so; and

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist within the District, specifically COVID-19 and
its Delta variant, remain highly contagious and, therefore, a threat to the health, safety, and well-
being of the District’s employees, directors, vendors, contractors, customers, visitors, and
residents; and

WHEREAS, directions from the San Bernardino County Department of Public Health and
regulations from the State of California impose various social distancing restrictions and provide
guidance on best practices with respect to actions to reduce the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Board does hereby find that a state of emergency continues to exist within
the District’s service area as a result of the continuing presence of COVID-19, which has caused,
and will continue to cause, conditions of imminent risk to attendees of Board meetings, and has
resulted in local, State, and federal social distancing orders and related guidance, and which has
caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District
that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the
District, and the Board desires to re-affirm that a local emergency exists and re-ratify the
proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board does hereby
find that the Board and all standing committees thereof shall continue to conduct their meetings
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code Section 54953, as
authorized by subdivision (€) of Government Code Section 54953, and that such legislative bodies
shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings
as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (¢) of Government Code Section 54953; and

WHEREAS, the District will continue to provide proper notice to the public regarding all
Board and standing committee meetings in accordance with Government Code Section
54953(e)(2) and shall continue to provide notice to the public of how they may access any such
meeting via call-in number and/or internet link.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated
into this Resolution by this reference.

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board hereby considers the
conditions of the state of emergency within the District and proclaims that a local emergency
persists throughout the District as a result of the continuing presence of COVID-19, which
continues to cause conditions of imminent risk to attendees of the District’s Board and standing
committee meetings, and which have resulted in local, State, and federal social distancing orders

2|Page



and guidance, and that continuing to conduct the District’s Board and standing committee meetings
virtually will minimize the possible spread COVID-19 and any variant thereof.

Section 3. Re-Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The
Board hereby re-ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of
Emergency regarding COVID-19, dated March 4, 2020.

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The District’s General Manager, or his or
her delegee, and the Board and standing committees of the District are hereby authorized and
directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution,
including but not limited to continuing to conduct open and public meetings in accordance with
Government Code Section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately
upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) the expiration of thirty (30) days
from the date this Resolution was adopted, as set forth below, or (ii) such time as the Board adopts
a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code Section 54953(e)(3) to extend the
time during which the Board and standing committees of the District may continue to
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code
Section 54953.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District this 15TH day of December, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Henry Spiller, President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Sandy Haas, Secretary, Board of Directors

3iP--ge



i

= Helendale Community Services District

DATE: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #5
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
None.

STAFF REPORT
This matter is at the discretion of the Board. Included herein for the Board’s consideration are
expense reports submitted since the last Board meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT: NA
POSSIBLE MOTION: At the discretion of the Board.

ATTACHMENTS: Expense Reports




7,

TZ/1/T 3ANJ3}D SIIW/95'0S 38 pareInajed aBeaN

Supeaw pJeog 1xeU 2yl Je pajussaid aq 03 pauinbal 11odad |Bq.A JO USTILA,

Pieog ayl Jo 33WWC) J0H Py 14
S10}23J| J0 peeog 3yl Ag pasosdde-aud Sunaay oy «1151Q 03 pajejau wetdosd Suuiel ) Ieultas /Houslpuc) 13
PUISI Y3 Jo suoresado Jo suoIUNg SULAC|AUL JBXIEW U) SISJRIUI Y)IM UojIeziueSio/m Supaapy T « Paeoq £310S uo uonejusaday :q
QsOH Supaye uoraipsunl/m Apoq [eapag 10 ajels ‘edo Jo Buesy | LJUBA3/Bunasi dgnd 1e uoneuasauday o
WIISIg AQ pRlelal elNsUO2 Jo Adwionie ‘soypne/m Jugaspy H «UBAZ Dl|gNnd :g
suoiesado P1ASIA 01 D /M BupRa 9 19y umoug Aq pauwianoB Bunasa ognd 1y
'sapofan) asuadxy 5311062107 asuadxy
i a1eqg aunjeushs
[e10) pless (1oahed Joy ssa304d 03 30
uiSpon
s|eawy
afea i sS|ejo L ISIUBUIOY fsaI0N
WaUSY Jjgnd
1U3A]
yzUsE dijgng
JudAz
yjauag agnd
JUBA]
}jauag Jjgnd
WBA3
9uag ANignd
uaAg
\ —
.u\ ~ ﬂﬂu VR TS Wauag dljand
= £
B s o2/l
= —~ . Jyauag dlqnd /
Lﬁﬁ Pk A S = 1isA3 27777
N SR Y] Wjausg 2ygng :
T PV 770 : /
T b s W/
~ WeusE Hqnd o \
St >
DL w\éﬂﬁ\ =g fITETE] (/4
M.W\«fuhw,v\ 20 2 [weusgonand] Y
o DY) .\\.ww nwg._\_\ 5 1Y MI.VV VQ\ 1U3A3 W\ Vi
- Alodaye] “dxg BP0 Budpoy S|EoN adeaq 7" uoneuejdx3/uondiissag ssuadxy ajeg
:a1eq

WL@ \mb < W\ FJWVN

HIHONOA 3SN3dX3 Y3dWIN guvos
L1I141510 S3IIAYIS ALINNWINOD 3TVANITIH



00'0s¥

8130 oL

BuiBpoT [e10L

SIEOW [Rj0L

S0l el

sBugesy [goL

1Aq pspjwang

Weueg
land o
uopdusseg

WaA3

Weueg
olgnd Jo
uodipseg

jusag

yeusg
Snand jo
uppdiiassgq

pIEIC]

ueusg
ojand jo
uonduosaq,

oA

aueg
2qnd Jo
uogdyuoseq

weag

Jueueg
odnd Jo
uopdusag

pLLLE]

Weuay
sHand §o
uonduntag

1 umoug Aq pawsaot Busay olland v

WAl

QSOH Jo Bupeay sseusng

jueuag
olang Jo
uojdussed

1o umicug fiq pewsach Bupeeyy aand

a0a asoH senfey

ushg

T0T/iT)

£

QSOH o Bugeely ssauisng ssnosiq

Weusg
ayand jo
uopdposag

SuGfiBIEd oLEI & ey Buen B

WD Wim r0egy

weng

Z20Z6TILY

——

Y AN
7 W \ M?

SlspIseY puE LUOPUBA LM ool

wouag
aand jo
uojidposag

?s‘ olland 1 woBjuesasday 1o

00051

0B Sieuues

Ll L)

Bujbpo]

s|es

Bunasil

ueng

2202/0erLL

__ozn:-_mxml_aoﬂ:uoon asuedxy

JOYLUBAON

22OZMTL

Y3AIINHIS DIVYO

HUIHDONOA ISNIJXS WIEWIN GUVOS LORILSIQ SIDIANIS ALNNWWOD A TVANITIH




TZ/T/T 2AII39Y49 B)ILI/95°0% 1e pajejnajed afea iy upa3w pseog PEU BL Je pajuasald 3G 03 paJtnbau 1L0dad [BGIIA IO UBLILAM,

..m.m pleoq a3 4o 33IWWO?) 30K PY 4
$1030201Q jo-pleog ) Aq paaoldde-aid Bunaap oy *3443510 01 paefas wesBoud Bujuies ) leuswas/eoualyuo) 13
Basig ays o suoneszdo Jo suokdung SUIADIALL 19IBL U SISIBIUI YIM uoijeziveFio/m Supsa it « PIEOY £3T0S uo uonejusaiday g
QSOH Bunaaye uonaipsuni/m Apoq [esapad Jo a1e3s ‘|e2o 40 3unsay | «MBAZ/EunBR J)|and Je uonRuasAIday
PUISI AQ palelDa JUBYNSUOD JO ABUioRE ‘soypne/m BuiRepy H «JU3AZ H|ang g
i suoyesadQ 14510 = NO/m Sunaap 1o v umoug AqQ pausanol Jupsesiy nqnd v
Sauobaloy asuadxz :saolalny asuadxy
8xeq aimeus|s
i2impeus|s Joquialy preog
. [el0L puesg {ledAed Joy ssanoad 0} 0
BuiBpon
- s[eany
afea sjeyel SJUBUNIO) fsaloN
14auag Jqnd
usa3z

gauag Jlfqnd
JuUIA3

MauRE dNgnd
1U3A3

eI Sygng
WsAa

WjauRg Ji|gng
UEYE

yausg Jgnd

UBA3

1j3uag 2yqng
B3

143Usg J|gnd

JuaA3
\) . 0 Wyausd jqng -
gw&\«ﬁ.@h ey VG ) WK =2 TTFE)
4 ~ . Wauag Jgnd Co .
- o B W o AN wes ZZ L2 T
AsoSazer dx3 BY0 3ui3pon s[eain adeann ! uogeuejdx3 fuopdinsag ssuadky * aeq

—zz|pel ARG L) e

\_ ¥3HONOA ISNIdX3 YITWIN QYOS
1141510 SIDIAYIS ALINNIWINGD TIVGNITIH




Guiaauw panog 3xau sy I payuasssd 3q 0F paimbas Liodas (g1 50 UM «
PJROg Y} JO FIPWWOI IOH PY 5o

510122410 40 preog auyt Ag pasosdde-aad Supsa 1y »1S1] 03 pajejal wesBou Buines] Jeu|was/acualamo ;3
WLISI] Sy3 4o suonerado Jo SuopDuny BU oAU SIF1IBW U) SISRISIU] UM vonezpiedio/m Junadpy i «Preog EJTOS € Uo uopeyuasasday :q
GSJH Bundaye uonHpsun{/m Apoq [24apa- Jo eS 1e30T 10 FURIIN X =243 /Bunaapy aljgnd 1e uojieuRsauday ;)
PUISIQ AQ PaUIeIRd JUBRYNSUOD 1o ABuJoNe “sioppne/m Supsaw :H »IUBAT HIaNd i
suopesado 110510 34 WO/m Supsaly o 19y umoug Aq pawsanoB Sunasiy 3)1qnd iy
sariefa1ny) ssuadgy
M D
= aeq TR
J@ kg pepnqng
paoxddy anepdosddy
L ]
- 9101, pus1s)
U 150
5 Smdpoy
P N— S[EA
- afleappy ol
suawwog/seloN|
| | | | soL — /
7 TV BTy wsueg JNang &)\
_ _ | | il uaAZ 4
£ i ” Y JA/L & , 4

wsuag sllang %N

—

weaz| 1/

77 TPCD B Y7 RV ..:.__\.\\_”\ il 1WAUSE 24q0dT, \
— . AT T =

L
b
0

J,
A IO "IV Yy Jyoueq 5andpy
s A abiddi, wers] /7

P VL Ayt AT Sy =

ST T T T

i 'y . y . 7% ‘. \\ . e \
_ W= JIZ TATFR wana| /7 \\

VO I7JG7P0 A& e

K

e (@ ;) wBueg u__n:%ww
\“‘\Nq Ty, T T 7 Em>m__ \\\

Dy iR p 7 P =z Fw/ *7" Eo_amu_s:n__d\uw
5 ! "4 sz /4

e
=

EBE

ol

ol

-

\UUd'&“Wu«k@\)L

=

s T euag ongngd |
Gy, e

FidBoyed dxs JOIRD | Bupol | wjeoW ] uopeue|dxX3/uopdussaq I6ustxT aq)

VBT RANZh N

TTHINO0A ASNAIXT HITWAN (RIVOS LOMLSTA STIIAYIS ALINNINIWOD ' IVONTTIH




.E.OiH.LSlG%

_._-T__-;-.;COMM!JM};“

2 Helendale Community Services District

Date: December 15, 2022

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Alex Aviles, Wastewater Operations Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #6
Discussion Only Regarding Review of Video Tour of Tertiary Ptan in Show Low, AZ

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
None.

STAFF REPORT:

The Board had previously contemplated a trip to Arizona to view a wastewater treatment plant
similar to ours that was modified from secondary to tertiary. Upon evaluation of schedules, the
Board directed Staff to go and make a video of the wastewater treatment plant in Show Low,
Arizona to show to the entire Board in lieu of just a couple of directors going. Alex Aviles, Alex
Creason from Wastewater and Richard LaTour from water went on November 16-18 and videoed
the facility. Richard has the ability to provide aerial footage using a drone and agreed to share
that talent with the District. He has since edited the video and it will be presented to the Board at
the meeting.

BACKGROUND:
On September 1, 2022, the Board extended a professional services agreement (PSA) to PACE for

the design of the tertiary upgrade for the wastewater plant. The cost of the contract is
$699,107.

FISCAL IMPACT: NA

POSSIBLE MOTION: None

ATTACHMENTS: None



A,
& @
2 ]
b i
o #a!
{ELE ""::I'.
Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Alex Aviles, Wastewater Operations Manager

SUBIECT: Agenda item #7
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2022-19: A
Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District
Recertifying the 2010 Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) As Required By The
State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-0003-Statewide General
Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) For Sanitary Sewer Systems

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the proposed resolution recertifying the 2010

SSMP.

STAFF REPORT

In January 2008, Staff presented a schedule to meet the requirements of the Sanitary Sewer
Management Plan. The Plan was completed by consulting engineer, Charlie McKinley and adopted
by the Board on April 15, 2010. It was later re-adopted on February 1, 2018. The purpose of this
agenda item is to request that the Board recertify the Sanitary Sewer Management Plan with
minor modifications that will be reviewed with the Board. The recertification process requires
that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution recertifying the Plan for another five years.

The important elements of the SSMP are:
Operations and Maintenance program
Design and Performance Provisions
Overflow Emergency Response Plan
FOG Control Program
System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan

All of these elements have been in place since before the initial certification of the Plan and Staff
continues to implement each of these elements on an on-going basis. Through normal operation
and maintenance protocols District Staff has complied with the SSMP. The Plan formalizes the
operational requirements of the District. Attached for your review is a copy of the 2022 SSMP.
This item will be agendized again in December 2027.

FISCAL IMPACT: NA
POSSIBLE MOTION: Motion to Adopt Resolution 2022-19 Recertifying the SSMP

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 2022-19
Sanitary Sewer Management Plan as updated for 12-2022



5 V’Q%

@%»5

e RESOLUTION NO. 2022-19

"J-

m—COMMUA,

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT RECERTIFYING THE 2010 SANITARY SEWER MANAGEMENT PLAN (SSMP)
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER NO. 2006-0003- STATEWIDE GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS (WDR)
FOR SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2006 , the State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-
003- Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems was
adopted and implemented ; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the WDR is to develop a regulatory mechanism to provide a
consistent statewide approach for reducing sanitary sewer overflows ($SOs) ; and

WHEREAS, the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements requires preparation
of a Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) with 11 separate elements ; and

WHEREAS, the Board approved the SSMP on February 1, 2018, and must approve in
five-year intervals; and

WHEREAS, the current SSMP must be approved by the governing board for certification
upon its completion.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors for the Helendale
Community Services District has reviewed and adopted the Sanitary Sewer Management Plan
(SSMP) as required by the State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-0003-
statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) for Sanitary Sewer Systems.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services
District at the regular meeting held on this 15" day of December, 2022 by the following vote:

Ayes: -

Noes: L Approved:

Absent: o

Abstain: o

Attest: Henry Spiller, President

Sandy Haas, Secretary



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

In Accordance With
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER NO. 2006-0003-DWQ
STATEWIDE GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
For
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS

WDID 6 SSO 11506
CITY POPULATION 2,500 - 10,000

sERV/

-_5
.
2
&

HELENDAL

4
£




HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SSMP DOCUMENT REVISION LOG

REVISION DATE BY
1. SSMP Adoption 4/4 5,19 CSD Board Resolution
2. Recertification | /1/201 | CSD Board Resolution
3. Recertification 12/15/2022 | CSD Board Resolution

P~ S

£V,

£
»

HELENDALE

mum\o



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

In Accordance With
STATE WATER RESOCURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER NO. 2006-0003-DWQ
STATEWIDE GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
For
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS

WDID 6 SSO 11506

CSD POPULATION: 2,500 - 10,000

QERII;“-Qv

{
- —
]

"HELENRDALE

a

LIHYLSH



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUGCTION. ... cococet e eresccrmssesesisesessse s ssmmsansse s sesesessssesesemsensasessesssnsasses 1

1.0 GOAL i e e st hnr e e e rm e ma e 3
2.0 ORGANIZATION ..o et rn s csmr e e st e s s s et s ene s e ee s e e e e sans 5
3.0 LEGAL AUTHORITY ...ooeeeiiiiiisirenscsnnseneessseeierssessnsseserenssseansessoneanessnsensonns 10
4.0 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM.......... o 12
5.0 DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS..........cccccvvvmem v 15
6.0 OVERFLOW EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN ......cccccoiviciceerceerece v 16
7.0 FATS, OiL AND GREASE CONTROL PROGRAM......c.ccccocievnvvnrnncnreennene 18
8.0 SYSTEM EVALUATION AND CAPADISTRICTASSURANCE PLAN.......... 20
2.0 MONITORING, MEASUREMENT AND PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS ...... 22
10.0 SSMP PROGRAM AUDITS.......cc et rae e e ane s 23
11.0 COMMUNICATION PROGRAM........... e avarroneesiBearnen Cliene i seevans dimans vwavmase 24
APPENDICES:

A. Waste Discharge Requiremenis

8. Staff Contact List

C. LAFCO 2996 — Helendale CSD Formation Sesciuiion

D. Standard Detfails and Notes

E. Overflow Response Forms

F. Fats, Oil, and Grease (FOG) Program Forms

é‘gﬁ_RWpﬁ

HELENDALE



My,

COMMU
LETHLSY
-

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

INTRODUCTION

The Lahontan Region of the State Water Quality Control Board oversees the water
quality in the waters of the State, including the Mojave River. The Helendale CSD
wastewater treatment plant and collsction system are regulated by WDR Board Order
R6V-2018-0015 WDID & B 361111001 (Appendix A). As such, the WWTP does noi
discharge direcily to the Mojave River or other waters of the State. The river accspts
treated effiuent upstream of Helendale frem the VVWRA plant.

Along with the recommendation to the CSD Board to adopt the SSMP, Staff is also
directed to continually update the plan and report back annually to the Board regarding
the District's SSMP status.

SSMP Requirement Background

This SSMP has been prepared in compliance with requirements of the State Water
Resources Controt Board Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ. The State Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) acted at its masting on May 2, 2006, to require all public
wastewater collection system agencies in California with greater than one mile of sewers
to be regulated under General Waste Discharge Requirements (GWDR). The SWRCB
action also mandates the development of an SSMP and the reporting of S30s using the
State's electronic reporting system (CIWQS).

The HCSD SSMP Development Plan and Schedule foliows the GWDR SSMP. Each
section of the Development Plan follows the GWDR reguirements, and is referenced
with the GWDR language applicable to each SSMP section. The Table of Contents for
the SSMP is based on each major element of the SSMP requirements.

Document Organization
This SSMP is intended i meet the requiremenis of the Statewide GWDR. The

organization of this document is consistent with the SWRCB guidelines, including eleven
elements as listed below. Each of these elements ferme a section of this document.

SSMP ELEMENTS

Goal

Organization

Legal Authority

QOperaticn and Mainlenance Program

Design and Performance Provisions

Qverflow Emergancy Response Plan

Fats, Qils and Grease Conirol Program

Systern Evaluation and CapabistrictAssurance Plan
Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Moditications
SSMP Program Audits

SoRNODOTAONS

©

cERV/
q’o

‘HELEMDALE!



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

1. Communication Program
Each element section is organized into sub-sections, as follows:
i.  Description of the SWRCB requirement for that element.

2. ldentification of associated appendix and list of supporting information included in
the appendix.

3. Discussion of the element. The discussion may be split info muitipie sub-sections
depending on length and complexity.

Supporting information is included in an appendix associated with that section, as
applicable. In general, information expecied te require relatively frequent updates (such
as names and phone numbers of staff) are included in appendices, as well as other
supporting information such as forms or schedules.

About The District

Helendale is well known for its high quality of life and beautiful rural atmosphere. The
commuriity, with its popuiation of about 8,000, has been served since 2008 by the HCSD
for s main public services. The Siiver Lakes cornmunity within Helendaie includes a 27-
hole championship goli coursse, two lakes, beaches, parie, an equestrian center, tennis
courts, and miles of scenic landscape.

ELENDALE



"ry

10181810
[ 7]

COMMU

SEWER SYSTEM (FANAGEMENT PLAN

1.0 GOAL

This section identifies goals the Disirict has set for the management, operation and
maintenance of the sewer system, and discusses the role of the SSMP in supporting
these goals. These goals provide focus for District staff to continue high-quality work and
to implement imprcvements in the management of the District's wastewater collection
system.

5.1 Regulatory Requirements for Goal Element
The summarized requirements for the Goal element of the ESMP are as follows:

The goal of the SSMP is io provide & plen and schedule to properly manage,
operate, and maintain il parts of its waslewater collection syster in order to reduce
and nrevent SSOs, as well as fo mitigate any SSOs that occur

1.2 Goal Discussion

It is the mission: of the HCSD, in partnership with the community, to continue to develop
and maintain the aesthetic beauty of the area, while fostering a safe and family oriented
environment. The District is committed to providing excellent customer service,
effectively managing the operation and maintenance of facilities, and matching
expanding needs with a viable financial plan to ensure the continued success of the
District.

Given the vacant land that remains to be developed, and the attractiveness of the
Helendale marketplace, our population of about 5,000 is projected to grow to an
astimated 6,400 by 2020 (SANBAG projection).

1.3 SSMP Goal

The goal of the ESMP is to provide a plan and schedule to properly manage, operate,
and mainigin all parts of the Helendale sanitary sewer system. This will help reduce and
prevent Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSCs), as weli as mitigate any SSOs that do occur.
The main goal of the Helendale SSMP is to minimize and prevent SSOs, and to provide
a complete plan and scheduie by May 2, 2010. Additionally, the SSMP willt help with the
following:

Prevent public health hazards.

Minimize inconveniences by responsibly handiing interruptions in service.

Protect ihe large investment in collection systems by maintaining adequate
capacities and extending useful life.

Prevent unnecessary damage to public and private property.

Use funds available for sewer operations in the most efficient manner.

Convey wastewater to freatment facilities with a minimum of infiltration, inflow and
exfiltration.

Provide adequate capacity to convey peak flows.

N ook W=

5ERWQ%

HELENDALE



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

8. Perform all operations in a safe manner to avoid personal injury and property
damage.

This SSMP supplements and supports the District’s existing Operations & Maintenance
Program and goals by providing high-level consolidated guidelines and procedures for
all aspects of the District’s sewer system management. The SSMP will contribute tc the
proper management of the collection system and assist the District in minimizing the
frequency and impacts of SSOs by providing guidance for appropriate maintenance,
capacity management, and emergency response.

_‘gF.R‘we %

$

.

HELENDALE

flo it
'S



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

2.0 ORGANIZATION

This section identifies the District staff who are responsible for implementing the SSMP
provislons, responding fc SSO events, and meeting the S50 reporting reguirements.
This section a'so includes the dasignation of the Authorized Representative to meet

SWRCB requirements for completing and certifying spill reports.
2.1 Reguiatory Requirements for Organization Element
The summarized requirements for the Orgariization element of the SSMP are as follows:
The collection system agency's SSMP musi identify:
g) The name of the responsible or authorized representative.

b) The names and telephone numbers far management, administrative, and
maintenance positions responsibie for implementing specific measures in the
SSMP program. include lines of authority as shown in an organization chart or
simiar docurnent with a narrative explanation.

¢) The chain of communication for reporiing SSOs, from receipt of a complaint or
other information, including the person responsible for reporting SSOs to the
State and Regional Water Board and other agencies if applicable (such as
County Health Officer, County Environmental Health Agency, Regional Water
Board, and/or State Office of Emergency Services (OES)).

2.2 Element 2 Appendix

Supporting information for Element 2 is included in Appendix B. This appendix includes
the following documents:

1. Staff and agency contact names and phone numbers (updated as
revisions ccour).

2.3 Department Organization

The organization chart for the management. operation, and maintenance of the District's
wastewater collection system is shown on Figure 2-1. The names and phone numbers
of staff filling these positions are included in Appendix B.

HELENDALE



ELENDALE.

SEWER SYSTEM MANGEMENT PLAN

Figure 2-1. Organization Chart of Sewer Staff

EI_ o
[
sy BOARD

B |
L.

GENERAL
. MANAGER |

LEAD
OPERATGR I

OPERATOR I/I!




ggenw%
@

COMMU

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

2.4  Description of General Responsibilities

CSD Board: Approves the Sewer Department budgets and gives genaeral direction to the
General Manager relative to the department's operations and representation of the CSD.

General Manager: Works under the broad policy guidance and direction of the CSD
Board. Prepares and controls depariment budget. Develops and oversees department
programs, including sewer operations and the Capital Improvement Program.
Supervises the Sewer Superintendent.

Sewer Superintendent/Senior Operator: Flans, organizes, and supervises the
maintenance and repair of District public works infrastructure, including the WWTP and
tewers. Reviews plans and specifications for sewer and cther projects, and makes
recommendations regsrding maintenance, construction, and operations aspects.
Supervises and personally conducts cleaning and repair of sewer mains and lines and
the location and raising of manholes. Trains crew members in specific tasks, as needed,
including collection system preventive maintenance and SSO response. Checks work of
assigned crew. Lays cut and schedules work for crew. Confers with contractors,
engineers, and members of the general public on construction and maintenance
probiems and procedures.

Maintenance Operator; Works as a member of a field maintenance crew. Cleans,
unplugs, and repairs sewer lines. Locates and raises manholes. Operates power
equipment including hydraulic cleaning truck and sewer rodder.

The Senior Operator and two Maintenance Operators coordinate together to maie up
one or two-person sewer cleaning teams, At all times one crew member is designated
as the Initial Responder. Typically one person coordinates with a contracted flush truck
to conduct the scheduled sewer cleaning cycle, . The other two-person team is
responsible for 30-, 60-, 90-day cleaning as needed, zone cleaning (cyclic), follow-up
cleaning, supplemental cleaning and CCTV of sewer mains. The initial responder also
performs Underground Service Alerts (USAs), lift station inspections and sewer lateral
radding.

2.5  Authorized Representative

The District’s authorized representative in alt wastewster collection system matters is the
Sewer Superintendent. The Superintendent is authorized to certify slecironic spill reports
submitted to the SWRCB, and is authorized to submit SSO reports to the appropriate
government agencies.

LOIH LSy
-

HELENDALE



(Y

L7

CONMMU

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

2,6 Responsibility for SSRP Implementation

The General Manger of HCSD is responsible for implementing and maintaining all
elements of this SSMP.

2.7 SSO Reporting Chain of Communication

Figure 2-2 contains a flowchart depicting the chain of communication for responding io
and reporting SSOs, from observation of an SSO to reporting the SSO o the appropriate
regulatory agencies. Table 2-1 lists contact phone numbers for the parties included in
the chain of communication. The SSO Reporting process is described in more detail in
Section 6; Overflow Emergency Response Plan.

Table 2-1. Contact Numbers for SSO Chain of Communication

CONTACT PHONE (760)

District Office 951-0006
Sheriff Department (Victorvilie Station) 245-4211
Fire District, Station 4 245-5022
General Manager 951-0006
Sewer Superintendent (Alex Aviles) 221-1661
Sewer On-Call Personnel (General) 951-0006
Maintenance Operator (Bill kuhimann}) 221-3365
Maintenance Operator (

Alex Creason) |  552-5019

RV,
-]

LN LSY
&0

HELENDALE



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

Figure 2-2. Chain of Communication

EVENT | OFFICE !
OBSERVER /

WASTEWATER
| EMERGENCY
PERSONMEI |

WASTEWATER

MANAGER

CIwas
LAHONTAN
RWQOCB

1oR1sI0

HELENDALE’



&

§ : 5

=
8

b

Lomisa®

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

3.0 LEGAL AUTHORITY

This section describes the legal authority to implement the SSMP plans and procedures.

31 Regulatory Requirements for Legal Authority Element
The summarized requirements for the Organization element of the SSMP are as follows:

Each Enrolise must demonstrate, through sanitary sewer system use ordinances, service
agreements, or other legatly binding procedures, that it possesses the necessary fegal
authority to:
a; Frevent illicit discharges info its sanitary sewer system, including I/l from satellite
wastewater colfection systems and laterals, stormwater, unauthorized debris, elc.
b) Require proper design and construction of sewers and connections
¢) Ensure access for maintenarice, inspection and repairs to publicly owned portions
of laterals
d) Limit the discharge of fats, oil and grease (FOG) and other debris that may cause
blockages
e) Enforce violations of fts sewer ordinances

3.2 Element 3 Appendix

Supporting information for Element 3 is included in Appendix C. This appendix includes
the following documents:

1. LAFCO 2996 — Helendale CSD Formation Resolution

3.3 Legal Authority

The HCSD was formed by LAFCO Action 2086 on June 21, 2006. The formation was
based on County of San Bernardino LAFCO Resolution 2927, which transferred the
functions of the County CSA 70 that was operating public facilities to the newly formed
District.

The HCSD sanitary sewer system was originally operated by the County of San
Bernarcino CSA 70. Al of the existing codified and uncodified County ordinances
relating to CSA 70 are adopted by the District by referance. These ordinances are the
main vehicle for the District to regulate sewer use and wastewater discharges.

GERVIn

2

10

ELENDALE,



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

4.0 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

This section describes the District’s program to operate and maintain the sewer system,
manage engineering data and capacity assurance, and provide training programs.

4.1 Reguilatory Requirements for Operation & Maintenance Element

The summarized requirements for the Operation & Maintenance element of the SSMP
are as follows:

a) Maintain an up-to-daie map of the sanitary sewer system, showing all gravity line
segments and manholes, pumping facilities, pressure pipes and vaives, and
applicable stormwater conveyance facilities.

b) Describe routine preventive operation and maintenaice activities by staff and
contractors, including a system for scheduling regular maintenance and cleaning
of the sanitary sewer system with more frequent cleaning and maintenarce
targeted at known problem areas. The Preventative Maintenance (PM) program
should have a system to document scheduled and conducted activities, such as
work orders.

c) Develop a rehabilitation and replacement plan to identify and prioritize system
deficiencies and implement short-ferm and fong-term rehabilitation #ctions to
address each deficiency. The program should include regular visual and TV
inspections of manholes and sewer pipes, and a system for ranking the condition
of sewer pipes and scheduling rehabiiitation. Rehabilitation and replacement
shouid fouus on sewer pipes that are at risk of collapse or prone to more frequent
blockages due to pipe defects. Finally, the rehabilitation and replacement plan
should include a capital improvement plan that addresses proper management
and protection of the infrastructure assets. The pian shall include a time schedule
for implementing the short- and fong-term plans plus a schedule for developing
the funds needed for the capital improvement plan.

d) Provide training on a regular basis for siaff in sanitary sewer system operations
and maintenance, and require contractors to be appropriately trained.

e) Provide equipment and replacement part inveniories. including identification of
critical replacement parts.
4.2

Operation and Maintenance Program

The DISTRICT is charged with providing adequate operation and maintenance of sewer
system facilities and equipment. The District has developed basic procedures to

gERV,

&

1"

COMMUR,,

LOHLS10

HELENDAL

l



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

respond o varicus incidents such as inierior plumbing issues, sewer back-ups, odors, lift
siation problems, and spill response.

A. Sewer System fiap

The District maintains a Sewer Map Bonk that includes detailed graphical data of all
manholes, pipelines, cleanouts, force mains, liff stations, and private systems.

B. Routine Maintenance

The routine cleaning of the District's sewer reaches is logged in the Daily Activity Logs,
and documented in the Sewer Map Book. Approximately 3-4 miles of sewer are
cleaned sach year, resufting in about a three-year cycle to clean the entire system (~ 27
miles).

More frequent cleaning and maintenance is targeted at known problem areas, called "hot
spots” in the District O&M Program.

As part of the preventative maintenance program, observations related to grease build-
up, sags and othar probiems are tracked by *he District. The Sewer Department then
senducts further investigations as wamanted to determine the cause of iha identified
problem. Enforcement and other aclions ralating to correcting probiems are coordinated
with the General Manager.

€. Rehabilitation and Repiacement Program

The entire sewer system is cotv'ed every 10 year cycls by cetving roughiy 10% each
year.. The CCTV program identified probiem reacties, and the Districi's Annual budget
includes repairs of observed problems. Ta conduct these repairs, tne District has on-call
agreements with contractors that are used to address problems in order of severity and
potential to cause an SSO.

The CIP budget for sewer system repairs and rehabiiitation, based on needs identified in
the 2009 CCTV prograrm, is determined annually. An example is the $160,000 project to
reduce I/l in a reach of 30-inch sewer main by Insituform lining, completed in February
2010. The annual Operations & Maintenance budget also includes a line item for routine
repairs.

£ 2
4 3 12
§ﬁ g

HELENDALE



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

D. Staff Training

District siaff participate in the certification program for operators, Grades ! through V.
The District provides routine technical, job skills, and safety training for its staff.
Contractors’ staff are also required to provide evidence of appropriate training.

The District has developed an SSO Response Training program for all collection system
maintenance workers, and has also developed fraining programs and standard operating
procedures for line cleaning, vactor truck operation, sewer grit rernoval and dumping,
pump station operation and maintenance, and other related tasks.

Technical iraining and supporting resources are maintained by the District, and all
records and documentation are avaiiable for review.

E. Faclilities and Equipment Management

The District utilizes workorder software for on-going preventative and corrective
maintenance. Sewer system assets that have scheduled or emergency maintenance
aclivities are tracked to ensure that adequate operations are maintained. Work orders

and repairs are also tracked in the program

Available O&M manuals for the District’s lift stations are located in the WWTP office.
The Sewer Superintiendent is responsible for these documents, and has assigned
management of the daily operations to the Senior Operator and the other Operators,

sERVIn

b;
Pt

COMMUN,
1oRa1210 %

M-

HELENDAL

13



i‘l[;.}_

HELENDAL

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLARN

5.0 DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS

This section describes the design and consiruction standards that the District utitizes for
hew sanitary sewer infrastructure, and the procedures and standards for inspzction and
testing of facilities. These provisions also apply to system repair or rehabilitation.

5.1 Regulatory Requirements for Design & Performance Standards Element

The summarized requiremenis for the Design & Performance Provisions element of the
SSMP are as follows:

a) Design and construction standards and specifications for the instaliation of new
sanitary sewer systerns, pump siations and other appurtenances; andg for the
rehabilitation and repair of axisting sanitary sewer systems; and

k) Procedures and standerds for inspecting and tesfing the installation of new sewers,
pumps, and other appurtenances and for rehabifitation and repair projects.

5.Z Element & Appendix

Supperting information for Element § is inciuded in Appendix D. This appendix includes
the follow'ng documents:

. HCSD Standard Details and Notes {adopted from County CSA 70 details)

£.3 Design & Performance Standards

The District utilizes the Greenbook Standard Specifications and details fo regulate sewer
design and constructiocn. The Disirict will also continue to utilize in-place provisions
included in CSA 70 ordinances, and employ current procedures.

sERVn

@
2
3 14
3

m



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

6.0 OVERFLOW EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

This section summarizes the response plan and procedures followed by the District in
the event of sanitary sewer overflows or other emergenicies relating to the sewer system.

6.1 Regulatory Requirements for Overflow Emergency Response Element

The summarized requirements for the Overflow Emergency Response Pian element of
the SSMP are as follows:

Each Enrollee shall develop and implement an overflow emergency response plan that
identifies measures {o protect public health and the environment. At a minimum, this
plan must include the following:

a) Proper notification procedures 3o that the primary respondsrs and regulatory
agencies are informed of ali $80s in a timely manner.

b) A program o ensure an appropriate response ic all overflows,

¢) Proceduras to ensure prompt notification to appropriate regulatory agencies and other
potentiaffy affected entitics {e.g. heaith agencies, Regional Waler Boards, water
suppliers, eic,) of ali S80s that potentially affect publiv haalth or reach the waters of
the State in accordance with the MRP. All 880s shall be reported in accordance with
this MRP, the Caiiforriia Water Code, other State Law, and other applicable Regional
Water Board WDRs or NPDES permif requirements. The SSMP should identify the
officials whe will receive immediste nolification.

d) Procadures to ensure that appropriate staff and confracior personnel are aware of
and follow the Emergency Response Flan and are appropriately trained.

e) Pracedures fo address emergency oparalions, such as ireffic and crowd coritrof and
other necessary response aclivities.

f} A program fo ensure that all reasonable steps are taken fo contain and prevent the
discharge of untreated and partiaily treated wastewater to walters of the United
States and to minimize or carrect any adiverse impact on the environment resulting
from the SS0s, including such accelerated or additional monitoring as may be
necessary {o determine the nature and impact of the discharge.

3.2 Element 6 Appendix

Supporting information for Element 6 is included in Appendix E. This appendix includes
the following documents:

1. Overflow Response Forms

£
.ol *
84 g

| HELENDALE,



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

6.3  Qverflow Emergency Response Plan
Notification Procedures

The Chain of Communication shown in Figure 2-2 indicates the notification procedurss
to natify primary responders of ail SSOs in a timely manner. The notification includes
the state and local agencies that need to be informed of events.

The District also maintains an “On-Call Program® (see Appendix C) for timely rasponse
to spills and other emergencies. Coliection system staff are trained in this plan and are
able to respond to a spill in less than an hour from the first call.

Response Procedures

The District maintains procedures to investigate and assist in mitigation of varicus types
of potential SSO discharges from the District system, as well as special circumstances
inclucing:

«  Originating on private property
«  Potentially reaching storm drains or channels
» Those potentially impacting public health cr tha environment

Standard department procedures provide for rapid mobilization, diagnasis, containment,
reporting, and relief of the SSO cause. As needed, department staff and contractors
utilize standard procedures 1o provide emergency operations such as traffic and crowd
control and other emergency response activities.

Spill Prevention
The Operations & Maintenance Program followed by the District effectively prevents
S8C’s that could reascniably be anticipated. Physical situations in the collection system

that become apparent after an S50 event are repaired or rectified as soon as
praclicable.

-}
gj%g 16
Sl §

HELENDALE |



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMEMT PLAN

7.0 FATS, OIL AND GREASE CONTROL PROGRAM

This section discusses the FOG control program admiriistered by the District to prevent
discharges to the sewer system, and provide alternate methods of disposal.

7.1 Regulatory Requirements for FOG Control Program Element

The summarized requirements for the FOG Control Program siement of the SSMP are
as follows:

Each Enrollee shalf evaluate its service area fo determine whether a FOG controf
program is needed. If an Enrcllee determines that a FOG program is not needed, the
Enrallee must provide justification for why it is not needad. if FOG is found to be a
proklem, the Enrollee must prepare and implement a FOG source control program to
reduce the amount of these substanices discharged lo the sanitary sewer sysfem. This
plan shalf include the following as appropriate:

a) An implementation plan and schedule for a public education oufreach program that
promotes proper disposal of FOG.

bj A plan and schedule for the disposal of FOG generated within the sanitary sewer
system service area. This may include a list of acceptable disposal facilities and/or
additional facilities needed to adequately dispose of FOG generated within a sanitary
sewer system service area.

£) The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and identify measures to
prevent S80s and blockages caused by FOG.

d) Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps or interceplors}, design
standards for the removal devices, maintenance requirements, BMP requirements,
record keeping and reporting requirements.

e) Authority to inspect grease producing fachities. enforcement autherities. and whether
the Enroliee has sufficient staff to inspect and enforce the FOG ordinance.

f) An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to FOG blockages and
establishment of a cleaning maintenance schedule for each section.

g) Deveioprnent and implementation of source control measures for ail sources of FOG
discharged to the sanitary sewer system for each section identified in (f) above.

7.2 Element 7 Appendix

Supporting informaticn for Element 7 is included in Appendix F. This appendix includes
the following documents:

. Fats, Oil, and Grease (FOG) Program Forms
7.3  FOG Control Program

The District controls FOG through the Operations & Maintenance Program, with special
attention by Hot Spet responses.

%
23 17
ﬁﬁ



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

The District has the lsgal authority to prohibit discharges to the system, and as
documented in the Operations & Maintenance Program the District implements
measures to prevent SSOs caused by fats, oils, or grease blockages.

The District sewer ordinance (CSA 70) inchudes specific requiremenits to install grease
removal devices (traps or interceptors), the design requirements, and record keeping
and reporting requirements. The ordinance gives the District authority to ingpect grease-
producing facilities. The County Depariment of Public Health aiso regulates and
inspects internal grease trap units.

The Hot Spot program identifies sections of the sewer system subject to grease
biockages, and establishes a cleaning and maintenance schedule for each of these
reaches. Recurring conditions that can be attributed to FOG are investigated and
mitigated.

%
2
%3 18
3



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

8.0 SYSTEM EVALUATION AND CAPACITY ASSURANCE
PLAN

This section summarizes the steps the District takes to routinely evaluate the sewer
system and capacity, and to plan for needed upgrades and repairs.

8.1  Regulatory Requirements for System Evaluation & Capacity Assurance Plan
Element

The summarized requirements for the System Evaluation & Capacity Assurance Plan
element of the SSMP are as follows:

The Enrollee shall prepare and implement a cagital improvement plan (CIP) that will
provide hydraulic capacity of key sanitary sewer system elements for dry weather peak
flow conditions, as well as the appropriate design storm or wet weather event. At a
minimum, the plan must inciude:

a) Evaluation: Actions needed to evaluate those portions cf the sanitary sewer system
that are experiencing or contributing to an SSO discharge caused by hydraulic
deficizncy. The evaluation must provide estimates of peak flows (including flows from
S80s that escape from the sysiem) associated with conditions simitar to those
causing ovsrilow events, estimates of the capacity of key system components,
hydraulic deficiencies (including components of the system with limifing capacity)
and the tajor sources that contribute to the peak ticws associaied with overflow
events;

b) Design Criteria: \Where design criteria do not exist ¢r are deficient, underiake the
evaluation identified in (a) above ic establish appropriate design criteria; and

¢} Capacity Enhancement Measures: The steps needed to establish a short- and long-
term CIP to address identified hydraulic deficiencies, including priaritization,
alternatives anelysis, and schedulss, The CIP may include increases in pipe size, Il
reduction progrermns, increases and redundaricy in pumping capacily, end storage
faciiities. The CIF shall include an implementation schedule and shsil identify
sources of funding.

d) Schedule: The Enrollee shall develop a schedule of completion dates for all portions
of the capital improvement program developed in (a)-(c) above. This schedule shall
be reviewed and updated consistent with the SSMP review and update
requirements.

82  System Evaluation & Capacity Assurance Plan

The physical repair and rehabilitation needs of the District system are periodically
determined through the CCTV inspection and associated condition assessment of
selected pipelines. As part of the District Wastewater Master Plan (latest revision
February 2002), a hydraulic anaiysis spreadsheet of the collection system has been
developed to determine capacity requirements. The hydraulic data were utilized to
determine existing dry and wet weather system capacity and identify deficiencies in the

o
g %
g 5 19
u ¥,

HELENDALE



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT FLAN

system and improverents that will be necessary prior to adding significant source flow to
the system. The analysis and assessment resuits were utilized to develop a shert and
lang-term CiP for capacity enhancement. It is noted that the District is not currentiy
experiencing capacity re'ated problems.

The CIP developed by the District includes line items, based on improvement needs
identified in the CCTV program, fo be constructed by coniractors. Signfficant repairs or
facility upgrade needs that are identified during cleaning and maintenance activities are
included as separate line items. Hot spot repairs and similar activities are funded in the
a2nnual O&M budget.

[«)
=
Vo .
3 8

HELERDALE



SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

9.0 MONITORING, MEASUREMENT AND PROGRAM
MODIFICATIONS

This section discusses the District's ongoing monitoring activities to maintain information
needed to regulate SSMF activities, and measure the effectiveness of the programs.
Appropriate program modifications will be identified.

9.1 Regulatory Requirements for Monitoring, Measurement & Program
Modifications Element

The summarized recuirements for the Monitoring, Measurement & Program
Modifications element of the SSMP are as follows:

al Maintain relevant information that can be used to establish and prioritize appropriate
SSMF activities;

b) Mcaifor the implementation and, where appropriate, measure the effectiveness of
each element of ithe SSMP;

¢) Assess the success of the preventative maintenance program:;

d) Update program elemsnts, as aopropriate, based on monitoring or performance
evaluations; and

&) Identify and illustrate SSO trends. including: frequency, location, and volume

8.2  Monitoring, Measurement & Program Modifications

The District maintains complete records of all S50's, hot spots, and ather sewer system
maintenance and repair activities, as described in Sections 4 and 8. The Disirict maintains
preventative mainienance records in the workorder system. Examples of the District’s
tracking and reperiing forms are included in Appendices © and F.

The District last completed systern-wide CCTV inspections in 2009, and conducts an
arnual cleaning program that covers the entire system on a three-year rotation. These
programs, aleng with the hot spet identification, aliow ihe District to continuously monitor
and update records on the condition of the sewers.

The C8C maintains a list of all food service establishments that are regulated by the

District. Inspections and other activities are documented by the Department, and hot spot
and enforcemerit issuas are coordinaied with the District staff.

2
=
E?g 21
5 8

HELENDALE



SEWER SYSTENM MANAGEMENT PLAN

10.0 SSMP PROGRAM AUDITS

This section discusses the methods that the District will employ tc audit the SSMP
Programn.

16.1 Regulatory Requirements for SSMP Program Audits Element

The summarized requirements for the SSMP Program Audits elemant of the SSMP are
as follows:

As part of the SSMP, the Enrcliee shall conduct periodic internal audits, appropriate fo
the size of the system and the number of 530s. At a minimum, these audilts must ocolr
svery two years and a report must be prepared end kept on file. Thig audif shall focus on
evaluating the effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrcllee’s compliance with the SSMP
requirements identified in this subsection (D. 13), inciuding identification of any
deficiencies in the SSMP and steps lo correct them.

10.2 SSMP Program Audits

The Sewer Department and General Manager will conduct an arnnual audit of the SSMP
Program, prior to the annual update report to the District Board (see Section 11). ltis
anticipated that this meeting will be in November of each year, so that the District is
prepared for the following wet weather season.

The annua! audit will focus on the effectiveness of the sewer system operations and
compliance status, and include the following:

Any revisions made to the SSMP since the last audit

Sewer systein construction completed diring the past year

Summary of SSO's reported

Observed sewer system or SSMP deficiencies

Strategies to correct deficiencies

Description of proposed capital improvement and operations improverments
during the next year

u @w s 8 "R

[+]
ﬁ% -
I

JELENDAL



SEWER SYSTEN MANAGEMENT PLAN

11.0 COMMUNICATION PROGRAM

This section discusses the District’s communication program to keep the public and other
District departments apprised of SSMP status.

111 Regulatory Requirements for Communication Program Element

The summarized reguirements for the Communication Program element of the SSMP
are as follows:

The Enrollee shall communicate on a reguler basis with the public on the development,
implementslion, and performance of its SSP. The communication system shall provide
the pulilic the opportunily io provide input to the Enroiee as the program is developed
and implemented. The Enrollee shall also creats a plan of communication with systems
that are tributary and/or sateliite to the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system.

11.2 Communications Program

The SSKMP process was inifially discussed in a public forum at the Aprii 15, 2010 District
Board meeting, where the plan was adopted. An annual update repcrt will be provided
to the District Board in public forum by the General Manager. Public input received at
District Board meelings will be addressed, and the SSMP revised as appropriate.

The Sewer Department communicates on & regular basis with the General Manager
regarding sewer system operations topics, as they arise.

é‘:‘%ERv’Q‘E\

- HELENDALE



APPENDIX A

Waste Discharge Requirements



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
LAHONTAN REGION

BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
WDID NO. 6B361111001

REVISED WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR

HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SILVER LAKES WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

San Bernardino County

The California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Lahontan Region {Water Board)
finds:

1.

Discharger

The Helendale Community Services District provides domestic wastewater
collection and treatment services for the Siiver Lakes planned unit development
and adjacent areas west of the Mojave River. For purposes of this Board Order
(Order), Helendale Community Services District is referred to as the “"Discharger.”

Facility

The Facility is the Discharger's system of domestic wastewater coilection,

transpor, treatment, and disposal works. The Faciiity is a publicly owned treatment
works (POTW), as defined under the federal Clean Water Act. As a POTW, the
Discharger must manage biosolids in compliance with federal regulations.

In this Order, the treatment works of the Facility are called the “ireatment piant,”
and the “treatment plant site” consists of the treatment plant and existing discharge
sites. The treatment plant design flow is 1.2 million galions per day.

Existing Orders

a  OnJune 13, 2001, the Water Board adopted Board Order No. 8-01-39 for the
Facility. This Order repiaces Board Order No. 6-01-39.

b. Sanitary sewer system overflows are regulated under this Order and as an
enrollee under the State Water Quality Control Board (State Water Board)
Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer
Systems, Order No. 2008-0003-DWQ (WDID No. §SS011508, CW-705097).

¢. The Discharger has filed a Notice of Non-Applicability (NONA) in accordance
with the State Water Board’s General Permit for Storm Water Discharges



HELENDALE CSD -2- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

Associated with Industrial Activities, Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ, certifying that
no discharge occurs from the Facility. The NONA requires that the Facility be
engineered and constructed to have contained the maximum historic
precipitation event (or series of events) using the precipitation data collected
from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Agency's website (or other nearby
precipitation data available from other government agencies) so that there will
be no discharge of industrial storm water to waters of the United States. As
part of this process, the Discharger must submit a Technical Report
demonstrating that the Facility meets the eligibility requirements, signed by a
California licensed professional engineer. These submittals were made
through the State Water Board's Storm Water Multi-Application and Reporting
Tracking System (SMARTS).

4. Order History

The Water Board previously adopted waste discharge requirements for the Facility
under Board Order No. 6-90-13, which was adopted on February 8, 1520. The
Water Beard adopted 2mended Board Order No. 6-80-13A1 on August 11, 1994, to
eliminate a requirement for tertiary treatment since a proposed golf course
reclamation project was canceled. The Water Board adopted amended Board
Order No. 6-90-13A2 on September 9, 1999, at the Discharger's request, o
authorize the discharge of recycled, un-disinfected, secondary-level treated
wastewater eftluent to a sod farm water recyciing irrigation site; to propose adjacent
animal fodder/fiber crop pastureffield; and to allow for future construction of an
additional percolation pond. On June 13, 2001, the Water Board adopted Board
Order No. 6-01-39 for the Facility.

5. Reason for Action

The reasons, or objectives, for this action are to achieve and verify agronomic rates
for recycled water application and approve the addition of 35 acres of expanded
agricultural fields for recycled water application to existing fields. The Order
includes a time schedule to implement the Phase 1 expanded agricultural site. The
Monitoring and Reporting Program includes a time schedule order to provide
sufficient monitoring of discharges to the percolation ponds and the expanded
agricultural site and to monitor for any potential effects on groundwater.

6. Discharge

Non-disinfected secondary effluent is discharged to two percolation ponds and a
60-acre agricuitural field (existing). In the future, effluent will also be discharged to
the 35-acre agricultural sites (expanded). Discharges of sludge occur to the
biosolids drying beds, which are then disposed of offsite.



HELENDALE CSD -3- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

7.

8.

Authorized Discharge Location

The size of the treatment plant site is 80 acres, with 20 acres for treatment facilities
and 80 acres for feed crop. An additional 35 acres of feed crops will be added for a
total of 85 acres of agricultural fields for wastewater reuse. The legal description of
the treatment plant site is the western half of the northwestern quarter of Section
20, Township 8 North (T8N), Range 4 West (R4W), San Bernardino Baseline and
Meridian (SBB&M). Attached to this Order are a schematic of the treatment
processes (Attachment A), maps showing the treatment plant site (Attachment B),
well and reuse area locations (Attachment C), and the receiving groundwater basin
(Attachmient D).

Report of Waste Discharge

The Discharger submitted a complete revised Report of Waste Discharge. The
Report of Waste Discharge documents include the following:

» Report of Waste Discharge for Helendale CSD Wastewater Treatment
Plant, September 23, 2015. This document includes a Form 200.

« Helendale Wastewater Treatment Piant Water Quality Impact Analysis,
dated October 21, 2015.

* Repert of Waste Discharge Addendum and Revised Water Quality Impact
Analysis for the Helendale CSD Wastewater Treatment Plant, dated
January 20, 20186.

Helendale CSD Antidegradation Cverview, dated September 12, 2018.

o Email from the Discharger's corsuitant, Larry Watker and Associates
(LWA), discussing options for an expanded monitoring well network to
address expanded agricuiture operations, dated February 2, 2017

Ireatment Plant and Discharge Description

The treatment plant is a secondary treatment facility employing a trickling filter.

The plant has redundant primary and secondary clarifiers and trickling filters. Final
effluent is measured and discharged into two percelation ponds. Chiorine is no
longer used to disinfect effluent; however effiuent still flows through the chlorine
contact chamber. Seme of the final effluent is pumped from the percolation ponds
to irrigate 80 acres of feed crop. The remaining final effluent percolates through the
soil beneath the ponds and recharges groundwater.

Biosolids consisting of sludge and scum from the primary and secondary clarifiers
are pumped to the aerobic digester for stabilization. Following aerobic digestion,
the biosolids are dewatered in 12 solar drying beds that have synthetic plastic
liners. Ali the drying beds have sludge liquid collection drains. Liquids drained



HELENDALE CSD -4- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B351111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

10.

1.

from each drying bed are combined into a common line and sent to the trickling
filter pump station.

Dewatered biosolids are stored in bins and hauled to Liberty Composting in
Bakersfield or other authorized disposal locations. Grit and screenings from the
headworks are disposed into a locai authorized lined Class Il landfill. The
Discharger treats an average of 172 million galions (Mgal) of wastewater each year
(0.47 miilion galions per day [mgd). The Discharger's 2010 California Code of
Regulations (CCR), title 22, Engineering Report and Farm Management Plan
estimated a total annual recharge value of 27 Mgal (0.075 mgd based on an
irrigation water balance and average pond recharge rate from 2005 to 2008
(Helendale CSD, 2010).

Based on 2012 — 2014 data, the annual effluent water baiance is shown in the
following table.

Location Amount (Mgal) Percent
Percolation pond groundwater infiltration s 27.0 15.7%
Pereolation pend evaporation 132 7.7%
Crop irrigation 131.8 76.6%
Annual wastewater volume 172.0 i00.0% |

Proposed Projects

The Discharger proposes two projects to address disposal of the wastewater
effluent. The names and descriptions of each project are presented below.

a. Phase 1, Agriculture Site Expansion project. In Phase 1, the current crop
irrigation area of €0 acres, located on the wastewater treatment facility site, will
be increased by 35 acres to include the Discharger-owned land south of the
wastewater treatment facility (Attachment C). Upon completion of the Phase 1
project, the total irrigation area will be 95 acres. The intent of the proposed
new use area is to apply effluent near the crop agronomic rate and minimize
the amount of effluent that goes to groundwater.

b. Phase 2, Tertiary Upgrade project. The Discharger is considering a project
upgrade to produce disinfected tertiary recycled water. The objective of the
project is to supply recycled water where possible to reduce reliance on
existing groundwater supplies. This Order does not include requirements for
this project.

Time Schedule
As provided in California Water Code (CWC), section 13263(c), this Order specifies

a time schedule for the Discharger's proposed agriculture site expansion project to
ensure water quality is protected by achieving agronomic application rates for



HELENDALE CSD -5- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO, 6B3611141001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

12.

13.

wastewater re-use or disposal in a timely manner. A time schedule is not included
in this Order for the tertiary upgrade project because the project is not necessary
for water quality protection and is contingent on the Discharger's completion of a
financial feasibility study of the project.

Regquiation of Recycled Water

The Discharger uses treated wastewater to grow crops that are harvested and
transported offsite for use. This includes Ccrops grown on the existing 60-acre site
and the planned 35-acre expansion site, for a total of 95 acres. Therefore, the
entire 95-acre site must be covered under an approved fitle 22 Engineering Report.
This Order contains a requirement that reuse at the 35-acre expansion site is
conditioned upon the Executive Officer's acceptance of the CCR's, title 22
Engineering Report and State Water Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW)
recommendations on the Engineering Report.

in the previous Order, the Water Board considered the recycled water use on the
existing 60-acre site exempt from obtaining water recycling requirements pursuant
to CCR, titie 22, section 60303, because the use adjacent to the treatment plant
occurred on land owned by the Discharger. DDW has recently clarified that this
exemption appiies only to operational uses of recycled water at a treatment plant
site and not for crop growing activities. However, the Water Board has determined
that recycied water use on the existing 6G-acre site may continue because this
Order incorporates a simitar leve! of controls as DDW is expected to recommend at
the planned 35-acre site.

This Order requires the Engineering Report submitted for the planned 35-acre
expansion area to address and include the existing 60-acre area for the full 95-acre
area. Should DDW recommend additional controls, the Discharger may be asked
to provide an amended reuse plan for Executive Officer acceptance. If needed, the
Executive Officer may amend the Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP).

To proceed with the Phase 2 tertiary upgrade project, the Discharger must:

*  Submit a separate or revised Engineering Report to DDW and the
Water Board;

*  Obtain recycled water requirements for production and use; or

°  Enroll in the State Board’s Water Reclamation Requirements for Recycled
Water Use, Order WQ 2016-0068-DDW.

Authorized Discharge Site and Recycled Water Sites

a. This Order authorizes the Discharger to discharge waste to the two existing
percolation ponds and the existing 60-acre agriculture areas at the treatment
plant site.



HELENDALE CSD
SILVER LAKES

-6- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

WDID NO. 6B361111001

b. Once the Discharger completes the Phase 1 agriculture site expansion project
and the Executive Officer accepts the Engineering Report following DDW's
review, the Executive Officer can make a determination that the discharge of
waste to the expanded 35-acre agriculture site can ocecur under the
requirements of this Order. The location of the expanded agricuftural reuse
site, as well as discharge locations, are shown on Attachment C.

14. Expanded Agriculture Site Compliance Groundwater Monitoring Wells

There are currently four monitoring wells located at the treatment plant owned by
Helendale CSD. Three United States Geological Survey (USGS) wells are also
located in the vicinity of the plant and are multi-screened wells. The MRP requires
that the Discharger include groundwater tevels from the shallowest screened
interval of the USGS wells for groundwater contouring. These wells are listed in

the table halow.

Discharger Welis Screen Length (ft) Total Depth (ft) |
8N4W20E01 (MW-1) 45 _unknown
8N4W20E02 (MW-2) 50 180 ]

____8N4W20D01 (MW-3) 50 N 130 ]
{__BN4W20ODC2 (MW-4) ) L 130 !
; USGS Welils to be Used Screan Length (ft) Depth of Shallow Screen

‘ for Groundwater interval below ground
| _Contouring® | surface (f) i
i BN4W29E0E 10 _30-40
L. BN4W21M04 10 36-40
fom..— BNAW1EGO4 20 8C- 100 |
] BN4W20Q11 20 30-50 |

* Note that only the shallowest screen intarval of sach USGS well is. included; the deeper intervais
are not fo be used for groundwater contouring for this site.

This Order requires the Discharger to expand the groundwater monitoring network
around the treatment plant and the expanded agriculture site. For each well, the
Discharger must determine the background water quality from a statistically
significant number of independent sampling events (at least eight). Background
water quality sampling must occur before effluent is discharged at the expanded
agriculture site. These data will be used to estabiish pre-discharge background
water quality conditions in groundwater. This Order includes requirements for well

instaitation and determination of background water
effluent at the expanded site. Additionally,

quality before discharge of the
this Order requires the Discharger to

ensure agronomic rates are achieved at both irrigation sites.

18. Agronomic Rates

The Discharger provided water irrigation and nitragen balance calculations for
agriculture use at the treatment plant site and the expanded agriculture site. The
calculations show that effluent can be applied to crops, primarily aifaifa, at



HELENDALE CSD -7- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDING COUNTY

16.

17.

18.

18,

20.

néar-agronomic rates. Seasonal and month-to-month fluctuations in climate and
actual crop demand for the use of water show that with the addition of the
expanded agricultural site, the Discharger applies sffluent slightly above agronomic
rates in the winter. With use of the expanded agricultural site, the Discharger will
improve irrigation site nitrogen removal over existing practices and achieve or be
below agronomic rates.

Effiuent Limitations

The Discharger's treatment plant produces secondary treated wastewater. For this
reason, the Water Board selects the federal secondary treatment standards as the
effiuent limitations for the discharge. Achieving ciose to the Crop agronomic rate
precludes the need to establish a nitrogen effluent limitatior;.

Receiving Water

The receiving water is groundwater within the Middle Mojave River Valley
groundwater basin (California Department of Water Resources Groundwater
Basin 8-41),

Lahontan Basin Plan

The Water Board adopted a Water Quality Control Pian for the Lahontan Region
{Basin Plan}), which became effective on March 31, 1995. Subsequent
amendments o the Basin Plan have been adopted. This Order implements the
Basin Pian, as amended.

Beneficial Uses

The beneficial uses of the receiving groundwater are the foliowing:

*  Municipal and domestic supply (MUN),
*  Agricultural supply (AGR),

¢ industrial service supply (IND),

*  Freshwater replenishment (FRSH), and
*  Aquaculture (AQUA).

Geology and Hvdrogeoiogy

The geological and hydrogeological features that affect the requirements cf this
Order are the following:

a. The treatment plant site lies above the floodplain aquifer of the Middle Mojave
River Valley groundwater hasin. The floodplain aquifer is comprised of Mojave



HELENDALE CSD - 8- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER 1.LAKES WDID NO, 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

River fluvial deposits. Transmissivity values range from 1,000 to 60,000
square feet per day.

b. The northwest-to-southeast-trending Helendale fauit intersects the northeast
corner of the treatment plant site. The fault is important because the Mojave
Water Agency defines this fault as the groundwater flow boundary in the deep
zones between the Alto and Centro water management subareas and may
influence both groundwater flow and quality.

21. Receiving Water Quality

The 2012 to 2017 range of groundwater depths, total dissoived solids (TDS)
concentrations, and nitrate-nitrogen concentrations at each of the treatment plant
site's compliance groundwater monitoring wells, are presented in the following
table:

Well | Range TDS Nitrate-Nitregen Depth to
{mg/L) _{mgiL) Groundwater (ft) *
M1 Minimum 435 1.6 10.0
— Maximum " 510 A 131
MVY-2 Minimum 3330 2.8 123 |
Maximum 3820 7.8 185
| _MW-3 | Minimum 1040 1.5 22.0 L
Masximurn 1240 . 6.2 __ 324
MW-4 Minimum | 1930 21 408
1 Maximum | 2700 6.9 i 62.0

! Values from quarterly self-monitoring reports Eubmitted by the Discha%ger from 2012 0 2017.

The Basin Plan adopts the maximum contaminant levels (MCL) as the water quality
objectives for groundwater designated as municipal or domestic supply. The MCL
for nitrate-nitrogen is 10 mg/L. The MCL for TDS is not a heaith-based limit, but
rather based upon taste and odor. Itis a three part standard, with a
‘recommended” (500 mg/L), “upper” (1,000 mgiL), and “short-term”

(1,500 mg/L) limit.

The data from the four monitoring wells listed above indicate that the receiving
groundwater has TDS concentrations that exceed the upper limit (1,000 mg/L) in
three of the four monitoring wells. Wells MW-2 and MW-4 have exceeded the
short-term limit (1,500 mg/L) and have measured TDS at much higher
concentrations than the upper drinking water standard (secondary maximum
contaminant level) of 1,000 mg/L. Although TDS concentrations in well MW-3 have
been measured between 1,040 and 1,190 mg/l., these concentrations still exceed
the 1,000 mg/L upper limit. The source of the high TDS concentrations, particularly
the maximum measured value of 3,820 mg/L at monitoring well MW-2,

is unknown. However, samples of effluent coilected from the Discharger's
percolation ponds show an average TDS concentration of 783 mg/l_ (data from



HELENDALE CSD ~9- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

22.

2012 to 2016), which is lower than the observed groundwater concentration in
upgradient wells. Additionally, groundwater monitoring results have detected
constituents that are typically associated with wastewater, in particular biochemical
oxygen demand (BOD) and ammonia, in downgradient groundwater samples. This
Order contains a requirement for the Discharger to submit a workplan for installing
additional monitoring wells to improve the monitoring network and to track
mevement of these contaminant plumes toward sensitive receptors.

The receiving groundwater quality for nitrate-nitrogen shown in monitoring weils
during the years 2012 to 2017 meets the Basin Plan water quality objective of

10 mg/L. Nevertheless, because background nitrate-nitrogen levels in this area are
approximately 5.5 mgil, and some monitoring well nitrate concentrations exceed
background, it appears that groundwater quality has aiready been degraded (LWA,
January 2016). There is concern that continued discharges of treated water from
the Facility may cause nitrate concentrations to increase fo effluent concentration
levels, which averaged 7.85 mg/L (years 2012-2017), and may result in
groundwater degradation. Therefore, this Order requires implementing a project
that will increase nitrate-nitrogen removal through increased crop uptake and
monitoring nitrate concentration trends in groundwater.

Policy for Maintaining High Quality Waters

State Water Board Resolution No. 68-16 “Statement of Policy with Respect to
Maintaining High Quality Waters in California,” is called the non-degradation
objective in the Basin Plan. Resolution 68-16 states:

1. “Whenever the existing quality of water is befier than the quality established
in policies as of the date on which such policies become effeclive, such
existing high quality will be maintained unfil it has been demonstrated to the
State that a change will be consistent with the maximum benefit fo the
people of the Stats, will not unreasonably affect present and anticipated
beneficial use of such water and will not result in water quality less than that
prescribed in the policies.

2. Any activity which produces or may produce a waste...and which discharges
or proposes to discharge to existing high guality waters will be required to
meet waste discharge requirements which will result in the best practicable
treatment or controf of the discharge necessary to assure that (a) pollution or
nuisance will not occur, and (b) the highest water quality consistent with
maximum benefit to the people of the State will be maintained.”

This policy prohibits discharges of treated wastewater and biosolids that will cause
a pollution or nuisance and limits degradation by requiring the highest water quality
consistent with maximum benefit {o people of the State.



HELENDALE CSD -10 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

As part of the Report of Waste Discharge, the Discharger submitted two technical
reports: Helendale Wastewater Treatment Plant Water Quality Impact Analysis, by
LWA, January 20, 20186, and Helendale CSD Anti-degradation Qverview,
September 12, 2016, also prepared by LWA. In the water quality impact analysis,
the Discharger calculated the effect of future discharges of nitrate and TDS on the
quality of the receiving groundwater. In the analysis, the Discharger calculated
groundwater quatity for TDS and nitrate-nitrogen at various distances from the
center of the treatment plant percolation ponds using a simplified medel. The
model assumed a homogenous, isotropic aquifer of constant thickness into which
the TDS and nitrate-laden water is discharged; the model assumed constant
groundwater recharge rates from the percolation ponds and from the irrigated
fields; and the mede! assumed a steady flow of groundwater passing through the
model boundaries, using background concentrations of TDS and nitrate-nitrogen at
1,700 mg/L and 5.5 mg/L, respectively. The analysis assumed no evaporation,
adsorption, biodegradation, or physical chemical reactions that may consume TDS
or nitrate. The model accounted for recharge from their percolation ponds, using a
very conservative value of 0.47 mgd. The model predicted long-term nitrate-
nitroagen and TDS concentrations at distances of 600, 1,200, and 3,000 feet from
the recharge pond; the results are presented below:

'; Constituent | Long-Term | Background Long-Term Average Predicted Water
Average Average Quality (mg/L) at Various Distances from
Effluent Water Percolation Ponds 2
Water Quality *
Quality (moil.)
{mgil.} 8007t | 1,200ft 3,000f
NO3-N @ 7.85% 5.5 7.68 152 747 !
__TDS 783 1700 851 910 | 1048

'Measured at Helendale CSD Sup
4.400 feet south of the plant.

ply Well No. 9, state well no. 8N4W29D03, located approximately

2Obtained from Table 5-7 and Figure 8 of LWA January 2016 report,
3NC3-N is the measure of nitrate as nitrogen.
“The corresponding value for total Kjeldahl nitrogen (TKN) in the 2012-2014 time period is 4.3 mg/L
based en self-manitoring reports submitted to the Water Board. Total nitrogen, which is the sum
of TKN and NO3-N, is 12.15 mg/L.

The background groundwater monitoring well selected by the Discharger is a
supply well % mile south of the treatment plant site.

In the report titled Helendale CSD Anti-degradation Overview, the anti-degradation
analysis shows that applying all the effluent to the current 80-acre crop land, with
the exception of that discharged to the percolation ponds, exceeds the agronomic
rate for aifalfa when averaged over a year. The analysis shows that when the crop
area is expanded to 95 acres, as required by this Order, applying that same flow
rate of effluent to the crops will be less than the agronomic rate for aifaifa when



HELENDALE CSD -1 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

averaged over a year. Thus, when the crop area is expanded, no further excess
nitrogen is expected to reach groundwater.

The LWA analysis predicts nitrate-nitrogen uptake rate by 60 acres of alfalfa crop
exceeds the application rate. When the crop area is expanded ta 95 acres, the
nitrate-nitrogen uptake will be even greater. The increased nitrate uptake by the
additional crop area will prevent nitrate-nitrogen concentrations from exceeding the
MCL. of 10 mg/L, and groundwater quality will likely improve from current
conditions.

(a) “Water quality changes are consistent with the maximum benefit of people of
the state”

The Basin Plan establishes water quality objectives based on the beneficial
uses. Aithough some of the monitoring wells indicate that the receiving water
fimits for TDS are not being met, it is unlikely that this discharge is the cause of
fhose exceedances. The TDS levels of the effluent are actually less than the
TDS level of the existing water quality and will have a beneficial effect over
time. The nitrate levels are expacted to stay below the MCL. The Discharger
will be implementing a project that will increase nitrate-nitrogsn removal
through increasad crop uptake; the Discharger will be menitoring nitrate uptake
by the crops and nitrate concentrations in the effiuent, with the objective of
maintaining, and possibly reducing, nitrate concentration levels in groundwater.
This Order alsc requires the Discharger to monitor receiving groundwater to
verify these expectations.

This Order is consistent with the maximum benefit 1o the people of the State
because: (1) it aliows continued operation of an existing wastewater treatment
system; (2) it requires monitoring of impacts from the treated wastewater; and
(3) wili reduce groundwater nitrate concentration levels due to decreased mass
loading because of decreased effluent percolation as more nitrate nitrogen is
taken up by the crops.

(b) “Water quality changes do not unreasonably affect beneficial uses”

The TDS concentrations exceed the drinking water standard in three onsite
monitoring wells and are less than the drinking water standard in one onsite
menitoring well. Two onsite monitoring wells contain less than the upgradient
background concentration for TDS. The effluent TDS concentration is less than
the drinking water standard, and therefore, with respect to TDS, continued
discharges from the percolation ponds are not expected to unreasonably affect
beneficial uses, and will, in fact, reduce TDS levels over time. With respect to
nitrate, all beneficial uses are currently met and will continue to be met in the
future with the inclusion of a larger agricultural area that will increase the nitrate
removal by crops. Therefore, this criterion is satisfied.



HELENDALE CSD -12.- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

(c) “Water quality changes do not resulf in water quality less than the Basin Plan
objectives”

Because the TDS concentration in the effluent is iess than the receiving water
quality, continued discharge through percolation may reduce TDS
concentrations over time. In addition, the added 35-acre expansion area wilt
allow irrigation at levels that are closer to agronomic rates, which will improve
water quality through reduction of nitrate-nitrogen draining beiow the root zone
of crops. This Order requires monitoring in the expanded agriculture area to
indicate if irrigation in the winter time (slowest growth season) is in excess of
crop uptake. Any excess water in the winter will be taken up in the spring and
summer, when the feed crop grews denser and their roots grow deeper. The
Discharger presented an analysis of nitrogen uptake by the feed crop that used
conservative uptake values for nitrogen, water, and TDS. Based on this
analysis, Water Board staff expects that properly managed crop farming on the
95-acre area will be protective of groundwater quality.

Thus, the Discharger's agricultural site expansion project will maintain or
improve water quality and should not result in receiving groundwater quality
less than the Basin Plan objectives.

{u} “Best praciicaiie treatment or control is used to avoid pollution or nuisance and
maintain the highest water quality consistent with the maximum benefit of the
people of the state”

The proposed project to expand the agricuiture site from 60 acres to 95 acres
will resuilt in iess nitrogen draining below the root zone and, thereby, provide
some improvement in water quality compared {o the present. There are two
conceptual projects that would provide the highest quality of water: (1)
improved treatment to reduce effiuent total nitrogen to near the background
level of 5.5 mg/L nitrate-nitrogen or (2) constructing lined storage reservoirs to
contain winter effluent followed by irrigating crops at the full agronomic rate in
the summer season. It is not possible to alter or improve the existing operation
of primary clarification, secondary clarification, followed by a trickling filter to
guarantee an effluent of less than 5.5 mg/L nitrate-nitrogen. Nitrate removal
would require installation of a denitrification unit capable of treating 1.2 magd,
which would result in substantial capital and operational costs that would be
passed on to the Discharger's rate payers. Construction of lined storage ponds
would also result in substantial capital costs, which would also be passed on to
the Discharger's rate payers. As such, the additional cost for nitrate removal is
not commensurate with the improved water quality, and the maximum benefit to
the state is through implementation of the proposed project.



HELENDALE CSD -43 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

In addition, the Discharger wiil conduct effluent and groundwater monitoring as
part of the MRP. This will ensure that the best practicable treatment or control
is effective, water quality objectives will not be exceeded, and confirms that
water quality will be maintained at a level that is protective of beneficial uses.

Therefore, this Order is consistent with the Antidegradation Policy and includes
specific requirements and conditions of discharge to minimize water quality
degradation.

24. Caiifornia Water Code, Section 13241 Considerations

Under CWC, section 13241, the Order requirements must take into consideration
the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Past, present, and probabie future beneficial uses of water.

The findings of this Order identify past, present, and probable future beneficial
uses of water, as described in the Basin Plan. This Order does not authorize
alteration of the beneficial uses of the groundwater from discharges authorized
by this Order. The discharge area shail be monitored for degradation, and an
impact analysis conducted by the Discharger states that the present and
planned discharges will not degrade the groundwater to levels that would
adversely affect the beneficial uses of the groundwater.

Additionally, if the Discharger cannot demonstrate that agronomic application
of water and nutrients is achieved over a long-term period, then the Discharger
must submit a plan to increase the area of crop application, construct winter
storage reservoirs, upgrade treatment processes, or demonstrate an
alternative acceptable to the Executive Officer.

Environmental characteristics of the hydrographic unit under consideration,
including the quality of water available thereto.

The findings of this Order concerning geology, hydrogeology, and hydrology
provide general informaticn on the hydrographic unit. Information on the
groundwater quality around the area of the disposal indicates that the
upgradient groundwater and groundwater in monitoring well MW-2 has
substantially higher TDS concentrations compared to the d ischarge. The Water
Beard has considered the environmental characteristics of the hydrographic
unit, including the water quality available.

Water quality conditions that could reascnably be achieved through the
coordinated control of all factors that affect water quality in the area.



HELENDALE CSD - 14 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERMARDINOQ COUNTY

(d)

(e)

®

Factors that could affect water quality in the area inciude: 1) the current use of
onsite septic systems downgradient of the Facility, 2) other discharges to the
groundwater basin, 3) the ongoing and increased discharge to the Discharger's
percolation ponds, 4) historical and current agricuiture practices, and 5)
activities (golf course and lakes) at adjacent Silver Lakes development.

The Discharger performed an impact analysis on potential degradation that
may occur due to the proposed discharge. The analysis examined the impact
of various flow rates on TDS and nitrate-nitrogen concentrations. The analysis
predicts that, with respect to background nitrate and TDS, these constituent
concentrations will remain below water quality objectives downgradient of the
treatment plant site with increasing effluent flow and increasing distance.
Hence, future effluent application to the expanded agricultural fields should not
contribute to water quality degradation.

Economic considerations.

The purpose of Discharger's Phase 1 project is to decrease the application
rates at agricultural areas to near-agronomic rates and reduce nitrogen loading
to the groundwater. The Discharger has the financial resources to implement
Phase 1, and there is no unnecessary financial burden being piaced on the
Discharger. The cost is modest because the Discharger does not need to
upgrade their treatment plant. Phase 2 is optional, and the Discharger wiil
complete a feasibility study before proceeding with design and construction of
the tertiary treatment facility.

The need for developing housing within the region.

The Discharger has capacity at the treatment plant to handle an extra 7,000
people, assuming that the average person generates 100 gallons per day of
sewage. Thus, current capacity allows for additional housing. The expanded
agricultural re-use area is sufficient for current plant flow. If additional housing
is developed and plant flow increases within existing plant capacity, then
additional agricultural land may be required or some other alternative
implemented to ensure groundwater degradation does not result.

The need to develop and use recycled water.

Both Phase 1 and Phase 2 projects provide recycled water resources.

25. California Environmental Quality Act

This project is subject to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA, [Public Resources Code, section 21000 et seq.]) in accordance with Public



HELENDALE CSD - 15 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

Resources Code, section 21065. Helendale CSD is the Lead Agency for this
project under CEQA guidelines.

On March 1, 2017, Helendale CSD filed a Notice of Determinatior (NOD).
Helendale CSD determined that environmental impacts from this project will be less
than significant with mitigation measures described in their final CEQA document;
these mitigation measures address potential impacts to air quality, biological
resources, and cultural resources that may occur or be discovered during grading.
The Board of Helendale CSD adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration in a
meeting held May 18, 2017, to satisfy provisions of CEQA.

The Water Board is a responsibie agency under CEQA (Public Resources Code,
section 21069). The Water Board has reviewed and considered the mitigated
negative declaration prepared by Helendale CSD and finds that it addresses the
Project’s water resource impacts. (CCR, title 14, section 15096, subdivision [f]).

26. California Code of Regulations, title 27

CCR, fitle 27, section 20080(a) and (b) states that discharges are exempt from
titte 27 requirements for waste disposal provided the activity meets and continues
to meet the foliowing pre-conditions:

“{a) Sewage - Discharges of domestic sewage or treated effluent which are
regulated by WDRs issued pursuant to Chapter 9, Division 3, title 23 of this code,
or for which YWDRs have been waived, and which are consistent with applicable
water quality objectives, and treatment cr storage facilities associated with
municipal wastewater treatment plants, provided that residual sludges or solid
waste from wastewater treatment facilities shall be discharged only in accordance
with the appiicable SWRCB-promulgated provisions of this division.”

“(b) Wastewater — Discharges of wastewater to land, including but not fimited to
evaporation ponds, percolation ponds, or subsurface jeachfields if the following
conditions are met;

(1) The applicable RWQCB has Issued WDRs, reclamation requirements, or
waived such issuance;

(2) The discharge is in compliance with the applicable water quality control
plan; and

(3) The wastewater does not need to be managed according to Chapter 11,
Division 4.5, title 22 of this code as a hazardous waste.”

In this case, discharges will continue to meet the conditional exemption for
discharges of domestic sewage because: 1) the discharge is regulated by WDRs,
2) the discharge is expected to be consistent with applicable water quality
objectives, 3) the Facility is a municipal wastewater treatment plant, and 4) all



HELENDALE CSD -16 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

27.

28.

29

30.

residual biosolids are disposed off-site in an authorized manner as required in
CCR, title 27, section 20220(c).

Disinfection Byproducts Controls

Although the treatment plant has capability for chlorine disinfection, disinfection is
not part of these WDRs. Therefore, the Water Board is not specifying disinfection
byproduct controls. If the Discharger decides to reactivate the disinfection system,
or construct and operate a new chlorination disinfection system, it will change the
character of the discharge. This is because disinfection byproducts, which are
carcinogens, may be discharged to land and then, ultimately, to groundwater. As
required under CWC, section 13260(c), the Discharger must submit a revised
report of waste discharge for such a change. '

Right to Safe, Clean. Affordable. and Accessible Water

CWC, section 106.3, estabiishes a state policy that every human being has the
right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for human
consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes and directs state agencies to
consider this policy when adopting regulations pertinent to those uses of

water. This Order promotes that pelicy by prohibiting the discharge from causing
degradation to the groundwater above drinking water standards. The groundwater
in the area includes a municipal beneficial use. The nearest water supply well is
located two miles from the treatment plant site and is not expected to be affected
by this discharge. The Water Board has considered this requirement in adopting
this Order.

Classification and Annual Fees

The threat to water quality from the Facility is level 2 because water quality
degradation may result from the discharge and improper piant cperation could
cause short-term violations of water quality objectives. The complexity is level B
because the Facility has a biological freatment process. This classification is
subject to change based on treatment or discharge method modifications or revised
state regulations. Annual fees are based on this classification.

Monitoring and Reporting

CWC, section 13267, authorizes the Water Board to require technical and
monitoring reports. The MRP is necessary to determine compliance with the
conditions of this Order and to determine the discharges impacts, if any, on
groundwater. As such, the burden, including costs of this monitoring, bears a
reasonable relationship to the need for that information and the benefits to be
obtained from that information.



HELENDALE CSD
SILVER LAKES

-47 -

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

31. Notification of Interested Parties

The Water Board has notified the Discharg
revise waste discharge requirements for t

32. Consideration of Public Comments

The Water Board, in a public meetin

pertaining to the discharge.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, pursuant to CWC,
Discharger will comply with the following:

I. DISCHARGE SPECIFICATIONS
A EfﬂuentlDischarge Lirmitations

1. The flow of untreated wastewater tothe s

BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015

WDID NO. 6B361111001

not exceed a monthly average of 1.2 mgd.

2. The authorized discharge sites are the following:

a. Percolation pond 1 (east) and percoiation pond 2 (west),

b. The existing plant agriculture site of 60 acres, and

C.

er and interested persons of its intent to
he discharge.

@. heard and considered all comments

sections 13263 and 13267, that the

econdary treatment plant must

The expanded agriculture site of 35 acres {following Executive Officer
acceptance of final expansion area plans, acceptance of DDW

recycled water use recommendations and establishment of

background water quaiity).

3. All wastewater discharg

authorized discharge si

tes must not contain co.

ed from the secondary treatment plant to the

excess of the following lirnitations.

ncentrations of constituents in

Constituent Units | Average Average | Minimum | Maximum

| Monthly Weekly
BOD! mg/L 30 45
Total suspended solids mg/L 30 45 ]
pH pH units 8.0 8.0
Dissolved Oxygen 1 Mg/t 1.0

1Biochemical oxygen demand of an unfiltered sample for 5-

day analysis at 20 degrees Celsius.



HELENDALE CSD -18 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

B. Receiving Groundwater Limitations

The discharge shall not cause a violation of the following receiving water
quality objectives in groundwater of the Middie Mojave Groundwater Basin.

1. Bacteria ~ Groundwaters designated as MUN, the median concentration
of coliform organisms over any seven-day period shall be less than 1.1/
miililiters. Most probable number per 100 milliliters (MPN/100 m/Ls).

2. Chemical Constituents — Groundwaters designated as MUN shall not
contain concentrations of chemical constituents in excess of the maximum
contaminant level (MCL) or secondary maximum contaminant level
(SMCL) based upon drinking water standards specified in the following
provisions of CCR, title 22, of CCR which are incorporated by reference
into the Basin Plan: Table 64431-A of Section 64431 {Inorganic
Chemicals), Table 64431-B of Section 64431 (Fluoride), Table 64444-A of
section 64444 (Organic Chemicals), Table 64449-A of section 64449
(Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levsls — Consumer Acceptance
Levels), and Table 84449-B of section 84449 (Secondary Maximum
Contaminant l.evels - Ranges). This incorporation-by-reference is
prospective including future changes to the incorporated provisions as the
changes take effect.

Waters designated as AGR shall not contain concentrations of chemical
constituents in amounts that adversely affect the water for beneficial uses
(i.e. agricultural purposes),

Groundwater shall not contain concentrations of chemical constituents that
adversely affect the water for beneficial uses.

3. Radioactivity — Groundwaters designated as MUN shall not contain
concentrations of radionuclides in excess of the fimits specified in CCR,
title 22, section 64442, Table 64442, and section 64443, Table 64443,
including future changes as the changes take effect.

4. Taste and Odors - Groundwaters shall not contain taste or odor-producing
substances in concentrations that cause nuisance or that adversely affect
beneficial uses. For groundwater designated as MUN, at a minimum,
concentrations shall not exceed adopted secondary maximum
contaminant levels specified in Table 64449-A of Section 64449
(Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels — Consumer Acceptance
Levels), and Table 64449-B of Section 64449 {Secondary Maximum
Contaminant Levels - Ranges) of CCR, title 22.




HELENDALE CSD - 19 - BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

C. Recycling Water Treatment Requirements

1. Secondary effluent produced by the treatment plant and use of the effluent
at the agriculture site(s) must at least mest the undisinfected secondary
recycled water levels defined in CCR, title 22, section 60301.200. The
use is restricted to fodder and fiber crops and pasture for animals not
producing milk for human consumption, as provided under CCR, title 22,
section 60304(d)(4).

2. Secondary effluent produced by the treatment plant and use of the effluent
at the agriculture site must comply with the Uniform Statewide
Reclamation Criteria, which are contained in CCR, title 22, sections 80301
through 60355.

3. Before use of the 35-acrg expanded crop site, the Discharger must not
apply recycled water to the expanded 35 acre crop site until the
Discharger obtains approval of the Engineering Report from the Water
Board's Executive Officer.

D. Recycled Water Use Requirements

1. The Bischarger must comply with the use area requirements of the
Uniform Siatewide Reclamation Criteria, which are contained in CCR,
title 22, section 60310.

2. Effluent applied as irrigation water to crops shall not exceed the
agrenomic crep water or putrient demand.

E. General Reqguirements and Prohibitions

1. There shall be no discharge, bypass, or diversion of untreated or partiaily
treated sewage, sewage sludge, grease. or oils from the collection,
transport, treatment, or disposal facilities to adjacent land areas or surface
waters.

2. Surface flow or visible discharge of sewage or treated wastewater from
the authorized disposalfrecycling sites to adjacent land areas or surface
waters is prohibited.

3. Allfacilities used for collection, transport, treatment, or disposal of waste
shall be adequately protected against overflow, washout, inundation,
structural damage, or a significant reduction in efficiency resulting from a
storm or flood having a recurrence interval of once in 100 years.



HELENDALE CSD - 20 - BOARD ORDER NO. R5V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

4. The vertical distance between the liquid surface elevation and the lowest
point of a pond dike or the invert of an over flow structure shall not be less
than 2.0 feet.

5. Neither the treatment nor the discharge shall cause pollution, threatened
poliution, or nuisance as defined in the CWC.

8. The discharge of wastewater except to the authorized disposal/recycling
sites is prohibited.

7. The discharge of waste, as defined in the CWC, which causes violation of
any narrative water quality objective contained in the Basin Plan is
prohibited.

8. The discharge of waste that causes violation of any numeric water quality
objective contained in the Basin Plan is prohibited.

9.  Where any numeric or narrative water quality objective contained in the
Basin Plan is already being exceeded, the discharge of waste that causes
further degradation or poliution is prohibited.

10. The Discharger shali comply with all existing federal and state iaws and
regulations that apply to sewage biosolids use and disposal practices.

. PROVISIONS

A. Rescission of WDRs

Board Order No. 6-01-39 is rescinded, along with subsequent amerndments.

B. Operator Certifications

The Facility must be supervised by persons possessing a wastewater treatment
plant operator certificate of appropriate grade pursuant to CCR, title 23,
section 3670 et seq.

C. Standard Provisions

The Discharger must comply with the "Standard Provisions for Waste
Discharge Requirements," dated September 1, 1994, in Attachment E, which is
made part of this Order.



HELENDALE CSD -21- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0015
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 6B361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

D. Monitoring and Reporting

The Discharger must comply with the MRP contained in this Order. Effluent
and groundwater monitoring are required to determine if plant discharges are
impacting waters of the State from known or suspected discharges of waste.
Discharges include releases of treated wastewster or treated waste regulated
by this Order.

E. Crop Plan

As authorized under the CWC, section 13267, the Discharger must submit an
Agricuiture Crop Plan, revised when conditions change, for the irrigation
site(s). The reporting requirements for the plan are specified in the MRP,

F. Failure to Achieve Agronomic Rates

The Discharger submitted an anti-degradation analysis that shows that the
current practice of irrigating crops on the 680-acre field is above an agronomic
rate (over-watering), averaged over the year. In their analysis, they show that
irrigation of the expanded 95-acre field with the same effluent flow rates will be
slightly below the agronomic rate, averaged over a year.

The Discharger must submit to the Water Board a corrective action plan if
either of the following conditions oceur: 1) if the effluent flow applied to the full
85-acre area exceeds the agronomic application rate appropriate for the crops
on the Discharger's property, averaged over the year, or 2) the Nitrogen
Removal Assessment required in the MRP indicates less nitregen is removed
by crops than required.

The corrective action ptan must propose one of the following:

Increase the area of crop application;

Construct additional flow storage reservoirs of sufficient capacity;
Upgrade the treatment process fo full hitrogen removal; or

Propose an aiternative acceptable to the Water Board Executive Officer,
unless revised WDRs are necessary because the Discharger proposes a
substantial change in the manner or method of disposal.

8 & 0 ©

G. Time Schedule

The Discharger must meet the following time schedule for the agriculture site
expansion project.



HELENDALE CSD -22- BOARD ORDER NO. R6V-2018-0045
SILVER LAKES WDID NO. 68361111001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

Milestone Milestone Type * Schedule
Start of construction Target . March 1, 2019
Compistion of construction Target fiarch 1, 2020
Operational leve! discharging Complianca June 1, 2020
effiuent to the full 85-acre fields

"Missing target miiestones are subject to enforcement if the compliance milesione is not achieved.

I, Patty Kouyoumdjian, Executive Officer, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full,
true, and correct copy of an Order adopted by the California Regional Water Quality
Control Board, Lahontan Region, on April 12, 2018.

f&uﬁ /> Y\uuyﬂ\,w.ff};c.m

PATTY Z. KOUYOUMDJIAN
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Helendale Wastewater Treatment Plant Process Schematic
Treatment Plant Site Plan View

Weil and Reuse Area Locations

Receiving Groundwster Basin

Standard Provisions for Waste Discharge Requirements

Attachments:

Mmoo w»

R6V-2018-0015_HelendaleCSD_Silverl.akesWWTP Revised WDRs_6B361111001



Attachment A. Helendale Wastewater Treatment Plant Process Schematic

8T0C Asenuer jo sy
JBLUBYDS SSa004d — JUB|d JUIWIIRAL| JDIEMBISEAN Gl JIETETE

$paq
Buidip
sprosoig

sabp
Jlqolay
ajls 4o pajney
Splosolq paug

pinbj
palajems
m
sdwnd
pasy oL
usnyg Buipjon . ol
A s — T ] MO
< e 4 Juanyyy
- ’ Al.
{pappe 5t .
suLojys ou) SI_Yue|d i sia
e
laqueyo Aepuoseg “ sjlompes
e ; Aty ompeaH
auUopD
sasyjy Buipiou ),




Attachment B. Treatment Plant Site Plan View

—
Primary

N splitter box
H Headworks

. *

Plant access Road.

Aegrobic
digester

1t Secondary
darifier feed
splitier box

TR Tricking fiters

Second
percolation

pond

Monitoring wells are located using Water
Board collected GPS Coordinates.

clarifier feed

e

Primary
clarifiers

Trlckling fitter

b fead splitter

box and
pump ctatton
[ b

e,

\ Secondary

clarifiers

Chlorine
cantact
chamber

;' (1 ‘ -
=
Ck
i
e
Lt North
Scale:
1:1200
1in=
100 ft

Location of 4
new beds
installed after
photo date

Eriosolids
drying

p.jpg

Helendaie1200AerialPortrait, jpg

1_12



PONTZMENS

B3IV As() Jazep p

LR T g

e

gy T

2j2A03y [eiryn3iiSy asze-gy i

£

|

e

e Qson)
ECUBTMPNE

SABLIANS 4O Ay

muwod
m—— g

ey .

Basy asn
Jagem pajakoay
leamnapEy aioe-gg

YODETMENSG

-

We|d Juauneas)
Qs 3epuajay




uiseq Ja1empunosd
paulzap-uou jo eauy

Attachment D. Receiving Groundwater Basin

ATFTIVA HIATE IAVrOW mdcngs_

- - ]

i \

| 2

ATTIVA YIdUYH

) [—— h

\ A
/

g

3)S UB|d JuUdWIIED]
~_  J91emdlsem aepusjay

ey
jr...(

L

" .f/ Asepunog
; _.__mmm._mumzﬁ::ohu
f.
a{/“\
f,




Attachment E

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
LAHONTAN REGION

STANDARD PROVISIONS
FOR WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS

Inspection and Entry

The Discharger shall permit Regional Board staff:

C.

d.

to enter upon premises in which an effluent source is located cr in which any
required records are kept;

to copy any records relating to the discharge or relating to compliance with the
Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs);

to inspect monitoring equipment or records; and

to samiple any discharge.

Reporting Requirements

Pursuant to California Water Code 13267(b), the Discharger shall immediately
notify the Regional Board by telephone whenever an adverse condition occuired as
a result of this discharge; writtan confirmation shall follow within two weeks. An
adverse condition includes, but is not limited to, spills of petroleum products or toxic
chemicals, or damage to control facilities that couid affect compliance.

Bursuant te California Water Code Secticn 13260 {c), any proposad material
change in the character of the waste, manner or method of tfreatment or disposal,
increase of discharge, or location of discharge. shait be reported to the Regional
Board at least 120 days in advance of implemsntaticn of any such propesal. This
shali include, but not be limited to, ali significant soil disturbances.

The Owners/Discharger of property subject to WDRs shall be considered {o have a
continuing responsibility for ensuring compliance with applicable WDRs in the
operations or use of the owned property. Pursuant to California Water Code
Section 13260(c), any change in the ownership and/or operation of property subject
to the WDRs shall be reported to the Regional Board. Notification of applicable
WDRs shall be furnished ir writing to the new owners and/or operators and a copy
of such notification shall be sent to the Regional Board.

If & Discharger becomes aware that any information submitted to the Regional
Board is incorrect, the Discharger shall immediately notify the Regional Board, in
writing, and correct that information.

Reports required by the WDRs, and other information requested by the Regional
Board, must be signed by a duly authorized representative of the Discharger.
Under Section 13268 of the California Water Code, any person failing or refusing to
furnish technical or monitoring reports, or falsifying any information provided
therein, is guilty of a misdemeanor and may be liable civilly in an amount of up to
onhe thousand dollars {$1,000) for each day of violation.



STANDARD PROVISIONS -2- SEPTEMBER 1, 1994

f If the Discharger becomes aware that their WDRs {or permit) are no longer needed
{because the project will not be built or the discharge will cease) the Discharger
shall notify the Regional Board in writing and request that their WDRs (or permit) be
rescinded.

3. Right to Revise WDR3s

The Regional Beard reserves the privilege of changing all or any portion of the WDRs upon
legal notice to and after opportunity to be heard is given to all concerned parties.

4. Duty to Comply

Failure to comply with the WDRs may constitute a violation of the California Water Code
and is grounds for enforcement action or for permit termination, revocation and re-
issuance, or modification.

5. Duty to Mitigate

The Discharger shall take ali reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in
violation of the WDRs which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human
health or the environment.

&. Proper Operation and Maintenance

The Discharger shall 2! al times properly operate and maintain al] faciiities and systems of
treatmenit and conirol (and related appurtenances) that are installed or uszd by the
Discharger to achieve compiiance with the WDRs. Proper operation and maintenance
includes acequate laboratery control, where appropriate, and apprapriate quality assurance
procedures. This provision requires the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar
systems that are installed by the Discharger, when necessary to achieve compliance with
the conditions of the WDRs.

7 Waste Discharge Requirement Actions

The WDRs may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of
a request by the Discharger for waste discharge requirement modification, revocation and
re-issuance, termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated
noncompliance, does not stay any of the WDRS conditions.

8. Property Rights

The WDRs do not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privileges, nor
does it authorize any injury to private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any
infringement of federal, state or local laws cr regulations.

8. Enforcement
The California Water Code provides for civil liability and criminal penalties for violations or

threatened violations of the WDRs including imposition of civil liability or referral to the
Attorney General.



STANDARD PROVISIONS -3- SEPTEMBER 1, 1994

10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

Availabilit

A copy of the WDRs shall be kept and maintained by the Discharger and be avaifable at all
times to operating personnel.

Severability

Provisions of the WDRs are severable. If any provision of the requirements is found
invalid, the remainder of the requirements shall not be affected.

Public Access

General public access shall be effectively excluded from treatment and disposal facilities.
Transfers

Providing there is no material change in the operation of the facility, this Order may be
transferred to a new owner or operation. The owner/operator must request the transfer in
writing and receive written approvat from the Regional Board's Executive Officer.

Definitions

a. "Surface waters" as used in this Order, include, but are not limited to, live streams,
either perennial or ephemeral, which flow in natural or artificial water courses and
natural lakes and artificial impoundments of waters. "Surface waters” does not
include artificial water courses or impoundments used exclusively for wastewater
disposal.

b. “Ground waters" as used in this Order, include, bu are not limited to. all subsurface
waters being above atmospheric pressure and the capiliary fringe of these waters.

Storm Protection

All facilities used for collection, transport, treatment, storage, or disposal of waste shall be
adequately protected against overflow, washout, inundation, structural damage or a
significant reduction in efficiency resulting from a storm or flood having a recurrence
interval of once in 100 years.

s/B0 INFO/PROVISIONS(File: stendard prov3)



APPENDIX B

Staff Contact List



HELENDALE CSD
CONTACT INFORMATION SHEET
26540 Vista Rd., Suite B, P.0. Box 359, Helendale, CA 92342 Phone 760-951-0006 Fax 760-951-0046

Name/Dept, Title District Phone Cell Phone Other Phone
arly Cox General Manager 760-217-2221 760-954-4955
DMIN
Shavon Aviles Senior Customer Service Rep 760-220-6643
Andrea Chavis Sentor Customer Service Rep 619-316-8812
Sharen Kreinop Senior Account Specialist 760-912-9852
Jean Thomas Customer Service Supervisor 760-220-1393
Cheryi Vermette Program Coordinator 760-475-3291 760-985-2787
Virginta Woolley Customer Service Rep | 760-559-4271
WATER
Craig Carison Water Operations Manager 760-403-5115
lanathan Escobar Water Systems Operator Il 760-221-0061
giily Goforth Mechanic 760-221-0285
Srian jeffers Water Systems Operator il 760-221-5793
Richard {aTour Water Systems Operator | 760-553-5997
WASTE WATER
Alex Aviles WW Operations Manager 760-221-1661 760-267-8354
Alex Creason Wastewater Operator | 760-552-5019 760-912-9452
Bitl Xuhlmann Wastewater Operator HI 760-221-3365 760-792-4912  760-780-5761
PARK
Robrert Collison Park Maintenance Worker 760-217-0340 760-742-8924
Josh McClure Park Maintenance Worker 760-792-4800
Trini Martin Prograrn Assistant
SOLID WASTE
Ramon Gonzalez Maintenance Worker | 760-912-6892 760-843-5285
Kelly McNamara Recycling Center Supervisor 714-204-1040
“ER USEFUL NUMBERS JAXID ~-1803735
.ift Store 760-952-1941
Answering Service 7503-851-6080 760-247-0087 Fax
fire Dept. 760-245-5022
Sheriff Deputy 760-552-5709
Sheriff's Dispatch 760-556-5001
Smithson Lift Station 760-243-5575
\Waste Water Treatrent Plant 28685 Helendale Rd. 760-245-2896
Water Operations 15425 Wild Rd. 760-951-1121
Our WiR Comm Center BACF335630
HCSD Com@c3ssINDw

C:\Users\ccarlson\AppData\Locai\Microsuft\Windows\lNetCache\Contr_-nt.Outloak\ZXFcLTsv\Call Shest

Rev.11-12-2019



APPENDIX C

l. LAFCO 2996 - Helendale CSD Formation Resolution



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

1786 West Fifth Street, Second Floor
San Bernardino, CA 92415-D430 - {200} 3B7-5888 - Fax (908) 387-5871
E-mali: lafco@lafco.sboounty.gov
Wwh.sbolafco.ong

FROFPOSAL NO.: LAFCO 2996
HEARING DATE: JUNE 21, 2006

RESOILUTION NO. 2827

4 RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF SAN
BERNARDINO MAKING DETERMINATIONS ON LAFCO 2996 AND APPROVING THE
REORGANIZATION TO INCLUDE FORMATION OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT AND DISSOLUTION OF COUNTY SERVICE AREA 70 IMPROVEMENT ZONES B AND C. (The
project area is located north of the Cities of Adelanto and Victorville, southwest of the Cily of Barstow, west of
Interstate 15 and extending one mile east of Highway 385. The modified recrganization area encompasses
approximately 58,880 +/- acres (92 square miles) and is generally described as follows: Sections 1 through
12, Township 7 North, Range 4 West, Sections 1 through 12, Township 7 North, Range 5 West, Sections 1
and 12, Township 7 North, Range 6 West, Sections 4 through 9, 16 through 21 and 25 through 36, Township
B North, Range 4 Wast, Sections 1 through 36, Township 8 North, Range 5 West, and Sections 1, 12, 13, 24,
435, and 36, Township 8 North, Rangs 6 West, S8an Bemardino Meridian, in the County of San Bemardine,

Siate of California.)

On motion of Commissioner Hansbsrgar, duly seconded by Commissioner Pearson, and
carried, the Local Agency Formation Commission adopts the following resofution:

WHEREAS, an application for the proposed reorganization in the Counly of San Bernardine was flled
with the Executive Officer of this Local Agency Formation Commission {herelnafter referred to 8s “the
Commisslan®) in accordance with the Cortese-Knax-Herizberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000
{Govemment Code Sections 56000 e seq.), and the Executive Officer has examined the application and
executed her certificate in eccordance with taw, determining and certifying that the fitings are sufficient; and,

WHEREAS, at the times and in the form and manner provided by law, the Executive Officer has given
noiice of the public hearing by the Commission on this matter; and,

WHEREAS, the Exetutive Officer has reviewed avallable information and prepared a report including
her recommendalions thereon, tha filings and report and related information having bean prasentsd to and

consideret by this Commission; and,

WHREREAS, the public hearing by this Commission was held upon the date and at the time and placs
specified in the notice of public hearing and in an order or orders continuing the hearing; 2ng,

WHEREAS, &t the hearing, this Commission heard and received zi! oraj and writien protests; the
Commission considered all plans and proposed changes of organization, objsctions and evidence which
were made, presented, or fited; it recelved evidence as to whether the tervitory is inhabited or uninhabited,
improved or unimproved; and ail persons present were given an apportunity to hear and be heard in respect
io any matter relating to the epplication, in evidence presenied at the hearing; and



RESOLUTION NO, 2537

WHEREAS, the Commission determines o madify the boundary of the reorganization to include
formation to exclude the 10 +- square miles within the southeast portion of the boundary, outside the existing
Hslendale School District boundary;

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED, that the Commission doas hereby determine, find, resolve,
and order as follows:

DETERMINATIONS:

SECTION 1. The proposal is approved subject to the terms and conditions hereafter specified:

CORLATIONS:

Condition No. 1. The beundasias are approved as set forth in Exhibits ‘A", "A-1°, “B" and "C"
aitached.

Condftion No. 2. The following distinctive short-form designation shail be used throughout this
proceeding: LAFCO 2098.

Condition No. 3. The proponents of LAFCO 2996 shalt indemnify, defend, and hold harmiess the
Commission from any legal expense, legal action, or judgment arising out of the Commission's approval of
this proposat, inciuding any reimbursement of legal feas and costs incurred by the Commission.

Condition No. 4. Upon the effective date of this reorganization to include formation, County Service
Area 70 improvement Zenes B and C shali ba dissoived and their functions, assets (including cash on hand
and monies due but uncollected), lisbilities, contracts, obligations, responsibilities and continuing property tax
distribution shall bacome those of the Helendale Community Services District as the designated successor
agency. Those funds held in trust by County Servica Area 70 Improvement Zones B and C for a prescribed
purpose shall only be used by the Helendale Communily Servicas District for said prescribed pLIpose.

Condition No. 5. If approved by the electorate at the November 7, 2006 genera! eiaction, the County
Board of Supervisors, through its Couinty Spacial Districts Department, shall continue the edministration of
water and sewer services within the previous teritory of County Service Area 70 improvement Zones B and C
dissolved for a transition period until July 1, 2007, or until the Board of Diractors of the Helendaie Community
Services District directs discontinuance, whichever comes first. The Helendale Community Services District
shall be required to ralmburse the County of San Bemardino, through its Special Districts Department, for the
direct costs of previding the services to the Hetendale Cammunity Services District during this fransition
period. Nothing in this condition preciudes a future Board of Diractars of the Helendale Community Services
District to contract for an extended period of time for the pravision of administration, maintenance, operation,
billing, efc. services through the County of San Bemarding and its Special Districts Department.

Condition No. 6. Alf jands, bulldings, appurtenances and equipment heid by County Service Area 70
for the purposs of providing services within the boundaries of Improvement Zonss B and C shail ba
fransferred fo the Helendale Community Services District upon its formation. The Helendale Community
Seivices District shall assume complete maintenance and operation responsibilities for these faciiites.

Condition No. 7. The Board of Direclors of the successor agency, the Helendale Community
Services District, shall conslst of five members, elected at-large, pursuant o the provisions of Govemment
Code Section 81020, as outlined in the petition initisting the proposal.



RESOLUTION NO. 2827

Londition No. 8. The Helendale Community Services District shall be authorized the foliowing
functions and services as active powers, zuthorized to be provided within its boundaries:

Water Supply water for any beneficial use as cutlined in the Municipal Water District Law of 1811
(commencing with Section 71000) of the Water Cods.

8ewer Collect, treat, or dispose of sewage, waste water, resycled water, and stom waler, in the
sama manner as a sanitary district formed pursuant to the Sanitary Distrist Act of 1223

{commencing with Section 6400) of the Health and Safety Code.

Streetlighting Acquire, construct, improve, maintain and operate street lighting and landscaping on
public property, public rights-of-way, and publfic eassments.

Refuse Collection Collect, transfer, and dispose of solid waste and provide solid waste handling
service, including, but not limtted to, source raduction, recycling, composting activities,
pursuant fo Division 30 (commencing with Section 40000), and consistent with Section

41821.2 of the Publlc Rescurces Code.

Recreation and Parks Acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and operate recreation facilities,
including, but not fimited to, parks and open space, in the same manner s a recreation and
park district formed pursuant to the Recreation and Park District Law {commencing with

Section 5780) of the Public Resources Cods.

Graffiti Abatement  Abate graffitl.

Condition No.9. All property tax revenues atiributable to elther County Service Area 70 improvement
Zone B or County Service Area 70 Impravement Zone C, prior fo calculations required by Section 96.1 of the
Revenue and Taxation Cade, including delinquent taxes;, retum of property tax revenues deducted for "“ERAF
IIi* and any and afl other collections or assets of the Districts to be dissoived, shall acerue and be transferred
to the successor District, the Helendale Community Services District, pursuant to the provisions of

Govemment Code Section 568810,

Condition No. 19, All previously authorized charges, fees, assessments, and/or taxes of County
Service Area 70 Improvement Zones B and C currently in effect shali be continued and assumed by the
Helendale Community Services District as the successor agency in the same manner as provided in the
original authorization pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 568866(t).

Condition No. 11. Upon the effective date of this recrganization, any funds surrently depasited for
the benefit of County Sarvice Area 70 Improvemnent Zones B end C and future recelpts of revenues or
refunds which have been impressed with a public trust, use or purpose shall bs transferred to the Helendale
Community Services District, as the successor agency, and the successor agency shall separalsly maintain
such funds In accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 57462,

Condition; Neo. 12. Pursuant to the provisicne of Govemment Code Section 56811, the provisional
appropriation limit of the Helendale Community Services District shall be set at 3218,890. The permanent
appropriaticn Iimit shall be established 2t the first district election held following the first full fiscal year of
operation and shall not be considared to be a change in the appropriations of the District pursuant to Article

XIIE of the California Constitution.

Condiiion Mo. 13. All streetlights currently the responsibility of County Service Area 70 Improvement
Zone B shall be fransferred to the Helendale Community Services District upon suecessful formation of the



RESOLUTION KO. 2827

Condition No. . The Helendale Community Services District shall be authorized the following
funciions and services as active powers, authorized to be pravided within its boundaries:

Water Supply water for any beneficial use as outlined in the Municipal Water District Law of 1911
{commencing with Section 71000) of the Weter Code.

Sewer Collact, treat, or dispose of sewage, waste waler, recycled water, and storm water, In the
same manner as a sanliary district formed pursuant to the Sanitary District Act of 1823
{commencing with Sectivh 6400) of the Health and Safety Code.

Streetlighting Acquire, construct, Improve, maintain and operate street lighting and landscaping on
public property, public rights-of-way, and public easements.

Refuse Collaction Collect, ransfer, and dispose of solid waste and provide solid waste handling
seivice, including, but not limited to, source reduction, recycling, composting activities,
pursuant fo Division 30 (commencing with Section 40000), and consistent with Section
41821.2 of the Public Resources Code.

Recreation and Parks  Acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and operate recreation facilities,
including, but not limited o, parks and open space, In the same manner as a recreation and
park district formed pursuant to the Recreation and Park District Law {commencing with
Section 5780) of the Publlc Resources Code.

Graffitl Abatement  Abate graffiti.

Conditign No.9. All property tax revenues atiributable o eithar County Service Area 70 Improvement
Zone B or County Service Area 70 Improvemant Zone C, prior to calculations required by Section 6.1 of the
Revenue and Taxation Code, including delinquent taxes, retum of property tax revenues deducted for “ERAF
fiI* and any and &l other collections or assets of the Districts 10 be dissolved, shall accrue and be transferred
to the successor District, the Helendale Community Services District, pursuant to the provistons of
Govemment Code Section 56810.

Condition No. 10. All previously authorized cherges, fees, assessments, and/or taxes of County
Service Area 70 improvement Zones B and C cummently in effect shali be continued and assumed by the
Helendale Communlty Services District as the successor agency in the same manner 25 provided In the
original authorization pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 56886(t). .

Gondition Mo, 11. Upocn the effective data of this reomanization, any funds cumently daposited for
the benefit of County Service Area 70 Improvement Zones B and C and future receipts of revenues or
refunds which have been impresssd with a public trust, use or purposa shall be transferred fo the Helendale
Communily Services District, as the successor agency, end the sticcessor egency shall geparately maintain
such funds in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 57482,

Condition No. 2. Pursuant to the provisions of Govemment Code Section 56811, the provisional
appropriation {imit of the Helendale Community Services District shall be set at $219,880. The psrmanent
appraprietion {imit shali be esteblished at the first district elaction held following the first full fiscal year of
opsration and ehall not be considered to be a change in the appropristions of the District pursuant 1o Articls
XIlB of the Celifomia Constitution,

Condition Ne. 13, All strezilights curmently the responsibilily of County Service Area 70 Improvement
Zone B shell be transferred to the Helendale Communlty Services District upon successful formetion of the



RESOGLUTION NG. 2927

Helendale Communily Services District. The Gounty Special Districts Depanment shall prepare the
appropriate dosumentation to transfer the fights; LAFCO siaff shall verify the data, and forward the signed
atthorization form requesting Southem California Edison to transfer the spacific lights to the Helendale
Community Services District accounis upon successful completion of LAFCO 2098,

Longition No. 14. Pursuant fo the provisicns of Government Cede Section 55885.5(2)(4), the
County Bosrd of Supervisors, as the governing body for County Service Area 70 improvement Zones B and
G, is prohibited fiom taking the following actions uniess an emergency situations exists as defined in Sectian

54856.5;

= Approve any increase in compensation or benefits for members of the goveming board, its officers, or
the executive officer of the agenicy;

¢ Appropriating, encumbering, expending, or otherwise obligating, any revenue of the agencies bayond
that provided in the current budget at the fimo the dissolution [z approved by the Commission.

The Commission identifies that the budget to be utliized in this condition shall be the proposed budget
for Fiscal Year 2008-07 anticipated to be adopted by the County Board of Supsrvisors on June 27, 2006,

Condition Ne. 15. Pursuant fo Government Code Seclion 58886.1, public ulilities, as defined in
Section 216 of the Public Utilities Code, have ninety (90) days following the recording of the Certificate of
Completion to make the-necessary changes fo impscted utiiity customer accounts.

Condition No. 16, The sffectiva date of this reorganization shall be the date of issuence of the
Certificate of Compistion, which should oceur on or about December 1, 2008 in the event the electors

approve LAFCO 2996 on November 7, 2006.

SECTION 2. The following determinations are made in conformance with Govemment Code Sections 61014
and 56301:

1, Pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 81014, the Commission determines,
based upon exlsting information, that the Helendals Community Services District has sufficient
revenues o carmy out its purposes of providing water service, sewer service and strestiighting to the
existing senvice areas of the districts fo be dissolved, has the ability 1o provide for planning for the
extension of those services and the services of park and recreation, solid waste and grafit
abatement services for the future, and will have & reasonable reserve during the first three fiscal years

following formation.

2, The Commissior: determines, pursuant to Govemment Code Section 56301, that exisling agencies
cannot provida the range and leve! of sarvices contempiated to be provided by the Helendale
Community Services District in a more efficiont ard accountable manner,

SECTION 3. FINDINGS. The following findings &re noted in conformance with Commission policy and State
law:

1. The modified reorganization zrea encompasses appreximately 58,880 +/- acres {02 +/- square milos)
and is legally inhablted as certifiad by the County Reglstrer of Voters office on June 2, 2006,

2. The modified reorganization Inciuding formation does not conflict with the sphere of infiuence of any
other agency currently providing the services of watey, sewer, streetiighting, solid waste, park and
recreatlon or greffiitt abetement.



RESOLUTION NO. 2827

The Coursty Assessor has determined that the value of land and improvements within the modffied
boundary is $492,458,936 (§154,467,833 — Iand; $337,991,103 — improvements).

Notice of thls hearing has been adveriised as required by State iaw through publicaiion in The Sun
and Daily Press, newspapers of genersl circulation in the area, As required by State law, individual
notfleation was provided to affecied and interested agencies, County depariments, and those
Inobviduals wishing meiled notics,

in compliance with Commission policy and Government Code Section 55157, the notice of hearing
has been provided by publication of an sighth-page legal ad in The Sun, 8 newspaper of general
circulation, and the Daily Press, a iocal newspaper. Commenis from landowners and any affected
local agency have been reviewed and considered by the Commission in making its determination.
Opposition has been received and considered by the Commission in making its detemnination.

The reorganization Including formation does not conilict with the established County General Plan for
the area and has no direct impact on such land use desighations,

The Commission’s Environmental Consuitant, Tom Dodson of Tom Dodson and Assoclates, has
prepared an environmental assessment and Negative Daclarafion for the reorganization pursuant to
the provisions of the Callfornia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which indicate that epproval of the
reorganization, as modified, will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment. The
Commission certifies that it has reviewed and considerad the Negative Declaration and environmental
effects as outlined in the Initial Study prior to reaching a decision on the project and finds the
information substantiating the Negative Declaration adequate for its use in making a decision as a

CEQA lead agency.

The Commission heneby adopts the Negative Declaration and the related California Depariment of
Fish and Game Ds Minimis impact Finding. The Commission determines that it does not Intend to
adapt mitigation measures or alternatives for the project. The Commission, as a CEQA lead agency,
notes that this proposal is exempt from Department Fish and Game fess because the De Minimis
Impact Finding has heen adopted. The Commission directs its Clerk to file a Nofice of Determination
and Certificate of Fee Exemption within five {5) working days.

The local agencies currently serving the area are: County of San Bemardino, Mojave Water Agency,
Mojave Desert Resource Conservation District, County Service Area 38 (fire protection -- majority of
ihe area), County Service Area 80 {Apple Vallay Airport), Counly Service Area 70 {mult-function
agency}, County Sarvice Area 70 Improvement Zone B (sewer and streetlights - Sliver Lakes area
only), County Service Area 70 improvement Zone C (water servics — Sliver Lakes area only) and
Ceunty Service Area 70 improvement Zone FP-§ (firs protection, emsrgency medical
response/paramedics ~ being creztsd at the present lime and encompassing a majority of the area).

The anly affected agenciss are County Service Area 70 improvement Zones B end C which wili be
dissolved as & function of this reorganization. None of the other agencles will be affectad by this

reorganization as they are regional in nafure.

The proporents of LAFCO 2888 have submitted 2 Feasihility Study which addresses the issuss
required in a plan for the provision of services as required by Goveinment Code Section 56653. This
dogument, Inciuding #ts amendments and supplements, shows that the Community Services District
has sufficient revenues to provide its active range of services (waler, sewer, and streatlighting) upon
formation; and has the ability to plen for the extension of the balancs of its requested services through
franchise fee revenues and potential implementation of development impact fees authorized the



RESCLUTION NO. 2527

agency. The Feasibilily Study and ils supplements have been reviewed and compared wiih the
standards estaplished by the Commission and the factors contained within Government Code Section
86668. The Commission finds that such Study and its supplements conform to those adopted

standards and requirements.

10.  The modified reorganization area can benafit from the availability and extension of services, ss
avidenced by the Feasibility Study and its supplemants.

11.  This proposal compiles with Commission and Siate policies that indicate the preference for the
creation of muldple purpose agencies to setvice growing communities; to allow for areas proposed for
development at an urban-level land use to be included within 2 mulli-purpose agency which is
accountable to the local constituency; and showing that the agency to be formed will have 2
teasonable reserve for at least the first three years following ite formation,

12, The maps and legel descriptinon, s revisad, are In substential conformance with LAFCO and State
standards as determined by the County Surveyor's Office.

SECTION 4. The Executive Officer is hereby authorized and dirscted to mall certified copies of this
resolution in the manner provided by Section 56882 of the Govemment Code noting that its approval is

subject to the confirmation of the registered volers within the affected temitory.

SECTICN 5. The reason fur the reorganization, as spesified In the Pstition for Formeticn, is to establish a
local government that Is responsive to the needs of the peaple withlis the boundsriss of the proposed
Helendale Community Sesvices District and provide local control and accountablfity for the delivery of

services and management of revenues.

SECTION 6. Upon formation, the Helendale Community Services District shall utilize the regular County
Assessment Roll and such shall be identified in the final resclution confimning the formation.

SECTION 7. The Executive Officer, on behalf of the Local Agency Formation Commission, in compliance
with this resolution and Stats law (Part 4, commencing with Government Code Section 57000), hereby
requests that the County of San Bernardino Board of Supervisors direct the County Elections Officiel to
-conduct the necessary slection, setting the matter for consideration on the November 7, 2006 general
election, pursuant to Sovernment Code Sections 57077 and 57100 et seq.

SECTION 8. The question io be submitted to the voters shall read as follows:

"Shall the order adopted on June 21, 2008, by the Local Agency Fermation Commission for San
Bernardiro County ordering the reorganization io include formation of the Helendaie Community Services
District and the Dissolution of County Ssivice Area 70 Improvement Zone B and County Service Area 70
lmprovermnent Zone C, known as LAFCO 2086, be approved eubject to the terms and conditions as mars
pariicularly described in the order?

SECTION 8. The election shall be held within the territory of the reorgenization, es described in Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 10. The eiection to be held shall include a ca!l for election of a five-member board of direciors to
be elscted at-large pursuant to the provisions of the Uniform Elsction Law, Part 4 (commencing with Section

10500) of the Elections Code.

SECTION 11. A simple malority of ballots cast in favor of the measure Is required to confirm the order for the
reorganization to include formation.



RESOLUTION NO. 2g27

SECTION 12. Upon completion of the canvass of ballots cast ai the election, as required pursuant to
Sections 15300 to 15309, inclusive of the Elections Code, the Execuilve Officer shall issus the final resolution
and direct that either a Certificate of Completion or a Cerilficate of Termination, as required by Government
Code Sections 57176 through 57203, and a Statement of Boundary Change, as required by Govemment

Code Secifon 57204, shall ba prepared and filed for the proposai.

THIS ACTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County
of 8an Bernardino by the following vote;

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: Colven, Gonzales, Hansbherger, Pearson

NOES: COMMISSIONERS: Curatalo

ABSENT: GOMMISSIONERS: Biane (Gonzales voting in his stead), Cox {Curatalo
voting in her stead), EicCallon, Nuami

TERCER R TR EC R TR LG T ARNEYI AN O N RS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA §
} se,

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

I, KATHLEEN ROLLINGS-MCDONALD, Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation
Commission of the County of San Bernardino, California, do hereby certify this record to be a full,
true, and correct copy of the action taken by said Gommission by vote of the members present as the
same appaars in the Official Minutes of sald Commission at its regular meeting of June 21, 2006.

DATED: June 22, 2608

“\l““" inrsy,,

& ganmn;;"% '3

7 8%
3

O, bt ooy &
U2 Gt areeneeet 5F
ﬁ ITIL
U, Sl B

enypigppart®™

N



LAFCO 2996

Reorgauization to Jnclude Formation of Helendale Community Service District and

Disselution of County Service Area 70 Improvement Zones B and C.

Sections 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7,8,9, 10, 11 and 12, Township 7 North, Range 4 West, Sections
1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10, 11 and 12, Township 7 North, Range 5 West, Sections 1 and
12, Township 7 North, Range 6 West, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 25,
26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36, Township B North, Range 4 West, Sections
1 through 36, Township 8 North, Range 5 West, Sections 1, 12, 13, 24, 25 and 36,
Township 8 North, Range 6 West, ail of San Bemardino Meridian, in the County of San
Bernardino, State of Califomia, described as follows:

Beginning at the southwest comer of Section 12, Township 7 North, Range 6 West,
S.B.M.;

1
A

Thence northerly along the west line of said Section 12 snd continuing northerly
along section lines to the northwest corner of Section 1, Township 8 North, Range 6

West, 8. B.M.;

Thence ezsterly along the forth line of said Section ! and continuing easterly along
section lines to the northeast corner of Section 4, Township 8 North, Range 4 West,

5.B.M;

Thence southerly along the east line of said Section 4 and continuing southerly along
seclion lines to the northwest comer of Section 27, Township § North, Range & West,

S.B.M,;

Thence easterly along the north line of said Section 27 and confinuing easterly along
section lines to the northeast corner of Section 25, Tuwnship 8 North, Range 4 West,

5.B.M.;

Thence scutherly along the east line of said Section 25 and continuing southerly
along section lines to the southeast corner of Section 12, Township 7 North, Range 4

West, 5.B.M.;

Thence westerly ajong the south line of said section 12 and continuing westerly along
section lines to the Pojnt of Beginning.

The above described area contains 92 square miles, more or less.

This legal description was prepared by me
or under my direction.

John C. Dodrill, P.L.S. 7806 Date
Deputy County Surveyor

Prepared By
EXHIBIT A



LAFCO 2996
AEORGANIZATION TO INCLUDE FORMATION GF
HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRAICT §
DISSOLUTION OF COUNYTY SERVICE AREA 70

IMPROVEMENT ZONES B ANO £ EEEHE.W
® | §
| ”
' 3 4 3 ) 1 _ 4 5 3
__ .
12 ¥ 4 % it I u 7 & 3 @ m
— MINES ROAT 4 .
15 3 ; 8 ” [ %m = £ %! ..l_.!.
| % ] <
E + * " 0 %ﬂ_ y n
SMITHSEN ROAD @\ o0
=
- > o A, :
(8]

,vw.\. 9 : EA*Vm
n 1 q%_.w B %; 1t " I lhﬂlhm&k“ﬁu..ﬁ

_ Leomn; | \ \m .@. Ty

@ wwurgEar  Ammsmon B S R
E. Ll g 5 i
o ’ g—ﬁﬂ.— 2WER A wuﬂ. = S

gy L [Ty [ e e BUDALE

_owemm INGICATES NI PROFORED BNBIDARY
.Q THDICAT YTEAhIF CEANSRU
£.0.B.  HMICATES POINY OF BERTNSIHE

.y




g INOZ LNIWIAOHNI 04 Y383 40 NOILLNT0SSIA

8662 0OV

RN

f

=]

N
\\__
N

i

EXHIBIT B

[

N\

=1

111

=




.@ Arepunog g 02 v§9 2 INOZ LNIWIAOHNI 02 VSO 40 NOILNI0SSIa .__...___..n ...m__.,..a
\ - 0862 004V - AR §
== ) e —— [T
_ U
=
1 _ HI
I i —i1
S— h\‘
T yd
/
5/ ~ , _
/| s \\ N
]
et : g




LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION CONMMISSION
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINOC

215 North “D" Street, Sulte 204
san Bemnardino, CA 52415-0490 « (909) 385-8900 - Fax (90%) E85-9301
E-mall: lafco@iafco.sboounty.gov
wwy.sbelafco.org

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

1, Debby Cheraberlin, Clerk to the Local Agency Formation Coramission for the County of San Bernardino,
hereby certify that the Local Agency Formation Commission has completed a change of organization.

The short title of the action is: LAFCO 2996-Reorganization to Include Formetion of the Helendale
Commnmity Servites Distriet and Dissolution of County Service Area 70 Improvement Zones B and €

The name of each district involved in this change of organizetion or reorganization and the kind or type of
change of organization ordered for each district are as follows:

District of of Organizati
Helendale Community Services District Formed
County Service Area 70 Improvement

ZonesBandC Dissolved

The shove-listed districts are Joceted within the following county: County of San Bemardina,

The change of organization was confirmed by the voters. Resolution No. 2951 confirming the order of
reorganization after confinnution of the voters, a copy of which is atiached as LAFCO Exhibit *A™, was
adopted by the Bxceutive Officer of the Local Agency Formation Commission on Deceniber 4, 2006. The
terms and conditions of the change of organization are set forth in this resolution. The legel description of the
formation ares is set forth in Exhibit “A™ to Resolution No. 2951. A map of the formation area is attached to
Reeolution Mo. 2951 as Exhibit “A-1". Maps of the dissolution areas are attached to Resolution No. 2951 as

Exhibits “B” and “C",
The reorganization area is legally inhebited.
KATHLEEN ROLLINGS-McDONALD

‘ -ﬁ\‘*‘“““;:,“"‘ . Exerutive Officer
R
,§§:§‘ ST,
£ "% 5
£Ei By: £
g3 L Debby Chamber
T v b Clerk to the Commission
%, O, "
i Q *,
'5%"' L « Dated: Decamber 4, 2006
L/

THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ACTICN IS DECEMBER 4, 2006



RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
LOCAL AGENGCY FORMATICN COMMISSION

WHEN RECORDED, PLEASE MAIL TC:
LAFCD
175 W. Fifth Street, 2™ Floor

San Bernardino CA 82415-0480
Inter-Office Mall Code 0480

Exempt from Fae Pursiisnt to Government Code Section 6103

Recoroet n OHivtal Renords, County ol Ean Bernarding

Auditoy/Controller -~ Recorder

P Counter

"~ 20050835338  Thes
Dibar
FATD

This Space for Racerdsr's Use Dnly c ﬂ P Y

t

12/D4/2006
10:13 AWM
EM

Pages: . 11

6.96
.02
B8.80
58.82

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION ~- LAFCO 2996~-BEQORGANTZATION TO INCILUDE FORMATIOR OF
THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AND DISSOLUTION OF COURTY SERVIGE AREA

70 TMPROVEMENT ZONES B AND C

Title of Document

cary

THIS PAGE ADDED TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPACE FOR RECORDING INFORMATION



APPENDIX D

Standard Details and Notes



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Sewer Lateral Policy
(Effective 8/19/2019)

Section 1.  Purpose,

The purposes of this policy is to standardize the procedure for sewer lateral maintenance and
delineate the responsibility of the property owner and the Helendaie Community Services
District (“District™), when a sewer lateral .. i maintenanc  beeomes-blocked. and to set forth
the duties and responsibilities of the General Manager and District staff.

Section 2.  Definitions.

A)  Upper Sewer Lateral — weans ' onnection to the sewer collection system from a
residence or a business to the face of curb.

B) g Bewee Lateral — peean the | onnection to the sewer collection system from the
face of curb to the sewer ain esllection systom.

B) Board — means * he Board of Directors of the District.

C)  Face of Curb - means he front of the curb-line along the sireet. In areas with no
curb/gutter, this is represented by the edge of pavement

m Blockage — means “n impediment in the sewer lateral that impedes proper drainage into
the sewer collection system

E) Blockage removal — mmeans he removal of an impediment through liquid er
mechanical. or other means.

E} Service Provider — means - qualified company that has expertise in sewer lateral and
drain line blockages

F) Clean Out - means  he required sewer clean out on a sewer lateral that allows the
property owner access to the lateral for purposes of clearing blockages

Section 3.  Applicability.

This policy shall apply to ail property sewer lateral connections to the collection system that is
serviced and operated by the Helendale Community Services District.

Section 4. District Responsibility.
Responsibility of the District begins at Face of Curb and extends to the Sewer Collection

System.

Eff 3/29/19



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
. Sewer Lateral Pollcy and Procedures

Sectiond4.  Property Owner Responsibility.

Responsibility for blockage removal for the property owner extends from the property structure
to the Face of Curb.

Section 5.  Causes of blockage.

Typical causes of a sewer lateral blockage are an offset joint, collapse, root intrusion or other
mass originating from {ke structure that prevents unimpeded flow of waste into the sewer
collection system.

Section 6.  Determination of Responsibility

When a blockage of the sewer lateral occurs the property owner may contact the District
regarding the issue. As service order will be issued and a representative from the wastewater
department will respond. The delineation of responsibility will be outlined for the customer.
The customer or the customer s service provider must atiempt to clear the impediment in thr
voper loteral from o o < up-te-the-liner-distanee to the face of curb plue five feet to
aceoant s alope (,u.stoma,r must provide evidence of this effort if District staff is unabic to
be on site. lf this atiempt is not successful and it has been verified that the effort reached face of
curb then the District will be attempt to clear the blockage.

Section 7 Oversight

The Board of Directors has authority over the policies regarding sewer later maintenance and
may change, modify or amend from time to time. The District General Manager is required to
implement policies as approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 8.  Supersedes Other Policies.

This Water and Sewer Account Write-Off policy and procedures supersedes any inconsistent
prior policies adopted by the Board.

Page2 Eff10/1/09



NOILG3INNGS
HARQISOD 40 INIOd ONY

74 HDNL zwh.x?J

ONILSIXT SEFINM M
"3 £ NOUYNIENOD 9 80 ¥
4G TV

. w3 k!V\
.,
- .|.|IJ~ N ‘.un - Im.v.q......mn.i.!\ 3 A . = “|.
\ibl e _!Hﬂﬂe.l!l..,i. L ..‘.ul*.“.. T w.s.m”.,.nfl. T m
T T e :
VALY dddai. :

N NOURNERCD BG Ik Sgv

N

5 MM, UNLESS OTHMERWISE SHOWN ON PLAMS

N ONIE &

i ONNd LHOW E3ivM S8Y
v QIAVIHL FTEVAONIH HLM ]
j H3SIH LNO NYID TIWISK i
,. NI & 18— JIEVGYA LT T ‘
\ 82 ORT'C ZLIMINCT T
] -~
.
LI a\\

u_ T s s

MIMIS, OEvAR G
NOM LSYD SN K08 iy —

n

iIC «.Ewgiirb?ﬁjv SN T e

v

v LN 355 1

\G__o.n_ |ed9}e ] I9MIS— 9 #



COUNTY OF 3SAN BERNARDINO

SPECIAL DISTRICTS DFPARTMENT

COUNTY SERVICE AREA 70,
IMPROVEMENT ZORE B

Rules and Hegulations
for

SEWER SERVICE

RESOLUTION NC. B83-348

Sepremher .12, 1983

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1.0 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Short Title
Words and Phrases

1.1
1.2

1.3 Sewer System
1.4

1.5

BT ST S

Separability
Tampering With District

Systen
Protection from Damage

-
7 Penalty for Vialation
8 Yariance

LV 2 % SN

SECTION 2.0 - DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions i-5

page 1



SECTION 3.0

SECTION

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.8
.10
.1
12
.13

Tl Lad Lar

o

5
5.
;s
5.
5
5.

L LI =R U YO

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(eontinued)

GENERAL USE REGULATIONS

General

Installation Costs

Notifiecation of District

Excavations

Testing

Industriz]l Wastewater

Types of Waste Prohibited

Control of Prohibited Wastas

Haintenance of Flew Equalizing
System

Tests and Messurements

Swimmiag Poels

Pumped Waste
More Restrictive Provisions

APPLICATION FOR SEWER
SERVICE AND CONNECTION
TO SEWER SYSTEHM

Applicatiaon for Sewer Service

Compliance-Intent of Applicant

Payment for Previous Service:-

Application for Connection to
‘Sewer System

Duration of Permit

Compliznce with Permit

Agreenment

Inzpection

Size and Leocaticon

Separate Connections Required

Resicenticzl, Commercizal, and
Industriasl Sewer Service
Connection

Cendemned Work

Liability for Costs

Sewers Outside the District

Sewer Service Feasibility

Study

USERK/STANDBY CHARGES

User Charge
User Charge Classification

User Cantesting.Classirication
User Charge Billing Period
Stand-by Charge

page ii

GO

NE -y~ On o

-

—aE
- s

11
12
12
12
12
T2
12

-

13
13

-

13
13

14

1

14

15
i5



3ECTION 6.0

SECTION

SECYION

SECTION

SECTION

SECTION

T oon

-1
-2

1.0 - CRITERIA FOR DESIGN, TECHNICAL
SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD DRAWINGS

T1.19

2.0 - REPEAL OF FRIOR FROVISIONS

12.1

TARELE OF CONTENTS
{(centinued)

NOTICES

Notices to Owner or User

Notices from Owner or User

DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

Service Refused or Discontinued

Violation

BILLING

Billing Pericd
User Charges

Rendering of Bi)ls
Billing of User Charge
Cwner's Guarantee
Cwner-Tenant Agreement
Change or Ownership

COLLECTION

Delinquent User Charges

Suit against Owner and
Applicant

Costs of Suit

Suits Against Property

Collection on Tax Roll

SCHEDULE OF FEES

Connection Lo Sewar System

Plan Checking
Znspection Fees and
Construction Permit

Adoption

Repeal of Prior Provisions

page iii

16
16

17
17

19

19
19

LI
I

io

-

20
21

22~-23

24

25



CCURTY SERVICE AREA 70,
IMPROVMENT ZONE B

COUNTY CF SAN BERNARDINO

RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR SEWER SERVICE

RESOLUTION NO, 83-348

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ACTING IN ITS CAPACITY AS THE
GOVERNING BGDY OF COUNTY SZRVICE AREA 70, IMPROVMENT ZONE B
ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR SEWER SERYICE,

EE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Superviscrs of the County of San
Bernardino, Czlifornia, acting in its capscity as the governing body
cf Cecunty Service Area 70, Improvement 2one B as follows:

SECTION 1.0 ~ GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Short Title - This Resolution shall be known and may be
cited 25 Rules snd Regulations, Sewer Service.

1.2 Words and Phrases - For the purpose of this Re=olution,
#ll words used herein in the present tense s5hall include the

sure: all werds in the plursl number shali ineclude the singulsr
.mber; and z3ll words in the singular number shall fnelude the

piural number,

—

1.3 Sewer System - The District provides 2z Public Sewer
System, used for the colleectizn, treatment, and disposal of waste
Ww3ters within the Distriet, including all parts of the system, all
sppurternances te it, and lands, easements, rights to land,
contract rights, other collesction and disposal facilities and

squipment.
sub-section, sentence,

any reaszon adjudged
the validity of the

1.4 Separability - If any secticn,
clause, or phrase of this Resolution is for
to be invalid. such decision shall not affeect

remaining portions of this Resolution.

T.5 Tampering with Distrizt System - No one, except an

authorized employee or representative of the District, shall at
any time and in any manner operate, interfere disrupt or tamper
with the Distriet's system or any related equipment.

1.6 Protecticn From Damage ~All District property comes wWithin
the operation of Penal Code, Section 594, which provides in

general that every person who maliciously injures or destrcys any
in cases otherwise than

real or personal property not his own,
Sv - &5 are specified in this Code, is guilty of a misdemeanor."

.
i

page 1



SECTIGN 1.0 ~ GENERAL PROVISTIONS
{continued)

- If any Person rails to comply

with &1l or any part of these Rules and Regulations, or any
Distriect resolution or order fixing rates and charges, the
District may pursue any remedy provided to it by law, including,
without limitation, Section 1.13 of the Distriet Ordinance, =
copy of which is on file and available for inspection at the
business office of the District and at the pffice of the Clerk of

the Board of Supervisors.

1.7 Fenalty for Violatien

1.8 Variance . khen any person, by resson ¢f special
is of the opinion that a variance i3 necessary or

eircumstances,
that any provisior of these Rules and Regulations is vnjust or
inequitable 25 applied to his facilities or property, that Person
may make written application as specified ip Section !'.12.10 of
the District Ordinance, =z copy of which is on file and available
for inspection at the business office of the District and at the

cffice of the Clerk of the Board of Superviscers.

page 2



SECTION 2.0 - DEFINITIONS

2.1 Pefinitions ~ The meaning of terms vsed in these Rules
and Regulations shall be as defined in the Uniform Plumbing Code
eéxcept as specifically modified herein, or as inconsistent with

the definitions contained herejn or with the context thereof.
itions shall prevail in the evert of any

The followinag definit
inconsistency with or cmmission from the Uniferm Plumbing Cecde

definitions:

The person makina applicaticen hereunder,
of the premises involved or his agent

a plumber or contractor

2.1,01 APPLICANT -
who shall be the owner
autheorized as such in writinag, or
licensed as such by the State of California.

2.1.02 AGENT - The person authorized in writing to act on
behalf of the Owner, or a plumber or Contracter acting at the
direction of the Owner and licensed a2s such by the State of
California.

2.1.02 BOARD - The Board of Supervisors of the Caunty of €an
g In its capacity as the

Bernardino, State of California, actin

governing body of the District.

- That portion of sewer from the

2.1.n4 BUILDING SEWER
ng the sewer

building sewer drain to the Public Sewer, includi
lateral and the cleanout.

- An Advisory Commission

o
its po

2.1.n5 COMMISSION
appocinted by the Board in accordance with
2.1.086 CONTRACTOR ~ An individual, firm, corparation,
partnership, or association duly licensed by the State of
Califcrnia to perform the type of work to be done under the

permit, contract or agreement.

2.1.07 COST™ - The cost of labor, material, transportation,
supervision, engineering, ané all other necessary overhead

expenses.
- The County of San Bernardino, Stave of

Aagy 70, TmProyciment Zons 8
2.1.0¢9 DISTRICT =~ Any~eounty-se¥vice-arear“improwement“zgmga
or sanitation district which has adopted these Ryles-and—""
Regqulaticns and for which the Board is the Governing hedy,

textual reference to "The District”, shall mean the county
improvement zone or sanitaticon Adistrict-which is .

2.1.08 courNnTy

California.
Cou wF T SE;"mJ\ e

Also,

service area, :
administering or enforcing these Rules ana Reaulations.

2.1.10C DISTRICT ENGINEER - The Enaireer appointed by the

Board to suppert the District.

€ merson ermploved or appolinted to

2.1.11 DISTRICT MANAGEP - Th
4ct as manacevr for the District.



EECTION 2.0 -~ DEFINITIGHS
(continued)

DISTRICT ORDINANCE - Ordinance No. SD 80-9, adopteg by
1980 to regulate the use and constructior

as the same may be amended from

2.1.12
2he Board on Lecember 1,
0f Public Wastewater Facilities,

time to time.
2.1.12 EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS (EDY) - The pumber of
Eguivalent Dwelling Units fixed and established for ail the

varicus claessifications of types and uszes of property by the
fiiles and Regulations of the District, as such classifications

may be duly revized from time te time.

2.7.14 FIXTURE UNIT EQUIVALENTS The fixture unrit equivelert
prescribed by the Upiflorm Plumbing Code or SUbstantialiy equivalent

provisicens in subseguent plumbing cedes adopted by the Board.

- Splid wastes from the Freparation, cooking, and

Z.1.35 GARBAGE

dispensing of food, and from the handling, stcrage and sale of produce.

2.1.16 INSPECTCR -~ An authorized District representative Who

rerforms inspectiaon duties.

2.%.17 INDUSTRZAL WASTEWATER -~ Any and 511 liquid or water
industrial or commercial Processes, except

borne waste flrom
domestic sewage,

T 1,18 LIVING UNIT . A tuilding or part of =z building
ich contains one kitoher faecility znd/or sne or more
~athrooms, and which is normally used as 5 residence.

~ The person or pPersons Iin whose name %“he legsl

appears by deed duly recorded in the County
Also, = person holding property pursuant teo =

issued by a governmental entity.

1.1 COWNER

tle te gpreperty
corder's O0ffice.
rm Special Use or other permit

1o v gy

i
@
e
e

2.1.20 FERMIT - 4ny written authorization required pursuant
to these Ruies ang Reguiations, the District Crdinance, or any

e
other rule or regulation of the Beard. -

individuals of either sex, or a

2.1.21 PEESON - One or more
reluding the heirs, assigns and

company or other legal entity, i
Suecessors in interest thereof.

- That portion of 3 sewer which is 3

ned or directly controlled by the
lding sewer.

2.1,22 PUBLIL SEWER

commeon sewer and is cw
District., It Zoes not include any paortion of a bui

Any liquid waste containing animal or
Suspension or sclution and may include
n solution.

2.1.23 SEWAGE -
vegetable matter in
iliguids containing chemicels i

page 4



SECTION 2.0 - DEFINITIONS
{continued}

g.1.24 SEWER SYSTEM - & System which may include any
combination of integrated facilities for collecting, transporting,
age, which are owned,

pumping, treating and disposing of sew ]
directly controlled, ar otherwise furnished by the Distriet. Coﬁﬁmmﬂ“
— = -
BoAdLls s Bre
2.1.258 SEXER - A pipe or conduit feor carrying sewage., LoaiTy {rﬂﬂ‘“;zﬂu
N F{:i L Q‘L{_L:LL.. A fmpie '-;‘V-‘*‘-““{
SPECIAL DISTRICTS BEPARTHENT - The depaértment _ - EA IR

2.1.26 /
to'special

duthorized by the Bozrd to provide extended services
districet functioning in the County,

SPECIAL DISTRICTS DIRECTOR - The person appointed by

2.1.27
the Board to act as Director for thbeYSpecial Distriets Depsrtment..
ouE af
2.1.28 UNIFCRM PLUMBING CCDE - The Uniform Flumbing Code ae
Asscciaticn of Plumbing and Mechanical

Published by the international
Officials and as 2dopted by the County as its plumbing code..

2.1.2% USER ~ The person or pPersons owning or controlling or
entitles to pcasession of property or improvements tg which the
vailable.

Taeilities of the Distriet are connected or a

sewver
{ 1. 30 WASTEWATER FACILITIESR ~ Any facility Tof the
treatment, or disposal of sewage,

transportation,

-

page %



SECTIGH 2.0 - GEMNERAL USE REGULATIONS

3 — The constructicn of sewers and laterals and
connections to the Sewer System shall be governed by the
District's Standards for Sanitary Sewers and the Uniform Plumbing
Ccde except as herein modified. Unless the context dictates
ctherwise, the technical terms used in Secticns 2.6 through 3.17
©f these Rules and Requlations {i.=. Bicchemical Oxygen Demand-
B.O.D., Dissclved Solids- D.S., Suspended Sclids- §5.5., ete. )
shall be as defined in the latest® adepted edition of "Standard
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater" zs Publishad

by the American Public Health Association,

2.1 General

3.2 Installation Cests ~- All costs and expenses incident ta
the installaticn and connection of the Building Sewer shall be
borne by the Owner. The Owner shall indemnify the Districst
against any liability occasioned by the installaticn of the

Building Sewer.

3.2 Netification of Distriet - An Applicant for a Building Sewer

Permit shall notify the Distric: twenty four (24) houre in advance

when the Building Sewer is ready for inspection. The Buil@inc Sewer

and its connectiocn to the Sewer System shall be consistent with the
de, and in accordance

District's Standards, the Unifcrm Plumbine Ce

with Section 1.B of the District Ordinance #8580

B80-9.,

- All excavations for Building Sewer

3.4 Excavations
lnstallations shall be adequately guarded with barricades and
lights to protect the pubklic from hazara, Streets, sidewalke,
ard other public property disturted in the course of the work
shall be restcred in a manner satisfactory to the District and
the Owner of such property. All excavaticns shall cemcly with
2ll azpiicable government safety codes and the Contractor or

Owner shall secure all necessary permits.
3.5 Testing -~ A clean-out or two way test tee shall be
instailed at the point the Building Sewer exits the structure and

&t the point the Building Sewer crosses the property line. A
length of 1/2" x 1R" steel re-bar shall be buried horizonally 6"
belcw the ground surface at the location of the ciean-out at the
property line. The connections to the Sewer System shall be
water tested and inspected in the presence of the Inspectcr. The
ting shall ke furnished by the Perscn

labor and materials for tes
All lines showing leaxage, poor

constructing the sewer.
workmanship not in conformance with all applicable codes and
nitary Sewers shall be repaired,

District Standards for Sa
the expense of the Aoplicant or Person

or replaced at

reworked,
d to the satisfacticn of the Inspector.

doing the work an

vage &



ON 3.0 - GEMNERAL USF REGULATIOMS
{continued)

SECTI

ia

Any Perscn desiring to discharoge
industrial wastewater into a Public Sewer of the District will be

reguired, on request of the District, to submit a letter to the

District Manager Presenting information as to the kind and amount
of industrial wastewater to ke so discharged. No industrial
wastewater shail be discharged into the Sewer System which wil]

cause the effluent discharged from the sewage treatment facilities
to violate any discharge requirements set by the Califernia
Regional Water Quality Control Board having jurisdiction.

2.6 Industrial Wastewater

e discharged tc the Public Sewer

No industrial wastewatrer shall
physical and/or

which exceeds the following chemical,

cacteriological concentrations:

a. Methylene Blue Active Substance, 1.0 ma/l.

b.  Dissolved sulfides, 0.1 mg/l.

Five {5) day Biochemircal Oxygen Demand, 700 mg/1.

c.

d. Total dissolved solids, 500 mg/l pPlus the yearly
averace total dissolved solids in the industry's wa<er
supply.

e. Sedium-ion, 100 mg/1 plus yearly averace sodium-ion in
the industry’'s water supply.

i, Chloride-ion, 100 mg/l plus yearly averace of the

chleride-ion in the industry's water supply.

- No Person shall discharge or

3.7 Types of Waste Prohibited
llowing described liquids or

cause to be discharged any of the fo
Other wastes to any Public Sewer:

3.7.01 Flammable, or Explosive Substances - Any gascline,
benzene, naptha, fuel o©il, or other flammable, or explosive
nydrocarbon as a liquid, solid or gas. -

3.7.C2 Toxic cr Poisoncus Sukstances - Any toxic or coisonous
solids, ligquids, or gases in sufficient guantity, either singly
or by interaction with 2ny other wastes, to injure or interfere
with any sewage treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans
Oor animals, create a public nuisance, or create any hazard to the
receiving waters of the sewage treatment piant, inclueding but rot
limited to cyanides in excess of two (2) mg/1l as CN in the wastes

as discharged to the Public Sewer.

- Any lizuid or otrer

pH Rance and Corrosive Properties
n 9.5 or having any

ving a pH lower than 5.5 or higher tha
ty capable of causing damage or hazard to

3.7.03

vastes ha
cther ceorrcsive proper
Person or tec preoperty.

paoe 7



SECTIOU 3.0 - GENERAL USE REGULATIONS
B (continued)

I

3.7.04 Solid or Viscous Substances - Solid or viscous

substances in guantities or of such size capable of causing
or other interference with the

Sbstruction toc the fiow in sewers,

Proper operation of the sewage works, including but not limited

to 'such substances as ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavinos,

metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unaround
manure, hair and fleshings,

garbace, whole blood, paurnch,
entrasils, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, or other

material, either whaole or ground by garbage grinders.

Anv liquid er vapor havins a
fifty {150) decrees F (55

2.7.05 Hioh Temperature Limit
temperature higher than one hundred
degrees C) at the Building Sewer.

= Any ligquid or other
in excess cf one
! Or containing
temperatures
{150}

3.7.06 Fats, Waxes, Grease or Cils
waste containing fats, wax, grease, or oils,

hurdrec (100) ma/l, whether emilsified or net
substances which may solidify or become viscous at
between thirty-two (32) fecrees F and one hundred fifry

degrees F {0 decgraes C and 65 degreas C}.

Heavy Metals or Excessive Chlorine Demand - Any liguid
or other waste containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, and
similar objectionable or toxic substances, or wastes exertino an
excessive chlorine requirement, to such degree, that any such
materizl received in the composite sewage at the sewage treatment

works exceed the limits established by lccal, State or Feders)
agencies for such materials.

3.7.07

Phenols, Odor or Taste Froducing Suistances -~ Any
liquid or other waste containing phenols or ciher taste or odor-
producing substances ir concentraticns exceeding limits which may
be established by the Digtrice +o meet applicable requirements of
the local, State, or Federa: zQencies.

2.7.08

e d

2.7.09 Suspended c¢r Dissolved Solids - Materizals which exist or
cause unusual concentraticns of Suspended Scolids or of Dissolved
Solids, which interfere with the treatment plant process or cause
viciaticns of applicable waste discharge requirements, _

= Arny radiocactive material or

if life or concentraticn limits sex

reculations.

3.7.10 Radicactive Wastes

substance which exceeds the ha
by applicable State or Federal

3.7.12 Jntreatable Wastes - Liquid or other wastes containina
substances which are not amenable to treatment or reduction by
the sewage treatment processes employed, or are not sufficiently
amenable to treatment to permit the sewage treatment plant
effluent to meet the requirements of other agencies having

jurisdicticn over discharge to the receiving waters.

h

caca



SECTION 3.0 - CEMEPAIL USE RFGULATIGNS
{centinued)

Leach Pits,

3.7.12 Purpinas from Septic Tanks, Cesspools,
Holding Tanks and Cremical Toilets - Purpings from chemical p—
toilets, septic tanks, koiding tanks, and cesspools or leach k&*
pits, J
3.7.13 Surface Runoff or Groundwater - furface runoff or
groundwater as indicated in Section 1.8.08 of the District
Ordinance.

- Any waste discharge

.7.14 Water Softenina Unit Wastas
Or operation of water

esulting from the charging, regenerztign
oftening equipment.

o g

3.7.158 Damacing Substances - Any materiel cr concentration of
material which will causs damage, or abnormal maintenance or

cperation costs in respect to any part of the Sewer System.

- If any liquid or other

3.8 Contral of Prohjbited Wastes
waste is discharged, or is proposed to be discharged to the
ontains the substancas or FCssqeszas the

Public Sewers, which con

characteristice enuywe ated in Section 3.7 of thess Rules apd

Regulations or which in the iudcment of the District Manager or
District Representative may have a deleterious effect upon the
Sewer System or the preocesses, eqguipment, or receiving waters
connected tharewith, or which otherwise create a hazard *o 1ife
the District may invoke Section

or corstitute a2 public nuisance,
1.12 and/cr 1.13 of +he District Crdinance. and in addition may

take any of the fZllowing actions

a -~ Require pretveasrens Ty the Owner to an
ition for discharge to the Public Sewers. The
lla i

tion of the plants and gguipment shall he
District and subiect tc

erdinances, laws angd

3.R.01 Frat
acceptable ccngdi
design and insta
subject te the review and
the reguirements of all ap
regulaticns.

trent
™

PO

approval of the
plicable ceodes,

- Reguire that the Owner exercise

2.8.02 Quantities and Rates

specific control over -he gquantities and rates of discharges.

3.8.03 Grease ané Sand Interceptors and Separators - Require the
maintain, and uSe Grease angd Sand Interceptors and

Owner tc instail,
Separators as specified in Sections 70R, 710, 711, and 712 of the

Uniform Plumbing Code, azs modified and superseded by the District
Ordinance or District Rules anrd Reculations.

3.8.04 Costs - Reguire payment from the Owner to ccver the
added cost to the District for handling and treating the wastes

not covered by existing taxes or sewer charges.

=1

RradaGe



e

.3 - GENERAL USE REGULATIONS
lcontinued)

.9 Haintenance of Flow Ecualizing System - Where any fluid or
other waste is undergoing preliminary treatment or flow-equalizing,
the facilities for such processes shall be continuously maintained
in satisfactory and effective Operation by the Owner at his expense

3.10 Tests and Measurements - All measurement, tests, znd

anhalyses of the characteristics of liguid and other waste to
which reference is made in this Resclution shall be conducted in
accordance with the latest adopted edition of "Standard Methods
for the Examinaticn of Water and liastewater" pubiished by the
American Public Health Asscciaticn. The Applicant shall be
responsible for all Costs incurred.

be vnlawful for any Person to

2.1 Swimming Pools - It shali

discharge the contents of a swirming pool into the Publie Sewer

except in the manner specified herein, The rate cf ocut-flow
{100} callons per minute. Fach

shall nct exceed core hundred !
swimming pool discharging into the Publice Sewer shall be equioped
with a fixed air gap 2pproved by the San Bernardino Tounty
Pepartment of Boildine and Safezy and Department of Environmenta)
2f 2 backflow of

Feal:th Services to praclude anvy Possibilicy of

Sewage intc the swimming pool or piping system. 0%j“

3.92 _Rumped Waste - The-discharge. of pumpiﬂgsxgromégbemic%; ?iﬁx

tollers, %eptieftank\é,pdldihq_ggnks, and cesspools-er ledch~Pits ty

is ‘prohibited .~ B e éﬁﬂ““
z 2.7

1. i More Pestrictive Provisions - The District may, by

“ontract cor operation of law be or becore subisct to discharge

reguirements which impcse more restrictius discharge limjtations

than 2re set forth in *his Regulaticn, il such discharce

regquirements are hereby incorgorated into this Reguliation., After

due nctice thereof, no Perschn shall discharge to the Sewer System

ged theretc any wastewater or cther
he District to be in
whether specifically sex

Or cause teo be dischar
substance which would violate Or cause t
violation of any cischarce requirement,

forth as incorporated herein or not.

paoe 10



T

SECTICN 4.0 - APPLICATION FOR SEWER SERVICE
AND CONNECTION TO SEWER SYSTEM

4.1 Application for Sewer Service - Application for sewer

service from the District shall be made by an Agplicart on a form
prescribed by the District. The applicaticn ferm must bhe completed
and signed by the Owner of the parcel requesting service. 1If an
authorized agent of the Owner or the Owner's Centractor requests
service to a parcel on behalf of the current Owner, znd the Owner
is not available to sign the applicztion, the Owner's authorized
agent or Contractor may make application for service by paying a

+¥#5@9G0 deposit covering necessary fees. Upcn receipt by the
District of an application form signed by the Owner, the FEO-0-
ceposit will be refunded to the Owner's authorized egent or
Contractor. The &50%090 deposit will be forfeited if the Districe
does not receive a completed applicatiocn form signed ty the Owner
within 30 days after the Owner's authorized agent or Contractor
makes application. 1In no case shall a sewer connection be
inspected by the District unless the completed application form,
sigrned by the Owner, has bean received by the District. TIf sewer
service is provided to the parcel and payment is not received for
the User Charge due the District, the amcunt of the User Charge due
the District may be deducted from =he S5O0 deposit.
4.2 Compliance-Intent of Applicant - Such applicaticn will
signify the Owner's willingness and intention to comply with this
and other ordinances or regulaticns relating to District sewer

service and to make reguired payment for scwer service,

4.3 Fayment for Previous Service
service Or connection permit will not
accounts or outstanding invoices due the
subject property or by said Applicant,
the satisfactiocn of the District.

iz
te granzed
o er against
n full to

4.4 Epplication for Comnection to Sewer System -~ An Apclicant
shall make applicetion for conrecticon te the Sewer Svstem at the
District cffice. The Applicant shall give a descrirticn of the
character of the work prcoposed to he c¢ene, the legal description
(Lot, Tract, Parcel #, and situs address) the location, ownership,
occupancy, and use of the premises to be served, and the name angd
address cf the Person who shal)l make the connection. The Districe
may require plans, specifications, or drawings and such other
information as may be deemed necessary toc insure complisnce with

Pistrict's Rules and Regulations.

If the District determines that the plans, specifications, drawings,
descriptions, or information furnished by the Applicant are in
ccmpliance with the District Ordinance and all other applicable laws,
rules and regulations, the District shall issue the Permit applied Ffor
vpen payment ¢f the required fees pursuant to Section 10.9 hereor.

pags 11



-

EFCTION 4.0 - APPLICATION FOR SEWER SERVICE
AND CCNNECTION TO SEWER SYSTEM
{ccntinued)

4.5 Duration of Permit - Permits issyeg Pursuant teo these Rules
and Regulations shall expire at the time stated upon the Permit,

not to exceed six {6 menthis, and shall then be of no further force
°or effect. Fees paid under any Permit are not subject to refund or
credit in the event that a Permit expires withcut tompletion of itg

entitlement.

pplication,

4.6 Compliance with Permit - After approval of the a
2 made in the

evidenced by the 1ssuance of a Permit, no change shail »
location of any sewer, or from the grade, materials, time limite
Cwnership or legal descripticn {Lot, Tract, Parcel %, apg situsg
address), or other details described in the Permit or shown on the
£lans and specifications for which the Permit was 1ssued, eXcept with
written permission from an avthorized representative ¢f the

A Permit shall not be transferrable frem one Owner to

Districet.
another cr from one Farcel to another.
4.7 Aareesent - The Applicant's e€igrature on a Permit shall
constitute an agreement between the Owner and the Distriet, in which
the Cwner agrees to comply with ai] applicabkle laws, fules ana
regulations, and ardipances, and with thae Fians and specificartiens if
any, filed with the applicaticr, “Cgether with such me ificaticns
strict. Such dgreemant

thereto as may be made Or permitted by £he DI
shall he binding upen the Applicant and the Cwn

e o
only by the Districe vpcn the Applicant's or Owne

for the alteration.

'S
€r and may be altered
's written reguest

4.8 Inspecticn - All facilities pProposed for acceptance into
any part of the Sewer System must be inspected by the Districe,

or by an Inspector acting for the Distric:, eo insure corplisnce
with all reguirsments cof the District. At least one {1) fuilx
working day notice of readiness fpr inspectieon shall be given

the required inspection.

il

iy
[

e
oy

- The D:istrice reserves the right to

4.9 Size and Locaticn
ewer laterals and their

determine the number &and size of e
location with respect to any premi

Sewers shal2 ):
until the point of connection hazs teen determined and approved by
the Districe. The Districe is not responsible, financially or
otherwise, for the routing of the 3vilding Sewer from the
improvement to the connecticn, or for the locaticn cf the sewer
connectien in relationship te the property or its iMprovements.

4.10 Separate Connections Reguired -~ Fach building shall be
e Sewer System through a separate cornnection.

Where there are two or more dwellings, offices, units, etc. within
i i1lding and owned by the same Owner, and the building :is

District Sewer Main through one (1) Building
ng Sewer shall be no less than six (6) inches in
reviewing the conditions, may

g Sewer and connection.

connected ro th

connected to the
Sewer, that Buildi
diameter. The District, after
specify the size of the Builgin

page 12



SECTION 4.0 - APPLICATICN FOR SEWER SERVIZE
AND COMNECTION TC SEWER SYSTEM
{continued)

Commercial, and Industrial Sewer Service
Connection - It shall be unlawful Lo maintain a4 connection to the
Sewer System except in conformity with the Uniform Flumbing Ccocde,
and the Districts Standards for Sanitary Sewers, When rroperty
provided with one (1) or more zewer connections is divided, each
existing sewer connection shall be considered as Lelonging to the
newly created lot or parcel of land which contains the building
cennected to the sewer. If any Building Sewer is not completely
within the parcel it serves, the Owner must obtain and record any

and &l)! necessary easements for said Building Sewer.

4,11 Residential,

4.12 Conderned Work - When any work subject to a Permit has
been inspected and the work disapproved or ccndemned, and no
certificavion of satisfactory completion given, a written notice
to that effect will be given to the Applicant, instructing him <o
repair or remedy such work in accordance with the applicable
District rules, regula*ions, or standards. Yhen any work is
disapproved or cendemned, a re-inspeccicn fae shall be applicable.

- Both the Owner and the Person
the District for all

wli

4.113 Liability for Costs
making the connection shall be liable to
fees, Costs, and expenses incident to the installation and

connection of any sewer or other work for which a Permit must be
issved. The Owner znd the Person making the connecticn shall
indemnify the District for any loss or damage which may directly
or indirectly be occasioned by their work.

t - Any lot or parcel of land,
District is prohibited from

4.3.4 Sewers Ouv:zside the Disetric
cr portion thersof, cutside of che
cennacting to any portion of the €

istric
ewer System.
4.158 Segwar Service Feasibilisv Study - An Applicant wishing *o
cornect @ subdivisicn tO the PreoDlic Sewer Cr to modify an 2xisting
system shall apply for a Feasibility Study as specified in Section
1.2.04 of the District COrdinance, and pay all applicable fees,

page 13



SECTION 5.0 - USER/STANDBY CHAARGES

5.1 Jzer Charge -~ The Owner of each house, buildingt;br
preperty whieh is required ts connect to the Publie Sew;f, as
Provided in Section 1.6.3 of the District Ordinance, s5hall be
deemed a User, shall Pay a User Charge whether or not/such property
15 connected to the Publie Sewer, shall Pay a User Charge whether
@r not the improvement on that property is occupigd or utilized,
and shall pay that user charge specified in Section 5,2 hereof,

The user ‘charges to be paid

£.2 User Charge Classificaticn -
“o the District by iUsers for 2ever serviece within the boundaries
0f The Distriect are hereby fired zs follows:
User Charge
8. fesidential: per month
{1) Each single Tfamily
dwelling on 2 lot® & i0.00
each additional
living unit on same jot#® $ 10.00
{(2) Each Living unit in a duplex £ 10.00
{3 Each living unit 0 a
motel building ar
multiple unit structure
cr group on o?e iot £ 4.0p
rd
b. fommercial Industrial Users
The charge for alil commercial and/or industriazl
Js5ers shzll be seventy-five percent (75%1) of the
monthly. water till provided that all water used on
the premises is fronm District facilities.
Y
. Sehocl:
Eaph school shall pay a sewer Usep Charge of two
dollars (32.00) Per monthly period during the school
Yerm for each one hurndred (100) 4.D.A., or part
‘thereol, computed on “he previous year's attendance.
5.2 User Contesting Classification - Users who are placed
ication pursuant to Section 5.2 and who are

dithin a cjiassif
dissastisfied with such c¢lassific
for a2 refiew cof their classification
112,12 /af the PBistrict Ordinance

ation may make a Written request
10 acecrdance with Section



SECTION 5.0 - USER/STANLCRY CHARGES
{continued)

-~ Billing by the Distriet for
the property at
ict.

5.4 User Charge Billing Period
User Charges will be mailed to the Owner of
intervals fixed and established by the Distr

5.5 Stand-by Charge -~ A charge of $10.00 per vear per acre and
¥10.00 per year for any portion cf a parcel exceeding one (1) acre
and $10.00 per year for parce;s less than one (1) acre shzll be
charged to the Owner of all parcels within 200 feet of a2 sewer line
and not connected to the Sewer System prior to July lst of any vear
in which is levied. Delirigquent Stand-by Charaes may be added to the
Froperty tax bill and patome a lien on the propersy,

b < .

vaae 15



SECTION 6.0 ~ NOTICES

6.1 Hotices to Cwner er User - MNotice from the District to an

Owner or User will normally be given in writing and either
delivered or mailed to the Owner's last known address. {There
conditions warrant, and in emergencies, such npotice may be given

crally, by telephone or messenoer

= Notice from the Cvwner or

6.2 Notices frem Owner or User
in writing to the following

User to the Districe may be given
Places or persons.

£.2.01 Business office of the District.
6.2.02 Office of the District Manager.
£.2.053 Cffice of the Special Districts Director.

-



SECTION 7.0 - DISCONTINUANCE OF STRVICE

Service Refused or Discentinued -~ Sewer service may be

or discontinued by the District as provided by Section
the District Ordinance, for any one or

7.1

refused
1.12.02 angd 1.12.06 of
more of the following reasons:

7.1.01. Unauthorized use of apparatuses or appliiances which

might endanger or disturb the service to other Users:

7.1.02. Non-compliance with this resclution or any cther
resolution, ordinance or ragulaticn relating to the sewer service;

Protection of District facilities.

7.1.03.

7.1.04. Delinguency of any fee or charge due the District by the

Applicant or related to subject p property.

7.2. Viclation - In addl 1cn to discentinuation of sewer service
ions or ordinances shall be a

viclation of Dist 1ct regulat

misdemeanor, as detailed in Section 1.13 of the District Qrdinance.
E ]

Al



SECTICIH P.n « 8BILLIYNS

- .

8.1 Billing PerioAd The billing peried shail) be Setermined

by the District.

8.2 User Charces =~ User Charces shall be due and rayable at
the Office of thne District as noted in the billine staterent (i
person or by mail) on the date of mailing the bill to the Owner
shown on the Application, and shall he delinguent 30 days

thereafter. Service may be discontinued if rayment is not made

within 45 days of hilling.

0

- Ril for User Charges srhall be

8.5 Rendering of Bills Is ¥
rendered in advance or arrears, at the determination of the
Distriet. Bills shall be pavable upcn presentation.

8.4 Billine of User Charce - Separate bills shall be rendersd

for each service connection.

B.5 Cwrer's Guarantee -~ The User Charce tegins when the

Buiiding Sewer has been cornected +o the Sewer System anA
the District has insmec:tesd and apnroved

g Sewer frcm the Zewer System. The
Jointlv ang severally liabls

continues until
disconnection for the Builgdin
Owner and the Applicant will he held
for User Charges.

~ Vhere the Owner leases Fis

for sewer service,

1 be completed and

2.6 Owner-Tenant horeement
property and wishes to have £h
2 standard form provided by the District shal
signed by the tenant and the Owner and returned
by the District before becoming effective. Such an agreement
8oes not relieve the Owner of the primary responsibility fer

raying User {harges.

e tenant hilled

e and approved

8,7 Chanse ¢f Cwnershio - Upen transfer of oWnersaip of =
property served by the District, the previcus Owner is resconsible
for the paynent of 211 User Charges due the District Prior to the
effective date of transfer, and ihe new Cwrer is responsible for
all User Charges accruing afrer :the effective transfer of ownership
date.

AE

e Rl T



SECTICH 9.0 - COLLECTICH

9.1 Delirnguent User Charges - Accounts not paid cn or before
the date in which they Lecome delinguent will be subject to a
penalty of ten percent {10%) e2ffective upon the date of
delinquency and thereafter subject to an interest charge of one
half percent (0.5%) per month cn the entire unpaid halance.

8.2 Suit Against Owner and Applicant - All unpaid fees,
charges, and penalties herein provided may be collected by suit

against the Owner or the Applicant, or both.
of Suit - Defendant shall pay all costs of suit and

2.3 Costs
amount for attorney fees as fixed by the court in

a reasonable
any judgment rendered In favor of the District.

8.4 Suit Against Property - Any and all bills rendered for
User Charges, permit fees, connection fees, ccsts of suits, or
any other debts cwed the District shall be deemed to rum with
property in addition to teing the perscral oebligation of the

Owner and the Applicant, and, at the cption of the Districet,
making any such debt a lien against

the

legal action may be taken,
the property.

G - All User Chsrges. Permit Fees,
Standby Charges, Connection Fees, and cther fees or charges
payable to the Bistrict may, at the option of the District, be
added to the Jcunty Tax Rell for collection in accordance with

c.5 Collection On Tax Roll

procedures established by law.

= Z)/C_

page 19



"
n
m
0

EECTICN 10.0 - SCHEDULE OF

10.1 Connection to Sewer Svstem

10.1.01 Permit and Inspecticon Fee -~ For each connection of

a Building Sewer to the Sewer System, there shali be a

combined Permit and Inspecticn Fee of twenty- Fﬂve dollars
(525.00) due and payable at the time the Applicant applies for

a Connection Permit.

Each time a connection has been 1ﬂ5pected arnd the work is
disapproved cr wopdemned, a Re-i nspection Fee of twenty~five
dollars {S22.60) must be paid by the Aprlicant to the
District office prier to an Inspecter re-inspecting any

disappreved work.
.1.02 Main Sewer uonn@ctwcn Charge - A Main Sewer
be ccllected at the time the Applicant
fees

applies for a Lcnnectlon Permit, in additicn %0 3!l cther
hersin set forth. The Main Sawer Connection Charce shall be
determined by the District at the time of application for

Cennection Permit.

Connectﬁon Charge shal

is connected to the Sewer System is
farthquake, or other natural disaster,
‘rcn the preperty., and within

If a structure which
destroved by fire,
r is demalished aud remover
one () vear thereafter :he Owner receives a Building Permit
YO Cconmstruct a new structure cn *he property and coroletes
such censtruction within the period initially provided by

1 be no additional Main Sewer

such Permit, zhere ghell
If the Owner fails to obtain a Building

Conrecticn Charge.
Fermit within one (1) year of the destruction cr reroval of
the original structure {and fails to ceonstruct within the
time stated in the Permit), the Owner shal: pay the Main
Sewer Connection Charge in effect a% the time he obtains

inspection for the new structure.

+

final
10.1.03 Buy-in Charge - A property cwner may be charged a
"Buy<in" charge if the property is bei ng or has been annexed
to the Dlstrlct: was not assessed for the ceonstructicn of
the Public Sewer during Assessment Districe profeedhnus- or
as otherwise necessary to pay for Public Sewer improvements

which benefit the property.

paae 2N



SECTION 1N0.0 - SCHEDULE OF FEFES

{centinued])

10.2 Plan Checking
1c.2.012 Plan Checking Reguired - FPlans for sewerage
ned and constructed by ary Person other

facilities to be desig
than District, where said facilities are to be conveyed to
Y

the District, shall submit the plans and specifications and
all other documents reguired to the Special Districts

Department for plan checking with the required plan checking
fee 2s herein specifies. The application for plan checking
shall be made or the standard form furnished by the Special

Districts Department.

10.2.02 Plan Check Fee Schedule

10.2.02.1 - Main lipe sewer lenogth* (includes manholes. cleanocute,

tees) plus lateral length to the prcpertv line.
Checking Fee

Quantity*
1,000 or le=zs s$300
1,001 to 3,000 $200 pius SO.?O/:-‘E_*:.- over 1,000
3,001 to S,000° $700 plus S0.:15/ft. over i, oeont
5.001" to 7,002° $1.000 plus 8n.10/ft. over 5,000
7,001" and up $1,200 plus S0.05/ft. over 7.000¢

lg.2.02.2 ~
Sewage treatment plants, performed on a Cecst basisg;
sewage 1lift stations and 5500 deposit reguired.
specielly designed sewer
related farcilities.

10.2.02.3 -
Rechecking: Rechecking of Plans after plans have been approved,

on behalf of Ccunty, due to design or quantity changes or
modifications in specifications, will be performed en a Cost
basis. Rechecking fee shall be paid prior to apprcval of chances.

10.2.82.4 -
In addition to the above fees, Smeciel Districts Department
will charge an application and Frocessing fee in the amount of
5% of plan check fees with a minimum fee of £25.nn,

pzsoe 2?1



10.3 Inspection Fees and Construction Permitc

13.3.n1 Inspection Reguired - Prior to the commencement of
construction of sewage facilitries for which plans have heen

approved, the Cwner or his Acent shall rmake arplicaticon for a
The

Construction Fermit to the Special Districts Department.

fees required for inspection shall accomoany said application
The aspplication for Censtruction Permit shall »e made on the
standard feorm furnished Dy the Special Districts Departmant.

In additicn to the inspection fee listed below, the Owner or his Agent
shail deposit with the Special Districrs Department, alona with sgziA
application, §250 to cover the Cost of any reingspecticon, includine
time and mileage when & request is made by the Cwner cr his Agent for
i The balance of

inspection and the work is not ready fcr inspection.
any unused 5250 will be refunded at the time the work is accepted by

the District. If the 5250 deposit is depleted tefore the work is
completed, the Cwner or ris Agent shall deposit another S$250 with
Special Districts Department for this surpose before any more
inspection will be performed by the District Representative.

the

10.3.02 Inspection Fee Schedule

10.3.02.1 ~ Main line sewer length* {inciudes manholes, cleanouts
oo I;"i

tees) plus lateral length to
Required

Inspection Pee Deposit

(performed on an actuz:

Quantitv®*
cosh incurred basis)
I to 200 S3200
$400

201" ro 1,000°
Gver 1,000 §400 plus £.40 per foot or
porticn thereof ever 1n0n

.3.02.2 -
Sewage lift station, s700
sewage treatment plants

2nd specially designed sewer

related facilities.

1
L]

19.3,02.3 -
In addition t¢ the above fees, Epecial Distriests Department
will charge an application orocessing fee of 5% of the total
inspection fees with a minimum fee of §75.0n,



SECTICY 1n.0 - SCHEDULFY OF rEFg
- {continued)

Holiday and Cvertime Inspection: Ingpection

y and holidays will be provided if
Inspectors are available and a2 minimum of crne week advance
notification is given to the District by the Owner or his
Agent. All Costs for Saturday, noliday and overtime
inspection shall e paid by the Owner or his Agent at the
actual Cost incurred. Advance depcsit is reguired.

10.3.¢2.4 - Saturday,
for work on Saturds
¥

pagce 23



SECTION 11.0 - CRITERTA FOR DPSIGM,
TECHNICAT, SPECIZICATIONS AND STEMNDARD DRAWING

iS5
1.1 Adopticn -~ Criteria for desion, technical specificaticns
and standard drawings for the constru

ction ¢f Public Sewer
Fecilities shall ke reccmmended by the District

approved by the Board of Surervisors,
be on file

Enginesr and

All approved criteria wil!
in the office of the District

waae 24



[

F_FRIOR PACVISIONS

SECTION 12,0 - AZpEal

~ In acccrcdance with Section 5.9
2il rules, resclutions.
in effect withinp
contained
after the

12. Repeea el Prior Provisiaens
ef Grd‘naﬁce hc SD E2-6 of the District,
and Schecdules of fees and charges now or heretofore

the District whieh apply to the ssme subliect matter as
herein shsll be of no further force or effect from and

date of adoption of this Fesoluticn

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Bosrd of Supervisors of
ifornia,. by the follewing vote:

San Bernardino County, State of g1
AYES:  fovner Rierdan, Townsend, Hammock and McElwain

NOES: Nene

ABSENT: Neone

)
) 58
NTY OF SiN BERNARDING b

SEKERAK, Clerk of the Soard of Supervisprs

Cal fornia, hereby zertify the forego:ing
c2py of the record of the aetisn as
al Pinutes o sa3ig Becard a5 its

I, MARTHA M.
¢l %en Bernardino County,
te be 2 full, trues zn2 cerraa
the szme appears in thre QfLicd
meeting of GQenromher 12 188%

. MARTHA M. SIKERLK, Clerk 2f the Bgarc
of Supervisers of San Bernardineo County

J Deputy

By




oY ong
v oag

FRCM: VERNON G. KNOUREK,
for SPECIAL DISTRICTS
SUBJECT: COUNTY SERVICE AREAS 708,

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

OF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

September

RESQOLUTICONS ESTABLISHING
FOR SEWER SERVICE

s

g2,

RUL

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Rescluticns No.
and 83— 351 , establishing Bules and
for County Service Areas ?DB

349)

BACKGROUND:

County Service Areas 70B, 82,

the Board in 7972,
year

the Distriet Engineer have been

standardizing all Special Districts!

#iil adequately add-ess the
Freviously, the Bcard adopted
Service Areszs,

¢entained herein,

and many portions are outdateaq.

the Special Districts Department,
revi

similer
and after adoption of the proposed resolutions
there will be one County Service Area's Rules

" 451/
(i

Assistant Administrative Office;
\

82 SY-3, AND B2 Svy.uy
ES AND REGULATIONS

343, 83- 350,
Sewer Serviee
respectivel:

83"’ 348 ] 33"
Rngu4atious for

' d 82 3Vv.y
Gsgr 2nd 8258

The current du;es and Ragularlors for Sewer Service fo
&2 3V-3, and 82 SV-4 were adopted by

the p=st
and

For
the Distriet Manager,

updating and

ewing,
and Regulations so they

Rules
County Service Areas’® current needs.
resolutions for other County

nd Regulations remzining to be updatad.

The proposed fules and Regulations will:

state that a Purson

damaging the Districts’ Systems is guilty of 2 misdemearnor

(Section 1.6); stzte the
Connection {(Section 3.5):
Sand Interceptors (Section
Application for
{Sections 4.1-4.3);
connections {Section 4,31D);

billing., delinquency, collee
ownership, and the Cwner's

(Sections 6.1-6.7);
inspection Fees (Section 90.
regarding a building (served by
demolished and rebuilt {Sacticn

requirements feor a Buy-in Charge (Secticn

state

tion, ¢
resporsibility regarding User Charges

procedure for
speciiy the requirements

3.8.03;

SewWwer Service and the responsibi

clarify the Districts!
trhe Districts!?

clarify the Districts!'
Loy

a D
10,

Buiilding Sewer

testing 3
and

for Grease
state the procedure for making
lity of the Owner
reguirement for separate
pelicy for

csts of suit, change of
requirement for

state the Districts' policy
istrict) which is destroved or
:te the Districts'

1.82)) and stz
10.1,048),
Page 1 of 2

cC:

Spec,, Dists. w/4 res,

CSA 70B, (CSA B2, B2 SV-3&
Audizor w/b res.

Assessor w/4 res.

Files w/res,

MOTION

;ki

MARTHA

Action of tre Boad ol Supervisors

RESOLUTIONS MOS, B3-348 thru B3-351
APPROVED B0ARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

X

X X M g

2 3 4 S

EXERAK, CLERK GF THE BOARD

I, At et

=)y
DATED:

SEP 1 2 /983

&Y




Page 2 of 2
September 12, 7433
AGEHDA ITEM

B2, B2 5V-32, ARD £2 sSv_-y4

SUBJECT: COUNTY SERVICE ALREAS 70B,
RESOLUTIONS ESTABLISKING RULES AND REGULATICHS

FOR SEWER SERVICE

AMDUNT OF FEES: The propcsed Rules and Regulations establiish all
fees at the same lavel as currently adopted by the Boarg.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: The Board's adeption of the proposed
resglutions 15 needed to assure the Districts' authecrity ta

progperly regulate the use and construction of the County

Service Areas' Public Sewer Systems.

COORDINATION WITH OTHER DEPARTMENTS: The proposed Fesolutions
Flanning,

have been reviewed by Environmental Hezlth Services,

and Building and Safety.

REVIEW BY OTHER DEPARTMENTS: This item has besn coordinated with

County Counsel, Ed Duddy
4
Fage 2 aof 2



APPENDIX E

Overflow Response Forms



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
LAHONTAN REGION

REPORTING
UNAUTHORIZED WASTE DISCHARGES (SPILLS & LEAKS)

L HOW TQ REPORT
A. Initial Verbal Notification:

I.  For unauthorized discharges of hazardous material, or jor public health or
environmental cmergencies caused by a waste discharge or threatened waste
discharge:

A.  Dial 9-1-1 for emergency response by locai agencies
B.  Then telephone:

(800) 852-7550 or
(916) 262-1621 Office of Emergency Services (OES) ~ 24-hour
emergency telephone numbers

2. For all vifer unauthorized dlscharges or threatened discharges that are not an immediate
threat to public health or the environment, telephone Regional Board staff as soon s
possible using the following telephone numbers:

(760) 241-6583 Victorville Branch Office (After
business hours, voice mail is
available to leave messages.)

or
(530) 542-3400 South Lake Tahoe Office -
Regional Board's Main Office

(After business hours, voice mail is
available to leave messages.)

Page 1 of 5



Spills Reporting 10/23/02

B. Written Notification:

Mail written notification to the following address within ten (10) business days of an
unauthorized discharge:

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD.
LAHONTAN REGION
2501 LAKE TAHOE BOULEVARD
SOUTH LAKE TAHOE. CA 96150

or

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROIL. BOARD.
LAHONTAN REGION
14440 CIVIC DRIVE. SUITE 200
VICTORVILLE; CA 92392-2306

Unauthorized discharges are to be reported to the Regional Board by a typed and signed
letter/report containing specific information about the discharge. The enclosed “REPORT
OF UNAUTHORIZED WASTE DISCHARGE INFORMATION EORM” {Enclosure A)
shows the type of information needed. It is recommended that persons reporting
unauthorized discharges use this form, or a similar reporting format, in reporting discharges
to the Regional Board. Underground storage tank leaks should be reported using the Siate
Water Resources Control Board form entitled: "UNAUTHORIZED RELEASE (LEAK)/
CONTAMINATION SITE REPORT," a copy of which is available online at

hitp://'www.waterboards.ca.gov/waler issues/programs/ust/forms/decs/unauth release pdf

C. General:

Under California law, the person(s) or entity(ies) responsible for notifying the Regional
Board is the "discharger,” which is: (1) the entity(ies) that caused or allowed the discharge
to occur, (2) the operator(s) and/or (3) the property owner(s), depending on the
circumstances. If the discharger is not avaiiabie or cannot be identified, the county or city
should make the initial verbal notification. These reporting requirements are in addition to
the requirements ir the facility waste discharge requircments and all other applicable
Regional Board orders. Notification of the Regional Board is not a substitute for required
notification of other agencies.

Page 2 of 5



Spills Reporting 10/23/02

1L WHICH DISCHARGES TO REPORT

A.  Hazardous Wastes/Materiais:

L.

if any of the following conditions are met. report the unauthorized or threatened
unauthorized discharge using the initial verbal notification and subsequent written
notification procedures described above (ftems LA and 1.B).

The discharge or threatened discharge is {or wili be):

a.  Equal to or in excess or a reportable quantity established by California state law
or regulations,

b.  Over five (5) gallons' for halogenated volatile organic solvents {e.g., PCE, TCE,
etc.),

. Over forty-two (42) gallons' for all other liuids,

d.  Overone (1) cubic yard' for solids,

¢ To waters of the state (Waters of the state inciude all wasers within the
boundaries of the state, whether puhlic or private, whether in natural or artificial

cheinel and whether surfoce or subsurface.).

. Tothe ground within five feet of ground water or within 500 feet of 3 surace
water, water well, or domestic waier supply source,

g Causing a pollution or threatenod pollution” of surface or ground walers, or
h.  Causing a nuisance®,

i. A potential threat to public health,

All other hazardous waste discharges normally do not require initial verbal
notification to the Regional Board staff; however, Regional Board staff requires
written notification as described below. This wriiten notification zan be submitted

with a self-monitoring report provided the monitoring report is submitted and dus
within 30 days.

Page 3 of 5



Spills Reporting
B. Designated Wastes as Defined in Chapter 15, Title 23, Cal. Code Of Regs.

C.

(Wastes/Materials that could Impact Water Quality but are Nonhazardous -
excluding domestic wastewater, earthen material and refuse):

Report all unauthorized or threatened unauthorized discharges that are over forty-two (42)
gallons' for liquids, 10 cubic yards' for solids or fall into category(ies)e, . g. hori of
ILA.1, above, using the initial verbal notification and written notification procedures in |.A
and LB, above.

All other discharges normally do not require initial verbal notificaticn to the Regional
Board staff; however, we require written notification be provided as described in 1B and
I1.A.2, above.*

Treated and Untreated Domestic Wastewater:

(For additionai details, sec the document “Reporting Sewage Releases™ available at the
website http://www.swreb.ca.gov/rwqceb$/files/reporting sewage_releasss.pdf)

Report all unauthorized or threatened unauthorized discharges of 1,000 gallons or more'
usieg the above initial verbal notification and written notification procedures. When the
volume is under 1,000 gallons', Regional Board staff requires that the same reporting
procedures be used if the incident fails into the category(ies) e, f, g, h and/or i of part
iL.A.1, above. Ifit does not fall into one of these categories, Regional Board staff reguests
that only written notification be provided as described in 1.B. and 11.A.2, above.*

Earthen Wastes:

Report unauthorized discharges or threatened unauthorized discharges of zarther material
(e.g.. soil, silt, sediment, etc.) that either have or could reach surface waters. using the
above initial verbal notification and written notification procedures described in 1.B and
ILA.2. Discharges of earthen materials 1o ditches, canals, or private man-made lakes
generally do not need to be reported to the Regional Board Office, unless they are tributary
to other surface waters,

Nonhazardous Solid Wastes (Domestic and Industrial Refuse):

Report illegal dumpsites using the above written notitication procedures in 1.B. above. If
there is a discharge or threatencd discharge to a ground or surface water. we should also be
notified using both the initial verbal and written notification procedures described above.

Page 4 of 5

10/23/02



Spills Reporting 10/23/02

Endrotes

“This quantity is provided only as guidance o allow fster decision on which dischames s report by the inddal verbal
nwtification procedure, The guantity & not ineended to supersede any orher repostable quantity established by baw ur
regularion.

"Pollution” means an lteration of fhe spalivg b the waters of the State to a degpree which unrcasanabily atfocis:
{1} such waters For bencficial uses, or
{2) facilivies which serve such beneficiad wses,

"Poliution” may inelude “conrmingtios.” [Califoria Water Code §13050(0)}
3 "Nabsance” means anyihing whi
(1} Bs dnjurious ro bealth, or is fsdecent or offonsive to the senses, orun ubstrsetion (o the free use of propesty,
86 s it Interfere with the comtentzble enjoyinent of life or Juroncey,
(& Vs ar the siane dme an entire consmunity or nvighborhond, or 2ty considerable nupeber or porsans.
although the extent of the annoyance Hr dunype inficed upsn ddividusds sy he uncequal, sl
(% Oecors Juring uras 2 result of the treastment or divposal of wastes.

2

4 Small discharges of hezrdous waste, Jesignared waste, or SWage o voastrocted surfaces Lo, Poors, puvement, ere)
do not have to be reporred o the Regional Boar provided Hie surdace i not ceacked, there s e disehange ibsough
the surface, 2 nuisance condition does not oceur 2 the waste and uny contuminated povtion of the surface that
canaot be decontaminated 1s removed mmediately for dispez=al ar a bead site.

Page 5 of 3



Enclosure A

REPORT OF UNAUTHORIZED WASTE DISCHARGE
INFORMATION FORM

LAHONTAN REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

Discharger

Company;

Contact Person:

Physical Address; —

Mailing Address:

Telephone No.; _

Date and Time of Occurrence:

MMEMW:
Address:
Section/Township/Range: e
Assessor’s Parcel Number: e

Map showing general site location attached? (Yes or No )

Map showing aerial and vertical extent of affected soil and water,
including sampling locations, attached? (Yes _____orNo_ )

Person Reporting Discharge

Name:

Agency Name:

Address: ) ) . S S

Telephone No.:

Page 1 of §



Report Of Unauthorized Waste Discharge
Information Form

Initial Verbal Notification to Regional Board

Person Notified:

Date: _

Time:

Person who made notification: '

OCther Agencies Notifiad:

Indicate agencies, dates, times, and persons notified:

Material Discharged:
Peseription: .
Harerdous discharze? (Ves orNo_ )

Volume of discharge: ) .

Discharged To:

Ground/Soil? (Yes or No ) Depth to water:

How determined; ___ o
Ground Water? (Yes _ ., No_____ or Unknown )

Surface Water?: (Yes __ . No____or Unknown )

Name of water body:

Other?; (Describe) T .




Report Of Unauthorized Waste Discharge
Information Form

Description of Incident:

Equipment involved:

Description of events;

Cause: Operator error: (Yes____ /No )
Equipment failure: (Yes _ MNo__ _ )
Inadequate design: (Yes ______/No I |

Observed Eftects of Incident or Release (Provide details for any Yes responses)

Any injuries or human exposure? (Yes ____ or No )

Evacuations required? (Yes__ or No )

Any water system(s) shut down? {(Yes orNo_ )

Any fish or wildlife killed, or adversely affect? (Yes.  orNo —_ - inchude estimated
number killed.)

Any odors or gases (Yes or No )

Any vegetation damaged? (Yes __ or No )

Any other adverse effects on the environment, ¢.g., discolored water. oil sheen, explosion.
ctc.? (Yes _orNo _____ ~-describe)

Any photographs taken? (Yes cee.0rNo __ —ifyes, indicate number, and attach
copies or indicate where copies can be inspected.)




Report Of Unauthorized Waste Discharge
Information Form

Samples

Samples collected? (Yes ____ or No }

It Yes. provide details on type(s) of samples, sampling locations, dates collected, etc.

Sampling locations shown on attached map? (Yes ___orNo___ )
Chain-of-Custody forms for samples attached? (Yes____orNo_____ )
Samples analyzed by a California certified laboratory? (Yes ___ _orNo___ )
Samples tested to appropriate detection levels? {Yes or No )

Sample Identification Nos.:
Paramcters Analyzed: o -
Copies of all laboratory reports afteched? (Yes __ or No 3

Discharge Stoppage

Describe how and when Jischarge was stopped.

Containment

How?

iNhen?

Where?

What material?



Report Of Unauthorized Waste Discharge
inforisation Form

Remedial Actions (Completed and Proposed)

Decontamination/Disinfection details:

Fquipment and facility repairs:

Soil and water cleanup:

Other corrective action:

Temporary Storage of Removed Matcrial
Where?

For how long?

How stored?

Permanent Disposal

Site location:

When?




Report Of Unauthorized Waste Discharge
Information Form

Preventing Incident Recurrence

Changes proposed:

Time Schedule for Completing Above-Describe Work:

Other Comments ( Attach additional sheets as needed)

Signature ' - Date



APPENDIX F

Fats, Qil, and Grease (FOG) Program Forms



Best Practices to Manage Kitchen

Fats, Oil and Grease

Wipe pots, pans, and dishware
prior to washing

Collect used cooking oil and
store for recycling — Place
waste oil in the trash if not
recycleable

Dispose food waste directly
into the trash — Use of garbage
grinders is prohibited

Use absorbent products to
contain spills - Do not flush
down floor drain

Keep grezse dissolving
products out of the sink and
floor drain

SERV/A
LS
= 2
3 5
= =
= ==
8 q
E

HELENDAL

Después de cocinar, con un trapo
limpie las grasas o aceites de jos
utensilios utilizados y después
lavelos

El aceite o grasas sobrantes
usados, sepérelos y reciclelos -
Péngalo en Ia basura si no se
puede recicizr

El uso de trituradores ests
prohibido, por eso todos los
residuos alimenticios deben
ponerse en el bote de basura - No
deje que se vayan por la coladera
del fregadero

Cuando haya derrames de grasas o
aceites, recéjalos con trapos o
toallas absorbentes, no permita
que se vayan por ef drenaje del
piso

No use productos para disolver las
grasas dentro del fregadero, ni en
el drenaje deli piso

Helendale oMMty Services Disteicl
Fisr More Infurmation ¢Call- [ Tedl 9T AN




D16 (09L) 11T, HoNRILIONI] daoy d0, ] o
RILIISI $3M AN AJHINWNe, ) Y epuapp m£~ g
]

eselb sp soadacusyu jop Jopaju)
Bp A ‘ousayxe syuaidinar Iop eseib e] appay

ajuawenelp esesb op saiondaoseug sof ardwr

esesb ap soydeosajul |9
ue (Aeyuaiyes ,ob1 Sp sew) ajusijed enbe aun ON

eselb
ap Joydaouayu e soje|d ap RIopRAR| Bf 3108000 ON

42mag Ay o

dedy oY) woy paunup|s sseasb pue
‘Jaulejund a wios aseasb Iyl apiray

Aep A1aas sden aseasb Uedy

sdeq aseasb ogui (3 0T
uelys asow) taem joy ebseysip Jou og

S1aysemysIp jestueyosi Y0aUUCD J0u 0Q

'._umll.mﬂ e
— A
e

e war o e

JIVANITTH-

sden aseaub 03

=l

SKULS

sdei) aseain EE@QD 0} Sadljdeid i1sag




AOL-3THIAUINI 13 ANIWAYVIND TS
YEd VIJZNIDIN NOD VISLEHOJSN L

AN A IZan0g ano
VINVANOD WNM ¥ JivuiNGD

110 NN ATINYH QISNEON v 3AvH

ATIYINO TS
HOLAIFHIINI HN0A NYIID aNy

H3M35
AL OL

ATVANITIAH

YNNI 1S6 QYL h__n,..v uonrIo)g adugy Juryg ._..M m...
JLIISICY 21008 AjTunuiue, ) MEPUAIH m = f&wm
a =
o &
N g
avosxwmf
SYANOE SYIONVISNS
SYI dC UVCIONNJONd Vi AINIWAYTINDTY ISIATY
ARSI HId3a carog NIIHD
X0
ONITANYS I3IA30
AdOLYINO3Y
MOT4
HNIS WOMA
oy = MONI

WIOL AvaiaNnJoNd Vi 30 %Sz Tv STAONIV $3S N3TIa svanos
SYIONVLENS SV a0 (WAANNIONL V1 A vEvao v 30 405039 13

HO143ITIZINI 130 _

AHL 4O ULdad Y101 IHL 40 BT NYHL 61

36 AMNOKS H1400 Sanog

AOLA3THIIN
AONY SSINNDIUL ISVTED

$101da2.aju| aseairy) ajesadp o) S3d110e.d isog

VEVED Y1 30 F0SCHD 13 ALNINRYINDTY AGIATS

ATIVINDIZ SCINYDIMHL ASYTED YoauD




3 Me B

8l 9

[EEETE Helendale Community Services District
Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #8
Discussion Only Regarding Final Payment for Water Rights Acquisition from
December 2020

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Receive and File.

STAFF REPORT:
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide information to the Board regarding the final
payment on a water rights acquisition and occurred in 2020.

In 2020, the District purchased 111 acre-feet of water rights and entered into a promissory note
with the seller to provide payments over the successive two years. The first payment was made in
December of 2020, with the successive payments made January 2021, January 2022 and finally, on
January 2023 the last payment of $185,000 will be made from the water fund.This expense has
been budgeted annually since approved by the Board. Along with the purchase of base annual
production rights the District acquired the free production allowance from the property making
this one of the most beneficial acquisitions for water rights.

With two new Board member and questions from a current board member this week, Staff felt the
following information that was presented in October would be a helpful review of the District
water rights.

WATER RIGHTS REVIEW:

The District has made significant investment in water resources during its history. It has been an
investment to ensure sustainability for the District. When we assumed operations from the
County in 2007 there was not having enough water rights to serve the annual pumping demands in
WY06/07, as shown in the chart below, to a current position of having excessive water available to
lease. The investment in water rights will continue to benefit the District for the foreseeable
future. The purchase of water rights from the Palisades property (Safari Ranch) in WY14/15
helped increased the District’s water rights ownership of water rights and provided more water
than the current production demand. The District has continued to purchase water when it comes
available. In 2020, a total of 148 acre-feet of Alto water was purchased. In January 2023, the
District will make its final installment payment of $185,000 on the purchase of 148 acre-feet at a
cost of $740,000 acquired in December 2020.



Centro Water Rights: The District also owns 219 Base Annual Production Rights in the Centro sub-
area. This water is used to meet the annual make-up obligation. This water has been ramped
down in the past three years by the Judge’s order to a current 60%. Continued ramp-downs are
estimated each year to a total of 40% by Water Year 29/30. The District is currently 3% of the total
make up obligation. As the ramp-downs continue the usable amount of water rights will decrease
thereby requiring the District to purchase additionat water rights to meet the make-up obligation.
Based upon an analysis of projected ramp-downs, the District will need to purchase up to 135 AF
of additional Centro water rights. For the current Water Year the District has an estimated deficit
of 50 acre feet. Each year the amount is determined by Wastermaster engineer and published in a
draft report issued each December or January. Recently, the Board approved acquiring additional
water rights that are available in Centro.

Alto Water Rights:

The excess water production rights that the District owns above what is required to meet the
needs of the District have been leased to other entities and provides an extra source of income to
help offset debt service or capital projects. The Board recently approved a 5- year lease
agreement for the excess water rights. The District has an estimated 741 acre-feet to lease this
year. The established rate is 10% below an estimated Watermaster rate of an $619/AF that will be
solidified by February 2023. This will provide an estimated $400,000 of revenue for the water
fund.

Over the past 14 years the District has done an excellent job reducing water related to
“unaccounted for water” through proactive maintenance and the initial service line replacement
program completed in 2010. As noted by the graph below, water production reduced from 1975
in WY07/08 to a current level just under 1600AF. The initial reduction in water loss was over 400
acre-feet each year due to water leaks prior to the District assuming control from the County. This
was viewed as a significant issue. Further, the community has done Its part in the water
conservation efforts as shown by the annual average from WY10/11 through WY13/14 of 1743
which drops to an average of 1503 acre-feet per year for WY14/15 through WY18/19. This reflects
an average annual reduction of over 240 acre-feet.



| 2500

B FPA
¥ Pumped
1500 LA
1000 |
o '4" oF &

'@s‘@@s‘@s&«s\@@@@@”@ gy

Water Supply Fee: The District collects a water supply fee for new construction that was originally
instituted in May 2009 and can be modified from time to time. The current water supply fee that
is used specifically for the cost of the water rights is currently $5000 per new single-family
residential dwelling unit. Since 2009 the District has had 45 houses constructed or in the process
of being construction who have paid the water supply fee for a total of $225,000 through 2022.



Water Connections

14
12

10

8
6
I I |III

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

N

)

By way of review, the District currently has

FISCAL IMPACT: $185,000 for final installment
POSSIBLE MOTION: None

ATTACHMENTS: None



SERVIn

LA,

= =4

= o =2

5 =

S M 5

U Helendale Community Services District
Date: December 15, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #9
Discussion Only Regarding Minimum Wage Increase on January 1, 2023

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Receive and File.

STAFF REPORT:

In july, the State department Director of Finance determined that the minimum wage should be
increased to $15.50 per hour. Additionally, businesses with less than 25 employee who were
previously paying a lower minimum wage will now have to increase the payment to the same
minimum wage level that all other businesses are required to pay effective 1/1/23.

For the District, this impacts the worker in the Recycling Center/ Thrift store who start out a
minimum wage. Currently, there are four employees who will be increased to that amount. This
will have an impact of approximately $1500 for the balance of the Fiscal Year.

Per the labor code listed below, a modification can occur every year based upon the criteria listed
in subsection (c).

LABOR CODE - LAB
DIVISION 2. EMPLOYMENT REGULATION AND SUPERVISION [200 - 2699.8]
( Division 2 enacted by Stats. 1937, Ch. 90. )

PART 4. EMPLOYEES [1171 - 1408]
( Heading of Part 4 amended by Stats. 1972, Ch. 1122, )

CHAPTER 1. Wages, Hours and Working Conditions [1171 - 1207]

( Chapter 1 enacted by Stats. 1937, Ch. 90. )

(c) (1) Following the implementation of the minimum wage increase specified in
subparagraph (F) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b}, on or before August 1 of that
year, and on or before each August 1 thereafter, the Director of Finance shall calculate
an adjusted minimum wage. The calculation shail increase the minimum wage by the
lesser of 3.5 percent and the rate of change in the averages of the most recent July 1
to June 30, inclusive, period over the preceding July 1 to June 30, inclusive, period for
the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics nonseasonally adjusted United States
Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (U.S. CPI-W). The
result shall be rounded to the nearest ten cents ($0.10). Each adjusted minimum



wage increase calculated under this subdivision shall take effect on the following
January 1.

FISCAL IMPACT: $1500

POSSIBLE MOTION: None

ATTACHMENTS: None



	12152022.pdf
	SKM_C554e22121309020.pdf

